
FORM 10−K
DTS, INC. − DTSI

Filed: March 16, 2007 (period: December 31, 2006)

Annual report which provides a comprehensive overview of the company for the past year



Table of Contents

PART I

Item 1. Business 3

PART I

Item 1. Business
Item 1A. Risk Factors
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Item 2. Properties
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of E

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Item 9B. Other Information

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matt
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
SIGNATURES
EX−3.7 (EX−3.7)

EX−10.42.2 (EX−10.42.2)



EX−10.72 (EX−10.72)

EX−21.1 (EX−21.1)

EX−23.1 (EX−23.1)

EX−31.1 (EX−31.1)

EX−31.2 (EX−31.2)

EX−32.1 (EX−32.1)

EX−32.2 (EX−32.2)



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10−K
⌧  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

OR

o  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                           to
Commission File Number 000−50335

DTS, Inc.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 77−0467655
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification Number)

5171 Clareton Drive
Agoura Hills, California 91301

(Address, including zip code, of Registrant’s principal executive offices)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (818) 706−3525

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which
registered

Common Stock, $0.0001 par
value

Nasdaq Global Select Market

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well−known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes o    No ⌧
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act. Yes o    No ⌧
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ⌧    No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S−K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10−K
or any amendment to this Form 10−K. o

Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non−accelerated filer. See definition of
“accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b−2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer ⌧ Non−accelerated filer o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b−2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o    No ⌧
The aggregate market value of the voting and non−voting common equity held by non−affiliates of the registrant, as of June 30, 2006 was

approximately $342,166,375 (based upon the closing price for shares of the registrant’s Common Stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market
for that date). Shares of Common Stock held by each officer and director have been excluded as such persons may be deemed affiliates. Exclusion of
shares held by any person should not be construed to indicate that such person possesses the power, direct or indirect, to direct or cause the direction
of management or policies of the registrant, or that such person is controlled by or under common control with the registrant.

As of March 13, 2007, 18,124,305 shares of common stock were outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information required by Part III of this Report, to the extent not set forth herein, is incorporated herein by reference to the registrant’s proxy
statement relating to the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 17, 2007.

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



DTS, INC.
FORM 10−K

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006
INDEX

Page

PART I
Item 1. Business 3
Item 1A. Risk Factors 24
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 40
Item 2. Properties 40
Item 3. Legal Proceedings 40
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 40

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Securities 41
Item 6. Selected Financial Data 44
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 45
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 61
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 63
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 101
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 101
Item 9B. Other Information 102

PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 102
Item 11. Executive Compensation 103
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 103
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 103
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 103

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 104
SIGNATURES 109

2

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



FORWARD−LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10−K and the documents incorporated herein by reference contain forward−looking statements
based on our current expectations, estimates and projections about our industry, beliefs, and certain assumptions made by us. Words
such as “believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projections,” “may,” “potential,” “plan,” “continue” and words of
similar import, constitute “forward−looking statements.” The forward−looking statements contained in this report involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results to be materially different from those expressed or
implied by these statements. These factors include those listed under the “Risk Factors” section contained in Item 1A and elsewhere
in this Form 10−K, and the other documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, including our most recent
reports on Form 8−K and Form 10−Q. We cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. We do
not undertake any obligation to revise these forward−looking statements to reflect future events or circumstances.

PART I

Item 1.  Business

Company Overview

We are a leading provider of entertainment technology, products and services to the audio and image entertainment markets
worldwide. Multi−channel audio, commonly referred to as surround sound, allows listeners to hear discrete sounds simultaneously
through more than two speakers. Our DTS digital multi−channel audio technology enables the delivery of compelling surround sound
in theaters and in the home, and has been selected as a required technology in HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc playback devices.
Additionally, we provide image processing services to film studios to prepare and enhance film, television and DVD content for high
quality presentation.

We were founded in 1990 and received a key strategic investment in 1993 from investors, including Universal City Studios, Inc.
The first DTS audio soundtrack was created for the release of Steven Spielberg’s Jurassic Park in 1993. From this initial release, we
established a technical and marketing platform for the development of entertainment technology solutions for the motion picture,
home theater, and other consumer markets.

In 1996, we launched our consumer business, in which we license our technology to consumer electronics products manufacturers
for inclusion in products such as audio/video receivers, DVD, HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc players, personal computers, car audio
products, video game consoles, and home theater systems. The consumer products market has since grown to become the largest
segment of our business. To date, we have entered into licensing agreements with most of the world’s major consumer audio
electronics manufacturers. We also license our technology to many major semiconductor manufacturers. Our technology, trademarks,
and know−how have been incorporated in hundreds of millions of consumer electronics products worldwide.

We also provide products and services to film studios, production companies, and movie theaters to produce, release, distribute,
and play back digital multi−channel film soundtracks, pre−show entertainment content, subtitles, captions and descriptive narration.
We currently license our sound technology to all major film distributors in the United States. Most major feature films currently
released in the United States include a DTS soundtrack. Our playback systems for DTS−formatted soundtracks have been installed in
over 28,000 movie screens worldwide. Increasingly, we are focusing our efforts on providing products and services relating to digital
content delivery, including digital cinema encoding and serving as a network integrator and operator to facilitate the delivery of
pre−show advertising and motion picture content to theaters. We believe the motion picture industry has begun a wide−scale motion
picture industry transition to digital content preparation, delivery and exhibition. In order to position ourselves to capitalize on this
opportunity in January 2007 and beyond, we have reorganized our film licensing, cinema hardware

3

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



and digital images activities into a single business, DTS Digital Cinema, which will focus on providing end−to−end solutions for
digital cinema. To further this initiative, in November 2006, we entered into a worldwide exclusive license agreement with Avica Technology Corporation
(“Avica”), to enable us to exploit its product line of software and hardware products for digital cinema applications.

On February 20, 2007, we further announced that our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema business
to enable us to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game console,
personal computer, portable and broadcast markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007.

We develop, market, license and sell our proprietary technology, products and services for the following markets:

Consumer Markets:

•  Home theater and consumer electronics entertainment devices such as audio/video receivers, home−theater−in−a−box, DVD,
HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc players, car audio products, and personal computers.

•  Emerging markets for digital multi−channel audio such as digital home networks, video games and consoles, portable
electronics devices, and digital satellite and cable broadcast products.

•  Professional audio products and services for encoding and decoding digital multi−channel content in our proprietary format.

Cinema Markets:

•  Audio and video technology, products and services that enable the production and distribution of soundtracks, subtitles, and
pre−show or alternative content in our proprietary format.

•  Systems for playback and distribution of multi−channel audio soundtracks, pre−show, and alternative video content, subtitling,
captioning, and descriptive narration for movie theaters and special venues.

•  Services supporting the operation, ingest, delivery and playback of digital content over digital content networks, digital cinema
content.

•  Professional products and services for production of content for digital cinema that complies with the technical specifications
issued by the Digital Cinema Initiative, LLC, or DCI.

•  Theater hardware, software, and management systems that facilitate the booking, preparation and delivery of advertising and
digital motion picture content.

Digital Imaging Markets:

•  Digital image enhancement and restoration services for film and television content to enable high quality presentation in digital
cinema, high definition optical media or broadcast applications.

•  Digital intermediate services for the motion picture industry.

•  Digital image services to repair and salvage damaged film and television content, or to correct problems in the production
process occurring as a result of errors or anomalies that may occur during filming or digital acquisition of content.

Regardless of the customer or entertainment application that incorporates our technology or services, we facilitate the branded
delivery and playback of high−quality digital content. As the transition from analog to digital entertainment technology continues, we
believe we are well−positioned to grow our
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licensing, product, and service businesses worldwide. Our goal is to become essential to the ultimate entertainment experience by
enabling the creation of compelling, high−quality content and by incorporating our technology into every device that manages,
controls or delivers high−quality digital entertainment.

Industry Background

Over the past 15 years, two trends have greatly impacted the entertainment industry: the transition from analog to digital
entertainment content, and technological advancements in digital coding, transmission, signal processing, optical storage, and
playback. These trends helped create a technical foundation for the widespread adoption of digital multi−channel audio and high
definition video for many forms of entertainment.

Adoption and Growth of Digital Multi−Channel Audio in the Motion Picture Industry

Movie soundtracks were originally presented in mono, or one−channel, audio. In the mid−1970s, stereo was introduced. Stereo
consists of two channels and presents sound through discrete left and right speakers. Stereo was followed by matrix technology that
allowed an inexpensive two−track system to bring surround sound to a large number of movie theaters. However, the audio quality
and channel separation were limited.

In the early 1990s, the listening experience of movie audiences was significantly enhanced through the introduction of digital
multi−channel surround sound technology. This format, commonly known as 5.1, combined high−quality audio with full separation in
five channels: left, center, right, left surround, right surround, plus a channel dedicated to low frequency effects known as a
subwoofer. Digital discrete surround sound enables movie directors and producers to create a more enveloping and realistic
entertainment environment. Many filmmakers recognized the ability of multi−channel audio to enhance the entertainment experience
and promoted its widespread adoption.

Digital multi−channel audio is now an industry standard audio format for feature films. Today, all of the major film studios in the
United States, and an increasing number of international film studios, release their feature films with digital multi−channel
soundtracks. In 2006, 182 major feature films were released in the United States with a DTS digital multi−channel soundtrack with
871 films, including foreign films and dubbed language versions of films with DTS soundtracks being released worldwide.

Screen Digest Global Media Intelligence, in its December 2006 Cinema Intelligence report, estimates that in 2006 there were more
than 148,000 movie theater screens worldwide, and that in 2006 there were approximately 43,000 screens in North America. Screen
Digest Global Media Intelligence estimates that in 2006, there were approximately 82,750 digital sound screens worldwide. As film
studios have increasingly released films with digital multi−channel soundtracks, many movie theaters have purchased and installed
digital multi−channel playback systems and cinema processor equipment for both newly constructed and retrofitted movie theaters. A
number of other venues also utilize digital multi−channel playback systems and cinema processor equipment to enhance the
entertainment experience. These venues include large−screen format theaters, amusement parks, national parks, and museums.

Proliferation of Home Theater Systems

Consumer demand for digital multi−channel capable home theater systems has been fueled by:

•  the extensive adoption of digital multi−channel audio in movie theaters;

•  declining prices for DVD players, audio/video receivers, and home−theater−in−a−box systems;

•  the superior quality and feature sets of DVDs;
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•  the widespread availability of DVDs released with digital multi−channel soundtracks; and

•  the growth of high definition television displays.

According to the Digital Entertainment Group, or DEG, website at dvdinformation.com, it is estimated that, as of December 31,
2006, over 80% of U.S. households own one or more DVD−Video players. They further estimate that approximately 55% of DVD
owners now have more than one player.

Home theater systems generally consist of a display, a DVD−Video player, a digital multi−channel audio/video receiver, five
speakers, and a subwoofer. Home−theater−in−a−box systems containing all of these elements, but the display, are increasingly offered
to consumers as an all−in−one home theater package for ease of use and installation.

High Definition Displays have been an important driver in the proliferation of home theater systems. Jupiter Research estimates
that 31% of U.S. households, or 35 million homes, had an HDTV as of the end of 2006. HDTV penetration is expected to reach over
70% of U.S. households by 2010.

Currently, CEA estimates that 36% of U.S. households (40 million households) own some configuration of a home theater system.
High quality sound is viewed by consumers as an important feature of a home theater system. According to a CEA Home Theater
Opportunity research report, a significant percentage of online consumers rate sound (80%) and video quality (84%) as important or
very important aspects of a home theater system and 83% said that both are equally important factors.

Development of Robust New Markets for Digital Multi−Channel Sound

Digital multi−channel sound is extending into a growing number of consumer electronics environments, including homes, cars,
personal computers, video games and consoles, portable electronics devices, and digital satellite and cable broadcast products. Content
providers in the film, music and video game markets have recognized that a substantial market opportunity exists for digital
multi−channel entertainment content. For example, Nielsen SoundScan estimates that DVD music video sales have grown in unit sales
from over 10 million units in 2002 to 24 million units in 2006, a 22% compounded annual growth rate. The DVD Release Report for
2006 estimated that DVD music releases accounted for 14% of total DVD releases with over 8,700 titles released.

Car audio, personal computer, and video game console manufacturers are increasingly incorporating digital multi−channel audio
capability into their products. Surround sound technology is also incorporated into portable electronics applications, such as palm−top
DVD players, which allow listeners to enjoy a simulated surround sound experience using headphones. These markets represent
significant growth opportunities as content providers and consumers become familiar with the capability of digital multi−channel
audio to enhance the entertainment experience.

The digital satellite and cable broadcast markets may represent significant opportunities for digital multi−channel audio. ABI
Research, in its Q4 2006 quarterly marketing briefing, estimates that digital satellite or digital cable was installed in approximately
59% of U.S. households at the end of 2006, projected to grow to 74% by the end of 2010, and in approximately 36% of Western
European households at the end of 2006, projected to grow to 52% by the end of 2010. We believe a significant market opportunity
may exist in all sectors of this market including broadcast hardware, high definition set−top boxes, and televisions.

Looking forward, we expect that next generation formats will drive home entertainment growth in the form of high definition
DVD players, game consoles and blue laser DVD−ROM Drives for personal computers. We believe that multi−channel audio will
play a critical role in expanding this high definition experience.
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According to the DEG, and NPD Group, in the United States, over 750,000 set−top box and game consoles were sold in 2006. The
CEA estimates nearly 1 million high definition DVD set−top box units will be shipped in 2007. International Data Corporation, or
IDC, estimates that through the end of 2006 over 5 million game consoles were shipped in the United States, projected to grow to a
total of 12 million by the end of 2010.

Markets for Other Digital Technologies in the Motion Picture and Television Industries

Motion picture exhibitors continue to seek new sources of revenue, independent of feature films. As a result, there is growing
demand for products and services that facilitate the creation, distribution, control, and playback of digital pre−show advertising and
alternative content. Pre−show and alternative content presentation can represent a sizable revenue opportunity for exhibitors who have
historically been financially challenged by the high cost of modern theater construction and the limited revenue sources available from
theater operation. Screen Digest estimates that pre−show advertisements today account for over 80 percent of theater advertising,
which they indicate has shown double−digit growth for the past three years. Screen Digest estimates that revenues from pre−show
advertising in North America increased in 2006 to over $600 million.

In response to the growth in sales of high definition displays in homes and the move toward digital cinema presentation, many film
and television content owners are seeking to prepare their assets for presentation in high definition. Due to significant resolution
differences between the standard and high definition formats, standard definition content often displays poorly when shown on a high
definition device. To look compelling, content often must be prepared and enhanced to be appropriate for use in high definition optical
media, broadcast, or digital cinema applications. Accordingly, we believe there is a growing market for digital image enhancement
and restoration services in the motion picture, television, and home theater markets.

The DTS Solution

Our proprietary DTS digital audio system provides moviegoers with a high−quality, digital multi−channel audio experience. Film
studios and production companies use our technology and services to encode the soundtracks of their films using our proprietary
digital multi−channel sound format. Theater owners purchase and use our products to playback DTS encoded soundtracks through six
or more discrete speakers.

Our competitors imprint their proprietary digital multi−channel audio data directly onto the film. This can result in audio
degradation or failure from repetitive use or handling. By contrast, we use a dual−medium system whereby we store audio information
on CD−ROM discs, which are synchronized to the motion picture film by the use of our proprietary timecode. The timecode is printed
on the film, which enables the correlation of single or multiple events, such as audio, light, or motion, to an individual frame of film.
By placing audio data on optical media or hard discs rather than directly on film, we provide reliable high−quality playback that is not
subject to film wear or subsequent audio degradation. Our system enables theater operators to easily change audio tracks or languages
without changing film prints—a process that can take several hours. The use of DTS audio delivered from discs also allows much
more data capacity, and consequently higher audio quality, than data−on−film systems.

In addition, we provide products that enable the transmission, scheduling and playback of video−based pre−show advertising and
alternative content and systems for the projection and transmission of subtitles, captions, and descriptive narration. Our recently
introduced DTS Cinema Media Network™ is a product suite that will allow exhibitors to purchase a single integrated software and
hardware solution for multiple in−theater applications, thereby combining incremental revenue opportunities with cost efficient use of
cinema hardware and personnel.
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During 2005, DCI, a consortium of major Hollywood Studios, completed and issued its technical specifications for digital cinema.
The specification outlines minimum requirements for distribution and playback of digital motion pictures encoded using JPEG2000
compression technology. We subsequently introduced a DCI−compliant JPEG2000 Variable Bit Rate encoder to meet this need. Our
DTS Digital Cinema Encoder™ provides highly efficient, master quality encodes by optimizing bit−allocation according to
user−defined parameters.

In 1996, we introduced our Coherent Acoustics technology to bring advanced digital audio entertainment to the home. Coherent
Acoustics is an audio compression/decompression algorithm, or codec, that enables the encoding and decoding of audio tracks in the
DTS digital multi−channel sound format. The design architecture of our technology allows us to scale or adapt, adding features or
performance while maintaining backward compatibility with earlier implementations of the technology. The encoding process reduces
the storage space or transmission bandwidth required for the audio information, while maximizing the quality of the sound. The audio
information can then be stored on a digital medium, such as a DVD, or transmitted over a broadband connection or broadcast signal.
The encoded content can be played back on digital audio electronics products equipped with a DTS Coherent Acoustics decoder, such
as a DVD−based home theater system.

The performance and flexibility of our Coherent Acoustics technology enables easy implementation in a variety of consumer
electronics products. Our core technology has also been incorporated into sound systems used in homes, cars, personal computers,
video games and consoles, portable electronics devices, and digital satellite and cable broadcast products.

The adoption of digital multi−channel audio depends on the availability of compelling content, along with the devices required to
play it. Accordingly, we provide products and services to filmmakers, recording artists, producers, and software developers to
facilitate the creation and delivery of audio content in our proprietary digital multi−channel format.

We strive to evolve and develop our technology on an ongoing basis. For example, to offer an enhanced experience for existing
and new stereo content, we have developed our Neo:6 matrix technology. This technology provides simulated multi−channel playback
from stereo content and has been incorporated into home theater, home audio, car electronics, and our movie theater products. More
recently, we introduced DTS−HD Master Audio, which extends our technology offerings for the next−generation optical media
formats known as HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc in two ways. First, our lossless coding extension delivers audio which is bit−for−bit
identical to the original master content. Secondly, DTS−HD Master Audio includes a low bit rate mode that extends our technology
for use in applications where bandwidth and data capacity is much lower than in optical media, such as broadcast and portable
devices. Although DTS−HD will be first introduced in HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc players and home theater systems, these new
technologies have application in a wide variety of consumer electronic devices and applications.

In 2005, we entered the image enhancement, restoration and repair market through the acquisition of Lowry Digital Images, a
leader in digital image processing. In this division, which is now known as DTS Digital Images, or DTS DI, we apply sophisticated
image evaluation and processing algorithms in the digital domain to restore, enhance and repair motion picture and television content
for the professional and home entertainment markets. DTS DI processing is used by content owners to restore older content for release
on DVD−Video and to repair content damaged in processing or problems encountered during production. Examples of the motion
pictures that we have repaired or restored include a number of classic animated features, the original Star Wars trilogy, the Bond series
and the Indiana Jones series. In addition, our techniques are increasingly being used to prepare content of all types for distribution in
the HD−DVD or Blu−ray Disc formats or high definition theatrical release. DTS DI processing technologies can also be applied to
correct or repair a multitude of photographic flaws that can result from the production and
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processing of film and digital image content. These include the correction of out−of−focus sequences due to camera problems and
removing scratches or other flaws caused by incorrect processing.

Products and Services

We segment our business into consumer markets, cinema markets and digital images markets. The combination of our cinema and
digital images markets creates our new DTS Digital Cinema business. Financial and geographic information for each of our business
segments for each of the last three years is included in Footnote 20 to the consolidated financial statements, “Operating Segment and
Geographic Information.”

Consumer Markets

In our consumer business segment, we provide technology that enables digital multi−channel surround sound for home theater,
home audio, car audio, personal computer, and other emerging segments of the consumer markets. Our Coherent Acoustics
technology was designed for the consumer electronics market. This proprietary technology enables delivery of multiple channels of
discrete digital audio, but typically is used to provide from two to eight channels. Coherent Acoustics enables consumers to experience
high−quality surround sound in their homes, cars, and many other listening environments.

We license our Coherent Acoustics technology to consumer electronics product manufacturers primarily through a two step
process. First, we license our software developer kits to semiconductor manufacturers who typically embed our decoding software into
their digital signal processor chips. In turn, these semiconductor manufacturers sell DTS−enabled chips only to hardware
manufacturers who have entered into consumer manufacturer licenses with us. As part of the licensing terms for both semiconductor
and hardware manufacturer licensees, we typically receive fees for access to our developer kits and for our certification, prior to sale,
of the quality and performance of their products. Additionally, our business model provides for us to receive a per−unit royalty for
hardware products manufactured containing our decoding technology.

Consumer electronics product manufacturers can also design their products to support the passing of a DTS bitstream to another
device, such as an audio/video receiver, that contains a DTS decoder. We refer to this pass−through capability as DTS Digital Out.
Only devices equipped with a Coherent Acoustics decoder can play back digital multi−channel audio encoded in our format. Similar
to our licensing program for decoding technology, our DTS Digital Out trademark licensees typically pay us fees for access to our
developer kits and for our certification of their products. Our business model provides that we receive per−unit royalties for products
manufactured containing our trademark.
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DTS−enabled audio decoders are embedded in popular home theater products including audio/video receivers,
home−theater−in−a−box systems and some DVD players. Our technology is also embedded and supported in new and emerging
consumer electronics products that use digital multi−channel audio, including home audio systems, car audio systems, personal
computers, video games and consoles, portable electronics devices, and digital satellite and cable broadcast products. Importantly,
Coherent Acoustics was selected as a mandatory audio format in both the HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc optical media formats. As a
result, DTS decoding technology will be utilized in at least two−channel form in any consumer product that incorporates either a
Blu−ray or HD−DVD disc drive. Our decoders have been embedded in nearly one hundred million audio/video devices.

As we enter new product categories, we fine−tune our business model to meet the specific needs of the relevant industry. In 2005,
we launched the DTS−Connect program for the use of our technology in personal computers. DTS−Connect features a real−time DTS
encoder and a version of our Neo:6 matrix technology tuned especially for personal computers, which we call Neo:PC. This
technology suite not only allows the personal computer user to take advantage of the playback capabilities of nearly one hundred
million DTS decoders by encoding audio resident on or streamed to the user’s computer, but also provides a multi−channel playback
experience from stereo or mono content. In this business model, integrated circuit manufacturers pay us fixed per unit royalties for
each DTS−enabled chipset shipped to a DTS licensed personal computer motherboard manufacturer. Each licensed personal computer
motherboard manufacturer reports to us the number of units purchased and manufactured each quarter.

We also market products and services for the creation of digital multi−channel audio content and we produce digital
multi−channel audio content primarily for promotional purposes. We sell professional audio encoding products to professional audio
equipment dealers. We license our encoding technology to professional and professional/consumer product manufacturers who in turn
sell the products to content owners and post−production facilities, enabling them to produce and release audio and audio/video
products containing DTS digital multi−channel soundtracks. These content owners include home video producers and distributors,
individual music artists, and music labels.

Home Theater

We have historically derived the majority of our consumer market revenue from licensing our technology for incorporation into
home theater products. These products include:

•  Audio and Audio/Video Receivers.   Embedded DTS decoders enable these products to decode digital multi−channel audio.

•  DVD−Video Players.   Incorporation of DTS Digital Out capabilities enables these devices to pass−through DTS encoded audio
content. In addition, some DVD players contain DTS decoding capability.

•  HD−DVD and Blu−ray Disc Players.   Embedded DTS decoders typically enable these products to decode two channels of
digital audio and to pass a multi−channel bit stream through the player to an external device such as an audio/video receiver.

•  Home−Theater−in−a−Box Systems.   All−in−one home theater packages typically consist of a DVD player, audio/video
receiver, five speakers, and a sub−woofer.
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New and Emerging Segments of the Consumer Market

The high quality and flexibility of our Coherent Acoustics algorithm provides for a variety of alternative applications. We are
expanding into new and emerging markets for consumer electronics and entertainment products that incorporate high−quality digital
multi−channel audio, including:

•  Home Audio Systems.   These are centralized home−based entertainment systems and servers that deliver entertainment content
to various playback devices throughout the home.

•  Car Audio Systems.   Currently, many major after−market car audio manufacturers sell products that include our digital
multi−channel audio technology. In addition, an increasing number of automobile manufacturers have introduced
factory−installed digital multi−channel audio systems as either standard or optional equipment for a number of their new models.
A DTS digital multi−channel sound system is available on certain Acura, Lexus, Infiniti, Mercedes, Land Rover, BMW,
Cadillac, Toyota, Nissan, Honda and Mazda models. We anticipate growth in this market to continue as these and other
manufacturers release vehicles that incorporate our technology.

•  Personal Computers.   We have licensed our technology for incorporation into both hardware and software products for the
personal computer. In the hardware market, we have licensed our decoding technology to a number of hardware peripherals
manufacturers who incorporate our technology into sound cards and speaker systems. In the software market, we have licensed
our decoding technology to most of the leading software−based DVD player providers, including Cyberlink Corporation and
Intervideo Inc. Additionally, we expect that Nero AG, and ArcSoft, Inc. will incorporate our technology into certain of their
products. With the mandatory inclusion of our technology in the Blu−ray Disc and HD−DVD specifications, we expect an
increased number of companies to introduce additional DTS−enabled software products in the personal computer space.

•  Video Games and Consoles.   We license our technology for inclusion into gaming hardware and software applications. We
believe that the addition of interactive digital multi−channel audio in video games enables a level of realism not provided by
conventional audio systems and represents a significant enhancement to the quality of the gaming experience. In the video game
hardware market, Sony Corporation’s PlayStation 2 supports our interactive digital multi−channel sound technology when
connected to a DTS−capable audio/video receiver. In the game software market, we have entered into licensing relationships
with several major game publishers, including Activision, Inc., Atari, Inc., and Electronic Arts, Inc., to incorporate our digital
multi−channel encoding technology into their PlayStation 2 games. Importantly, with the release of Sony’s PlayStation 3, DTS
decoding technology is now included in each hardware unit, allowing the capability to decode 5.1 channels of digital audio
within the player or the pass−through of a multi−channel stream to an external decoder. Similarly, Microsoft’s X−Box 360 now
offers an external HD−DVD drive accessory which supports DTS 5.1 decoding capability.

•  Portable Electronics Devices.   Our technology is incorporated into some portable electronics devices, such as portable DVD
players. We intend to aggressively pursue incorporation of our technology, including our new low bit rate technology, into other
portable electronics devices such as flash memory players and portable disc players which enable stereo and simulated
multi−channel playback via headphones.

•  Digital Satellite and Cable Broadcast Products.   Our technology has been adopted by the European Broadcasting Union’s
Digital Video Broadcast Project as one of several formats for digital multi−channel audio delivery. This standards group sets
digital cable, satellite, and terrestrial broadcast standards for international markets including Europe. We are actively working
with other relevant standards organizations for the inclusion of our technology. Such inclusion would enable us to pursue the
incorporation of our technology into broadcast hardware, set−top−boxes, and televisions.
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To date, we have licensed our trademarks and decoding technology for incorporation into television set−top boxes. Additionally,
we continue to seek partnerships and strategic alliances to move consumer entertainment forward. In 2005, we entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding with Coding Technologies to develop a broadcast solution that provides Coding Technologies,
through a Coherent Acoustics real−time DTS encoder, access to our installed base of home theater decoders. Coding
Technologies is a leading provider of open standard codecs and is possibly best known for its spectral enhancement which forms
the “plus” in aacPlus. In January 2007, Euro 1080, a European high definition media company, entered into an agreement with
us to become the first broadcaster to deploy the combined Coding Technologies and DTS solution.

New Technologies for Existing and Emerging Consumer Markets

We continue to evolve and develop our technology for the consumer market. Our Neo:6 matrix technology provides simulated
multi−channel play back from stereo, or two−channel, content. This technology increasingly is being incorporated into home theater
systems, home audio systems, and car audio systems. Our DTS−HD offering extends our Coherent Acoustics technology to full
bit−for−bit accurate lossless performance for applications where the highest quality is required, and adds DTS−HD low bit rate
technology for applications such as broadcast, portable and other devices where significant data size and bandwidth limitations exist.
These additional technologies provide us with new revenue opportunities from existing and new customers. With DTS−HD, we
believe we are uniquely positioned for the future evolution of high quality surround sound audio in the home. While DTS−HD is
generally limited to 7.1 channels of audio in both the Blu−ray Disc and HD−DVD specifications, the DTS−HD technology can
support more than 2,000 channels at 32−bit data. Current systems are typically limited to 24−bit data.

We continue to develop the synergies between the various market segments in which we operate, such as the incorporation of our
Coherent Acoustics technology into our cinema products, to provide higher quality audio delivery for alternative content presentation
in the cinema market.

Audio Content

To support the adoption of our technology, we sell, license, and provide professional audio products and services for encoding and
decoding digital multi−channel content in our format. In addition, for promotional purposes we also produce, market, and sell a
limited number of music titles in our digital multi−channel format.

Professional Audio Products and Services.   We sell, license, and provide a variety of professional audio products and services for
content creators. The ultimate customers for these products are recording artists, music labels, and post−production facilities. Over the
past two years, we have developed and launched a new set of professional audio products to support the launch of DTS−HD.
Additionally, we worked with partners to integrate DTS−HD encoding functionality into a broad array of next generation HD−DVD
and Blu−ray Disc authoring systems. The following table lists the professional audio products and services that we currently provide:
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Product or Service Description

DTS−HD Master Audio Suite Mac and PC software suite for encoding, monitoring and editing
DTS−HD and standard definition digital audio.

DTS Surround Audio Suite Mac and PC software suite for encoding, monitoring and editing DTS
Digital Surround standard definition digital audio.

DTS Software Licensing Objects DTS encode and decode software for integration into third party
professional software products.

DTS Encoding Service Content providers create a digital multi−channel master audio mix
and provide it to us for encoding.

Cinema Markets

In our cinema business segment we license technology and sell products and services to producers and distributors of feature
length films and digital content, and to movie theaters and special venues.

Products and Services for Film Producers and Distributors

For film producers and distributors, we license technology to encode a movie’s audio master into our digital multi−channel format
and provide audio CD−ROMs for distribution with film prints to movie theaters. To facilitate synchronization to the film print, we
provide the studios with equipment and a license to produce a timecode track which is printed on the film. The discs and the film print
have corresponding electronic serial numbers to ensure playback of the correct soundtrack.

We also offer products and services for the encoding of movies in the DCI−specified JPEG2000 format. We currently offer
hardware and software and offer technical support to motion picture studios, distribution service providers and digital intermediate
facilities engaged in preparation of content for digital cinema exhibition.

Products for Movie Theaters and Special Venues

Digital Audio Playback Systems.   In order for a movie theater to play a DTS−encoded soundtrack, the theater must use one of our
audio playback systems. These systems are rack−mounted products installed in movie theater projection booths. These playback
systems are sold in several configurations that support analog and digital audio play back, and other audio management and theater
automation functions.

We sell similar products and services to special venues such as large−format theaters, amusement parks, national parks, and
museums. We believe we are a leading supplier in this market due to our high quality and reliability and because we have the only
commercially available technology that supports all film sizes and speeds from 8 millimeter to 70 millimeter.

Systems for Subtitling, Captioning, and Descriptive Narration.   We also sell our DTS−CSS system to movie theaters. This system
delivers feature−film subtitles, captions, and descriptive narration for foreign language and hearing and visually impaired audiences.
We believe this proprietary digital system is a cost−effective method to provide subtitles, captions, and descriptive narration for a film
because it eliminates the need to permanently imprint, etch, or overlay the subtitles or captions directly onto the film. The DTS−CSS
system enables the delivery of open or closed captioning, depending on the output device utilized. For open captions, the DTS−CSS
system uses a separate video projector to render subtitles or captions; for closed captions, the system is utilized in conjunction with a
rear−wall display device. This product is designed to address the increasing political and social pressure to provide access to the
motion picture experience for the hearing and visually impaired.
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This same family of products is also being used for electronic cinema applications including alternative content presentations and
pre−show advertising, incorporating both high definition image and audio playback capabilities. These products enable a theater
owner to extend its range of revenue opportunities, and help to maximize the utility of equipment in theater projection rooms, saving
expense and space. In the pre−show advertising area, both the CSS system and the DTS XD10 Cinema Media Player can be used
when coupled with a color projector. The DTS XD10 has an extensive feature set, which includes networking capability to facilitate
its integration into a content distribution system. We also offer the DTS Cinema Media Network™ product suite which incorporates
the DTS XD10 Cinema Media Player to manage the creation, transmission/delivery, scheduling, logging, remote system monitoring
and playback of all types of digital content including video, audio, subtitles, captions, and descriptive narration.

Systems for Digital Video Preparation, Delivery and Exhibition.   Through our exclusive licensing deal with Avica and initiatives
to enhance our ability in the digital cinema arena, we also offer our customers a range of technology, products and services for the
preparation, delivery and exhibition of digital cinema content. The Avica FilmStore Platform includes the FilmStore Digital Cinema
Player, the FilmStore Central Multiplex Content Manager and the FilmStore Director Theater Management System. The FilmStore
Digital Cinema Player supports both single screen and multiplex exhibition and provides simple start, stop, play and status,
sophisticated content protection and 4K capability. The FilmStore Central Multiplex Content Manager provides a link to an external
network and provides secure movie storage, advanced rights management and centralized show control. The FilmStore Director
Theater Management System provides a management system interface enabling local or remote access to control a multiplex and
security management for content and users. The Avica StillStore captures and stores high quality, uncompressed still images with
functionality that includes up− and down−conversions on−the−fly, networking, Internet export of stills, and machine control interface
for industry standard color. The Avica MotionStore captures motion or still images as high definition digital data which can then be
instantly recalled for playback or converted for export to a wide variety of formats.

The chart below lists some products that we sell or plan to sell to movie theaters and special venues:

Product or Service Description

DTS XD10 Cinema Media Player A DVD and hard−drive−based multi−function playback device.
Supports up to ten channels of audio, and has digital video
playback capability. Can be upgraded to support DTS−CSS
applications, pre−show advertising, and alternative content.

DTS XD10P Cinema Audio Processor A stand alone digital and analog cinema audio processor. Provides
up to eight channels of audio output and interfaces with the XD10
Cinema Media Player, other digital sources and theater automation
systems.

DTS−ES Extended Surround Decoder A decoding device which derives a center surround channel from
extended surround tracks, providing 6.1 audio for theaters.

DTS−CSS System A digital subtitling, captioning, and descriptive narration system
consisting of a processing unit, time code reader, and a digital
projector.

DTS Cinema Media Network™ A suite of hardware and software products to manage network
transmission, in−theater scheduling, and digital content playout
such as electronic cinema, alternative content, digital preshow
advertising, lobby advertising, audio, captions, subtitles, and
descriptive narration.
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DTS Digital Cinema Encoder™ A DCI−compliant variable bit rate JPEG2000 encoder used in the
production of motion pictures for digital cinema exhibition.

Avica FilmStore™ Central Hardware and software used in digital cinema multiplex installations to
provide centralized, secure receipt, storage, management/scheduling and
distribution of digital cinema and other related digital content to
individual screens within a multiplex.

Avica FilmStore™ Director Software designed for use by theater managers to control all of the
digital cinema players and a central management system within a theater
complex.

Digital Signage Products As part of the deployment of digital cinema and advertising systems
within theater complexes, we plan to also integrate digital playback
devices to manage playback of advertising and other promotional
content in theater lobbies.

Digital Booking System™ (DBS) Digital Booking System™, or DBS, is a web−based application that
enables the booking and scheduling of digital content for theatrical
exhibition. Our DBS service enables distributors and exhibitors to
communicate through the Internet to accelerate the process of booking
content, scheduling show times, programming trailers, tracking
attendance data and facilitating film rental payment.

Image Enhancement, Restoration and Repair Services

In our Digital Images division, we provide enhancement, restoration and repair services for motion pictures captured in analog or
digital form. Our services enable current or archived film or television content to be enhanced, restored or repaired to enable high
quality, high definition presentation in high definition optical media, broadcast, or digital cinema applications. In addition, we believe
that DTS DI is uniquely suited for correcting or repairing a multitude of photographic challenges encountered in the production and
processing of film and digital image content. These issues range from the correction of out−of−focus sequences due to camera
problems to removing scratches or other flaws caused by incorrect processing.

DTS Technology Platform

Our Coherent Acoustics audio technology platform is designed to capture, store, and reproduce audio signals. There are several
technical considerations involved in this process, including the frequency of data sampling, the word length, and the bit rate. These
factors can control the quality of audio presentation and are commonly managed through compression techniques.

A fundamental challenge with digital audio distribution is that capturing analog signal representations in digital form requires a
tremendous amount of data. Therefore, the storage and subsequent transmission of that data presents physical space, efficiency, and
economic challenges. We address this challenge by developing coding technology and products that reduce the amount of data
required to store and transmit an audio signal and to subsequently reproduce the audio.

The design, architecture, and implementation of this coding solution are complex. Signal coding requires a thorough and combined
understanding of the disciplines of electrical engineering, computer science, and psychoacoustics, coupled with significant practical
experience. One of our key technical
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strengths has been our ability to develop a system that enables the transparent reproduction of an original audio signal, meaning that
the reproduction sounds indistinguishable from its source.

Emerging applications for digital multi−channel audio, such as video games, the Internet, and recordable media, have limited
bandwidth. Our technology architecture is flexible enough to accommodate these needs and optimize quality within the constraints of
the application.

We have designed the following attributes into the basic architecture of our technology:

•  scalable, meaning that parameters such as data rate can be set over a very wide range, as applications require;

•  extensible, meaning that the structure itself accommodates additional data for enhancements both anticipated and unknown; and

•  backward compatible, meaning that extensions and enhancements do not preclude the ability of earlier decoders to play the core
signal.

Intellectual Property

We have a substantial base of intellectual property assets covering patents, trademarks, copyrights, and trade secrets. We have 31
individual patent families resulting in more than 135 individual patents and more than 82 patent applications throughout the world. We
have more than 112 trademarks and more than 42 trademark applications pending worldwide with additional marks in the
pre−application phase. We also have a number of federally registered copyrights and maintain a sizeable library of copyrighted
software and other technical materials as well as numerous trade secrets. We have targeted our intellectual property coverage to
provide protection in the major manufacturing and commercial centers of the world.

We pursue a general practice of filing patent applications for our technology in the United States and various foreign countries
where our customers manufacture, distribute, or sell licensed products. We actively pursue new applications to expand our patent
portfolio to address new technological innovations. Most of the patents in our patent portfolio have an average life of 20 years from
their date of filing with some having begun to expire in 2005 and others expiring through 2009. However, many of our more
substantive patents are relatively young and have expiration dates ranging from 2015 to 2018. We have multiple patents covering
unique aspects and improvements for many of our technologies. Accordingly, we do not believe that the expiration of any single
patent is likely to significantly affect our intellectual property position or our ability to generate licensing revenues.
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The following table lists our key patents and patent applications and the inventions they cover:

Key Patent Titles Coverage

Consumer Markets
Multi−Channel Predictive Subband Audio

Coder Using Psychoacoustic Adaptive Bit
Allocation in Frequency, Time and over
Multiple Channels

Coherent Acoustics Algorithm—Encoder &
Decoder

Improving Sound Quality of Established Low
Bit−Rate Audio Coding Systems Without
Loss of Decoder Compatibility

Core + Extension Architecture, 96 kHz/24 Bit
Structure

Method of Decoding Two−Channel Matrix
Encoded Audio to Reconstruct
Multi−Channel Audio

Neo:6 (stereo to multi−channel) and DTS−ES
(6.1 channel)

Digitally Encoded Machine Readable Storage
Media Using Adaptive Bit Allocation in
Frequency, Time and over Multiple
Channels

Coherent Acoustics Algorithm—Article of
Manufacture

Method and Apparatus for Multiplexed
Encoding of Digital Audio Information onto
a Digital Storage Medium

Multi−Channel CD—5.1 Music Disc (applicable to
cinema discs)

Cinema Markets
Motion Picture Digital Sound System and

Method with Primary Sound Storage Edit
Capability Cinema Synchronization and Play Back

Motion Picture Digital Sound System &
Method DTS Time Code on Film

Motion Picture Subtitling System and Method
Using an Electro−Optical Dowser Subtitling System Using an Optical Dowser

We generally license our technology on our standard terms through a two−tiered structure: first to integrated circuit semiconductor
manufacturers and then to consumer electronics product manufacturers. We generally license on a non−exclusive, worldwide basis.
Our business model provides for hardware manufacturers to pay us a license fee for each unit they produce that contains our
technology or trademarks. We require that all licensees have their integrated circuits or hardware devices certified by us prior to
distribution. We reserve the right to audit their records and quality standards. Licensees are required to use the appropriate DTS
trademark on the products they manufacture.

In our consumer business, we have 67 patents issued and 72 patents pending worldwide spanning the entire spectrum of our
technology including the encoding and decoding process, the structure of the DTS audio stream, and media containing DTS encoded
material. In addition, we have a number of patents and applications covering extensions of our core technology architecture as well as
unique implementation approaches for various product applications.

In the cinema market, we have 47 patents issued and nine patents pending worldwide covering our cinema system, the DTS time
code, and our subtitling method. These patents cover the technology that is
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utilized in our various cinema products as well as our film license rights. We also have 21 patents and one patent application that span
both the consumer products and cinema sectors of our business. These rights primarily cover the process of producing media
containing DTS and digital multi−channel audio as well as the individual finished product.

In our Digital Images business, we have historically relied primarily on trade secrets to protect our intellectual property. In the
future, we expect to seek patent protection for inventions relating to this business and we currently have several patent applications in
development.

We have licensed from Audio Processing Technology Limited the rights to the apt−X algorithm on a perpetual, worldwide,
non−exclusive basis. The apt−X algorithm is the audio algorithm used by our cinema products to encode and play back our audio
tracks.

Our trademarks consist of over 30 individual word marks, logos, and slogans filed throughout the world. The marks cover our
various products, technology, improvements, and features as well as the services that we provide. Our trademarks are an integral part
of our licensing program and are required to be used on licensed products to identify the existence of the technology and to provide
greater consumer awareness. Our trademarks include the following:

We have a significant amount of copyright protected materials including software, textual materials, and master audio materials
used to produce our DTS Entertainment (“DTSE”) products. A number of these products have been federally registered.
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Customers

Consumer Markets

Consumer Electronics Products Manufacturers

We have licensed our Coherent Acoustics technology or our trademarks to approximately 300 consumer electronics products
manufacturers for use in hundreds of consumer audio products. Collectively, these manufacturers have sold hundreds of millions of
DTS−licensed consumer electronic products worldwide. The following list sets forth some of the consumer electronics product
manufacturers that have licensed our technology.

Audio & Audio/Video Receivers DVD Players

Koninklijke Philips
Electronics N.V.

Samsung
Electronics Co.,
Ltd.

Funai Electric Co., Ltd. Samsung Electronics
Co., Ltd.

LG Electronics, Inc. Sony Corporation LG Electronics, Inc. Sony Corporation
Onkyo Corporation Yamaha

Corporation
Pioneer Corporation Thomson Multimedia

Pioneer Corporation Audio Hong Kong,
Ltd.

Car Audio Systems

Alpine
Electronics, Inc.
Fujitsu Ten Co.,
Ltd.

Harman International Industries, Inc. Kenwood
Corporation
Matsushita
Electric

Pioneer
Corporation
Toshiba Alpine

Hyundai Autonet Co., Ltd Industrial Co.,
Ltd.

 Automotive
Technology
Corporation

Personal Computer

Asustek
Computer, Inc.

Cyberlink
Corporation

Intervideo, Inc. Realtek
Semiconductor, Inc.

Creative Technology
Ltd.

Semiconductor Manufacturers

We have licensed to approximately 50 semiconductor manufacturers the right to incorporate our technology in their
semiconductors and to sell semiconductors with DTS technology to our hardware manufacturer licensees. Our major
semiconductor−manufacturing customers include the following:

Analog Devices
Broadcom Corporation

Fujitsu Limited
LSI Logic Recorder
Corporation

MediaTek, Inc.
Sigma Designs, Inc.

Cirrus Logic, Inc.
Freescale
Semiconductor, Inc.

Matsushita Electrical
Industrial Co., Ltd.

Texas
Instruments, Inc.
Yamaha Corporation

Content Providers

We have also provided our Coherent Acoustics technology to many of the leading home video and music content providers
including DreamWorks Home Entertainment, New Line Home Entertainment, Inc., and Warner Bros. Records, Inc. To date,
thousands of DVD titles have been produced with DTS digital multi−channel audio tracks.
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Cinema Markets

The major film studios in the United States are all customers of ours. These studios, which released most of their major feature
films in the DTS format in 2006, are listed below.

20th Century Fox Paramount Pictures Universal Pictures
Buena Vista PicturesMGM

Pictures/Sony/Columbia
Warner Bros.
Pictures

DreamWorks SKG New Line Cinema Corp.

In addition, we sell our playback equipment to movie theaters, including the following:

Carmike Cinemas Odeon Limited Regal Entertainment
Cinemark Rave Motion Pictures

Digital Images Markets

Our Digital Images division’s customers primarily include major film and television distributors, including:

Disney Worldwide
Services

Paramount Pictures /
CBS Television

20th Century Fox

LucasFilm Sony / MGM Pictures Warner Bros
Television

Sales, Marketing, and Support

Consumer Products

We have a licensing team that markets our technology directly to large consumer electronic products manufacturers and
semiconductor manufacturers. This team includes employees located in the United States, China, England, Hong Kong, Japan,
Northern Ireland, and Taiwan. We believe that by locating staff near the leading consumer electronics and semiconductor
manufacturers we can enhance our sales and business development efforts.

We market our digital sound encoding equipment directly to the content providers and audio professionals serving the consumer
electronics market. We believe that allowing easy access to DTS encoders will result in more DTS content, which we believe will
drive consumer demand for DTS−enabled electronics products.

Film Producers and Distributors

Our post−production department, senior management, and liaison offices market our products and services directly to individual
film producers and distributors worldwide.

Movie Theaters

We sell our cinema playback systems to movie theaters through a direct sales force and a network of independent dealers. To date,
most of our sales and marketing efforts have been focused in the United States, Western Europe, and in targeted markets in Asia and
Latin America. We have also begun to focus our efforts on pursuing theater companies that have a large concentration of movie
theaters in selected foreign countries such as India, China, and Eastern Europe.

Research and Development

We have a group of 72 engineers and scientists, including seven PhDs, focused on research and development. This group oversees
our product development efforts and is responsible for implementing
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our technology into our existing and emerging products. We carry out research and development activities at our corporate
headquarters in Agoura Hills, California and at our facilities in Bangor, Northern Ireland; Vancouver, Canada; and Burbank,
California.

Our research and development expenses totaled approximately $6.1 million during 2004, $9.9 million during 2005, and $12.3
million during 2006. We expect that we will continue to commit significant resources to applications engineering efforts, particularly
in support of the new high definition disc standards, and to research and development in the future.

Governmental and Industry Standards

There are a variety of governmental and industry−related organizations that are responsible for adopting system and product
standards. Standards are important in many technology−focused industries as they help to assure compatibility across a system or
series of products. Generally, standards adoption occurs on either a mandatory basis, requiring the existence of a particular technology
or feature, or an optional basis, meaning that a particular technology or feature may be, but is not required to be, utilized.

We actively participate in a variety of standards organizations worldwide, including the DVD Forum, Blu−ray Disc Association,
Digital Video Broadcast Project, International Engineering Consortium, Digital Living Network Alliance, High−Definition
Multimedia Interface Standard, Media Oriented Systems Transport Bus, Audio Engineering Society and Society for Motion Picture
and Television Engineers. We anticipate being involved in a number of other standards organizations as appropriate to facilitate the
implementation of our technology.

We believe the market for audio and audio/video products is very standards driven and our active participation with standards
organizations is important as we work to include our technology in standards or change our status from optional to mandatory where
possible. We believe our standards involvement also provides us early visibility into future opportunities.

In the consumer products area, we are members of the DVD Forum and Blu−ray Disc Association. In both organizations we are
specifically involved in several working groups and expert groups, and have obtained mandatory status in both the HD−DVD and
Blu−ray Disc formats. For DVD−Video, we have obtained optional status for our Coherent Acoustics technology. Through our
participation in standards setting, we have expanded the supported specification of our codec, increasing the audio quality and number
of channels. Our technology has been accepted as an optional format in the DVD−Audio Recordable specification and we are
currently involved in the working groups for Interactive DVD and DVD recording specifications for both audio and high definition
video.

In the digital broadcast area, we participate in the Digital Video Broadcast Project, or DVB, and the Advanced Television Systems
Committee, or ATSC. In late 2002 our technology was accepted as an optional audio format in the DVB Specification.

We actively participate in the major industry associations that publish research and establish standards. These include the Society
of Motion Picture and Television Engineers and, in particular, the committees relating to digital cinema, and the Audio Engineering
Society.

We have seven employees and consultants focused on standards activities, including one in Europe, one in Japan, one in Korea,
and four in the United States. We also employ additional resources as necessary to assist with specific standards−related tasks.

Competition

We face intense competition in each of our markets and expect competition to intensify in the future. Our primary competitor is
Dolby Laboratories, who develops and markets digital multi−channel audio
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products and services. Except with respect to image enhancement and restoration, we compete with Dolby in nearly all of our markets
and product categories.

Dolby was founded over 40 years ago and for many years was the only significant provider of audio technologies. Dolby’s
long−standing market position, brand, business relationships, and inclusion in various industry standards provide it with a strong
competitive position.

In addition to Dolby, we also compete in specific product markets with Coding Technologies, Fraunhofer Institut Integrierte
Schaltungen, Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V., Meridian Audio Limited, Microsoft Corporation, Smart Devices, Inc., Sony
Corporation, Thomson, Ultra Stereo Labs, Inc., and various consumer electronics products manufacturers. Many of these competitors
have longer operating histories and significantly greater resources or greater name recognition than we do.

We believe that the principal competitive factors in each of our markets include some or all of the following:

•  technology performance, flexibility, and range of application;

•  quality and reliability of products and services;

•  brand recognition and reputation;

•  inclusion in industry standards;

•  price;

•  relationships with film producers and distributors and with semiconductor and consumer electronics manufacturers;

•  availability of compatible high−quality audio content; and

•  timeliness and relevance of new product introductions.

We have been successful in penetrating the consumer, cinema, and digital images markets and building and maintaining market
share. Most major feature−film releases in the United States are encoded in our format, many top selling and premier edition DVDs
contain digital multi−channel soundtracks in our format, a substantial majority of consumer electronics products with digital
multi−channel capability incorporate our technology, trademarks, or know−how, and many of the most valuable film properties in the
world have been restored using our process. Our success has been due in large part to our ability to position our brand as a premium
offering that contains superior proprietary technology, the quality of our customer service, our inclusion in industry standards, and our
industry relationships.

We believe there are significant barriers to entry in our key markets. In the film−based cinema market, there are three
well−established formats—DTS, Dolby, and Sony—and we believe it would be very difficult for a new entrant to penetrate the
market. Key barriers to entry include physical limitations on the film, intellectual property coverage, and the reluctance of the film
studios to pay additional license fees and theater operators to purchase additional playback equipment. In the consumer electronics
products market, the standards relating to DVD−Video are well established and support a limited number of technologies including
DTS Coherent Acoustics. In the digital images market, we believe that we have a significant lead in automating the enhancement and
restoration of television and motion picture images through the use of sophisticated proprietary software algorithms.

Recent Developments

On February 20, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema business to
enable us to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game console, personal
computer, portable and broadcast markets. The sales
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process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007. The DTS Digital Cinema business will focus on the emerging and
potentially large market for digital cinema products and services. Beginning in the first quarter of 2007, we expect to report financial
results related to our DTS Digital Cinema business as “discontinued operations.”

On January 30, 2007 we announced an agreement with Digital Cinema Ltd., or DCL, to install and manage a trial deployment of
25 digital cinema systems in Ireland. We believe this was an important milestone for our DTS Digital Cinema business as it enabled
us to showcase our many strengths—the breadth of our capabilities, the depth of our knowledge of the cinema environment, and our
ability to respond to customer needs.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 325 employees, which includes 72 employees in engineering, technical services, and research
and development, 62 employees in production and operations, 99 employees in sales, marketing, service, and support, 40 employees in
accounting and information technology, and 52 employees in senior management and administration. Of the 325 total employees,
239 work in the United States and 86 work in our various international locations, including 59 in the United Kingdom. None of our
employees are subject to a collective bargaining agreement, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe our relations
with our employees are satisfactory. Our future success depends on our ability to attract, motivate, and retain highly−qualified
technical and management personnel. From time to time, we also employ independent contractors to support our product development,
sales, marketing, business development, information technology and administration organizations.

Website Access to SEC Filings

We maintain an Internet website at www.dts.com. We make available free of charge through our Internet website our annual report
on Form 10−K, quarterly reports on Form 10−Q, current reports on Form 8−K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.

Materials we file with the SEC may be read and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington,
D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1−800−SEC−0330.
The SEC also maintains an Internet website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding our Company that we file electronically with the SEC.
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Item 1A.  Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS

Set forth below and elsewhere in this report and in other documents we file with the SEC are risks and uncertainties that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from the results contemplated by the forward−looking statements contained in this report
and other public statements we make. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your
investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

The sale of our DTS Digital Cinema business or any failure to successfully manage and complete an undertaken sales
transaction could adversely affect our business and operating results.

In order to better address rapidly evolving markets, meet the needs of customers and increase stockholder value, we are proceeding
with the sale of our DTS Digital Cinema business. The sales process may be costly. The sale might not be accomplished by the end of
2007 or at all. The sales process requires significant time and attention from our management, finance, accounting and legal teams,
which could disrupt our day−to−day operations and shift the allocation of these resources away from matters related to our core
business. In addition, implementing any transaction would involve a number of operational, legal and, possibly, regulatory steps.
Implementation could be costly, cause further disruption to our day−to−day operations, and result in the loss of customers and/or sales
revenue, which could cause our business and operating results to suffer. Furthermore, implementation of a sale is a complicated
process and there is a risk that we may not be successful in the execution of our sales strategy, which could cause our business to
suffer and our stock price to decline.

Our business and prospects depend on the strength of our brand, and if we do not maintain and strengthen our brand, our
business will be materially harmed.

Establishing, maintaining and strengthening our “DTS” brand is critical to our success. Our brand identity is key to maintaining
and expanding our business and entering new markets. Our success depends in large part on our reputation for providing high quality
products, services and technologies to the entertainment industry and the consumer electronics products industry. If we fail to promote
and maintain our brand successfully, our business and prospects may suffer. Moreover, we believe that the likelihood that our
technologies will be adopted in industry standards depends, in part, upon the strength of our brand, because professional organizations
and industry participants are more likely to incorporate technologies developed by a well−respected and well−known brand into
standards. Maintaining and strengthening our brand will depend heavily on our ability to develop innovative technologies for the
entertainment industry, to continue to provide high quality products and services, and manage brand transition in connection with the
process of selling the DTS Digital Cinema business, which we may not do successfully.

We may not be able to evolve our technology, products, and services or develop new technology, products, and services that are
acceptable to our customers or the changing market.

The market for our technology, products, and services is characterized by:

•  rapid technological change;

•  new and improved product introductions;

•  changing customer demands;

•  evolving industry standards; and
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•  product obsolescence.

Our future success depends on our ability to enhance our existing technology, products, and services and to develop acceptable
new technology, products, and services on a timely basis. The development of enhanced and new technology, products, and services is
a complex and uncertain process requiring high levels of innovation, highly−skilled engineering and development personnel, and the
accurate anticipation of technological and market trends. We may not be able to identify, develop, market, or support new or enhanced
technology, products, or services on a timely basis, if at all. Furthermore, our new technology, products, and services may never gain
market acceptance, and we may not be able to respond effectively to evolving consumer demands, technological changes, product
announcements by competitors, or emerging industry standards. For example, we may not be able to effectively address concerns in
the film and music industries relating to piracy in our current or future products. Any failure to respond to these changes or concerns
would likely prevent our technology, products, and services from gaining market acceptance or maintaining market share and could
lead to our technology, products and services becoming obsolete.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property rights, our ability to compete could be harmed.

Protection of our intellectual property is critical to our success. Patent, trademark, copyright, and trade secret laws and
confidentiality and other contractual provisions afford only limited protection and may not adequately protect our rights or permit us
to gain or keep any competitive advantage. We face numerous risks in protecting our intellectual property rights, including the
following:

•  our patents may be challenged or invalidated by our competitors;

•  our pending patent applications may not issue, or if issued, may not provide meaningful protection for related products or
proprietary rights;

•  we may not be able to prevent the unauthorized disclosure or use of our technical knowledge or other trade secrets by
employees, consultants, and advisors;

•  we may not be able to practice our trade secrets as a result of patent protection afforded a third−party for such product,
technique or process;

•  the laws of foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States,
and mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual property rights may be inadequate in foreign countries;

•  our competitors may produce competitive products or services that do not unlawfully infringe upon our intellectual property
rights;

•  efforts to identify and prosecute unauthorized uses of our technology are time consuming, expensive, and divert resources from
the operation of our business; and

•  we may be unable to successfully identify or prosecute unauthorized uses of our technology.

As a result, our means of protecting our intellectual property rights and brands may not be adequate. Furthermore, despite our
efforts, third parties may violate, or attempt to violate, our intellectual property rights. Infringement claims and lawsuits would likely
be expensive to resolve and would require management’s time and resources. In addition, we have not sought, and do not intend to
seek, patent and other intellectual property protections in all foreign countries. In countries where we do not have such protection,
products incorporating our technology may be lawfully produced and sold without a license.

We may be sued by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary rights.

Companies that participate in the digital audio, digital image processing, consumer electronics, and entertainment industries hold a
large number of patents, trademarks, and copyrights, and are frequently
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involved in litigation based on allegations of patent infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. Intellectual
property disputes frequently involve highly complex and costly scientific matters, and each party generally has the right to seek a trial
by jury which adds additional costs and uncertainty. Accordingly, intellectual property disputes, with or without merit, could be costly
and time consuming to litigate or settle, and could divert management’s attention from executing our business plan. In addition, our
technology and products may not be able to withstand any third−party claims or rights against their use. If we were unable to obtain
any necessary license following a determination of infringement or an adverse determination in litigation or in interference or other
administrative proceedings, we may need to redesign some of our products to avoid infringing a third party’s rights and could be
required to temporarily or permanently discontinue licensing our products.

We face intense competition. Many of our competitors have greater brand recognition and resources than we do.

The digital audio, digital imaging, consumer electronics, cinema and entertainment markets are intensely competitive, subject to
rapid change, and significantly affected by new product introductions and other market activities of industry participants. Our
principal competitor is Dolby Laboratories, Inc., who competes with us in most of our markets. We also compete with other
companies offering:

•  digital audio technology incorporated into consumer electronics products and entertainment mediums, including Coding
Technologies, Fraunhofer Institut Integrierte Schaltungen, Koninklijke Philips Electronics N.V. (Philips), Meridian Audio
Limited, Microsoft Corporation, Sony Corporation, and Thomson;

•  products for cinema markets, such as Smart Devices, Inc., Ultra Stereo Labs, Inc., Eastman Kodak Company, Screenvision
Cinema Network LLC, National CineMedia LLC, Doremi Labs, Inc. and Unique Digital Ltd.;

•  digital image processing, enhancement and restoration services, including Ascent Media Group, EFILM LLC, Imax
Corporation, Laser Pacific Media Corporation, Modern Video Film, Inc., Sunset Digital, Technicolor Media Services, and
Warner Bros. Entertainment, Inc.

•  products for image processing including da Vinci Systems, LLC, Digital Vision AB, Mathematical Technologies, Inc., Pixel
Farm Ltd., Snell and Wilcox, Teranex Incorporated, and The Foundry Visionmongers Ltd.

Many of our current and potential competitors, including Dolby, enjoy substantial competitive advantages, including:

•  greater name recognition;

•  a longer operating history;

•  more developed distribution channels and deeper relationships with our common customer base;

•  a more extensive customer base;

•  digital technologies that provide features that ours do not;

•  broader product and service offerings;

•  greater resources for competitive activities, such as research and development, strategic acquisitions, alliances, joint ventures,
sales and marketing, and lobbying industry and government standards;

•  more technicians and engineers; and
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•  greater technical support.

As a result, these current and potential competitors may be able to respond more quickly and effectively than we can to new or
changing opportunities, technologies, standards, or customer requirements.

In addition to the competitive advantages described above, Dolby also enjoys other unique competitive strengths relative to us. For
example, it introduced multi−channel audio technology before we did and has a larger base of installed movie theaters for its cinema
playback equipment. Its technology has been incorporated in significantly more DVD−Video films than our technology. It has also
achieved mandatory standard status in product categories that we have not, including DVD−Video and DVD−Audio Recordable, for
its stereo technology and terrestrial digital television broadcasts in the United States. It also currently has more depth in digital cinema.
As a result of these factors, Dolby has a competitive advantage in selling its digital multi−channel audio technology to consumer
electronics products manufacturers and in selling products and services designed for use in the digital cinema space.

Sony Corporation is both a competitor and a significant customer in most of our markets. If Sony decides to eliminate the use of
our technology in its products or to compete with us more aggressively in our markets, the revenues that we derive from Sony would
be lower than expected.

We do not expect sales of traditional consumer DVD players to sustain their past growth rates. To the extent that sales of DVD
players and home theater systems level off or decline, or alternative technologies in which we do not participate replace DVDs
as a dominant medium for consumer video entertainment, our business will be adversely affected.

Growth in our business over the past several years is due in large part to the rapid growth in sales of DVD players and home
theater systems incorporating our technologies. As the markets for DVD players mature, we do not expect sales of traditional
consumer DVD players to sustain their past growth rates. To the extent that sales of DVD players and home theater systems level off
or decline, our business will be adversely affected. Additionally, the release and consumer adoption of next−generation optical disc
players has only just begun. There are currently two potential, incompatible formats for high−definition optical disc format, and
consumers may not react favorably to having to make a choice between formats. There is also the risk of consumer confusion and
frustration over the inability of a given format player to play a disc in the competing format. The slow uptake by consumers of these
new formats, as well as the inability of traditional DVD players to sustain their past growth rates, could adversely affect our business,
as revenue and earnings derived from these new players and associated home theater system sales may not fully replace the anticipated
decline in revenue and earnings associated with traditional DVD players and home theater systems. Even assuming resolution of the
competing disc format conflict, the rate of consumer adoption and ultimate penetration of next−generation optical disc players is
uncertain and may be slower than past growth rates of traditional DVD players. In addition, if new technologies are developed for use
with DVDs or new technologies are developed that substantially compete with or replace DVDs as a dominant medium for consumer
video entertainment, our business, operating results and prospects will be adversely affected.

We have limited control over existing and potential customers’ and licensees’ decisions to include our technology in certain of
their product offerings.

We are dependent on our customers and licensees—including consumer electronics products manufacturers, semiconductor
manufacturers, movie theaters, producers and distributors of content for music, films, videos, and games and builders and integrators
of digital cinema networks—to incorporate our technology in their products, purchase our products and services, or release their
content in our proprietary DTS audio format. Although we have contracts and license agreements with many of these
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companies other than builders and integrators of digital cinema networks, these agreements do not require any minimum purchase
commitments, are on a non−exclusive basis, and do not require incorporation or use of our technology, trademarks or services. Our
customers, licensees and other manufacturers might not utilize our technology or services in the future.

If we are unable to maintain and increase the amount of entertainment content released with DTS audio soundtracks, demand
for the technology, products, and services that we offer to consumer electronics products manufacturers may significantly
decline.

We expect to derive a significant percentage of our revenues from the technology, products, and services that we offer to
manufacturers of consumer electronics products. To date, the most significant driver for the use of our technology in the home theater
market has been the release of major movie titles with DTS audio soundtracks. We also believe that demand for our DTS audio
technology in emerging markets for multi−channel audio, including homes, cars, personal computers, and video games and consoles,
will be based on the number, quality, and popularity of the audio DVDs, computer software programs, and video games released with
DTS audio soundtracks. Although we have existing relationships with many leading providers of movie, music, computer, and video
game content, we do not have contracts that require any of these parties to develop and release content with DTS audio soundtracks. In
addition, we may not be successful in maintaining existing relationships or developing relationships with other existing providers or
new market entrants that provide content. As a result, we cannot assure you that a significant amount of content in movies, audio
DVDs, computer software programs, video games, or other entertainment mediums will be released with DTS audio soundtracks. If
the amount, variety, and popularity of entertainment content released with DTS audio soundtracks do not increase, consumer
electronics products manufacturers that pay us per−unit licensing fees may discontinue offering DTS playback capabilities in the
consumer electronics products that they sell.

Declining retail prices for consumer electronics products or video content could force us to lower the license or other fees we
charge our customers.

The market for consumer electronics products is intensely competitive and price sensitive. Retail prices for consumer electronics
products that include our DTS audio technology, such as DVD players and home theater systems, have decreased significantly and we
expect prices to continue to decrease for the foreseeable future. Declining prices for consumer electronics products could create
downward pressure on the licensing fees we currently charge our customers who integrate our technology into the consumer
electronics products that they sell and distribute. Most of the consumer electronics products that include our audio technology also
include Dolby’s multi−channel audio technology. As a result of pricing pressure, consumer electronics products manufacturers who
manufacture products in which our audio technology is not a mandatory standard could decide to exclude our DTS audio technology
from their products altogether.

The market for consumer video products is also intensely competitive and price sensitive. Retail prices for consumer video
products have experienced price pressure and we expect this price pressure to continue for the foreseeable future. Declining retail
prices for such video products could create downward pressure on the fees we charge our customers for the image processing,
enhancement and restoration services we provide. If the motion picture studios, content owners, producers or distributors were to
believe that the existing image quality is satisfactory or that the pricing for our services is too high, they could decide to not use our
services altogether.
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Our licensing revenue depends in large part upon semiconductor manufacturers incorporating our technologies into integrated
circuits, or ICs, for sale to our consumer electronics product licensees and if, for any reason, our technologies are not
incorporated in these ICs or fewer ICs are sold that incorporate our technologies, our operating results would be adversely
affected.

Our licensing revenue from consumer electronics product manufacturers depends in large part upon the availability of ICs, that
implement our technologies. IC manufacturers incorporate our technologies into these ICs, which are then incorporated in consumer
electronics products. We do not manufacture these ICs, but rather depend on IC manufacturers to develop, produce and then sell them
to licensed consumer electronics product manufacturers. We do not control the IC manufacturers’ decisions whether or not to
incorporate our technologies into their ICs, and we do not control their product development or commercialization efforts. If these IC
manufacturers are unable or unwilling, for any reason, to implement our technologies into their ICs, or if, for any reason, they sell
fewer ICs incorporating our technologies, our operating results will be adversely affected.

We rely on the accuracy of our customers’ manufacturing reports for reporting and collecting our revenues, and if these
reports are untimely or incorrect, our revenues could be delayed or inaccurately reported.

A significant percentage of our revenues are generated from our consumer electronics products manufacturer customers who
license and incorporate our technology in their consumer electronics products. Under our existing arrangements, these customers pay
us per−unit licensing fees based on the number of consumer electronics products manufactured that incorporate our technology. We
rely on our customers to accurately report the number of units manufactured in collecting our license fees, preparing our financial
reports, projections, budgets, and directing our sales and product development efforts. Most of our license agreements permit us to
audit our customers, but audits are generally expensive, time consuming, difficult to manage effectively, dependent in large part on the
cooperation of our licensees and the quality of the records they keep, and could harm our customer relationships. If any of our
customer reports understate the number of products they manufacture, we may not collect and recognize revenues to which we are
entitled.

Because we expect our operating expenses to increase in the future, we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability.

Although we have been in business since 1990, we have only achieved annual profitability since fiscal 2001. We expect our
operating expenses to increase as we, among other things:

•  expand our domestic and international sales and marketing activities;

•  develop and roll out our digital cinema products and services;

•  proceed with the sale of our DTS Digital Cinema business;

•  restructure our international operations;

•  adopt a more product−centric business model which is expected to entail additional hiring;

•  acquire businesses or technologies and integrate them into our existing organization;

•  increase our research and development efforts to advance our existing technology, products, and services and develop new
technology, products, and services;

•  hire additional personnel, including engineers and other technical staff;

•  upgrade our operational and financial systems, procedures, and controls; and

•  continue to assume the responsibilities of being a public company.
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As a result, we will need to grow our revenues in order to maintain and increase our profitability. In addition, we may fail to
accurately estimate and assess our increased operating expenses as we grow.

Our future capital needs are uncertain and we may need to raise additional funds in the future, and such funds may not be
available on acceptable terms or at all.

Our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including:

•  acceptance of, and demand for, our products and technology;

•  the costs of developing new products or technology;

•  the extent to which we invest in new technology and research and development projects, including without limitation, digital
cinema;

•  the number and timing of acquisitions and other strategic transactions;

•  the extent to which we deploy our digital cinema products to theaters;

•  the costs associated with our expansion, if any; and

•  the sale of our DTS Digital Cinema business.

In the future, we may need to raise additional funds, and such funds may not be available on favorable terms, or at all.
Furthermore, if we issue equity or debt securities to raise additional funds, our existing stockholders may experience dilution, and the
new equity or debt securities may have rights, preferences, and privileges senior to those of our existing stockholders. If we cannot
raise funds on acceptable terms, we may not be able to develop or enhance our products and services, execute our business plan, take
advantage of future opportunities, or respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated customer requirements. This may materially
harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

We have a limited operating history in our new and evolving markets.

Although the first movie with a DTS audio soundtrack was released in 1993, we did not enter the home theater market until 1996,
and our technology has only recently been incorporated into other consumer electronics markets, such as car audio, personal
computers, video games and consoles, portable electronics devices, and digital satellite and cable broadcast products. In addition,
while we have completed over 100 digital image processing, enhancement and restoration film projects, it is only recently that a large
number of these projects have been completed. As a result, the demand for our technology, products, and services and the income
potential of these businesses are unproven. In addition, because the market for digital audio technology and image services is
relatively new and rapidly evolving, we have limited insight into trends that may emerge and affect our business. We may make errors
in predicting and reacting to relevant business trends, which could harm our business. Before investing in our common stock, you
should consider the risks, uncertainties, and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in new and rapidly evolving markets
such as ours. We may not be able to successfully address any or all of these risks.

Our technology and products are complex and may contain errors that could cause us to lose customers, damage our
reputation, or incur substantial costs.

Our technology or products could contain errors that could cause our products or technology to operate improperly and could
cause unintended consequences. If our products or technology contain errors we could be required to replace them, and if any such
errors cause unintended consequences we could face claims for product liability. Although we generally attempt to contractually limit
our exposure to incidental and consequential damages, as well as provide insurance coverage to such events, if these contract
provisions are not enforced or are unenforceable for any reason, if liabilities arise that are not
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effectively limited, or if our insurance coverage is inadequate to satisfy the liability, we could incur substantial costs in defending
and/or settling product liability claims.

Issues arising from the implementation of our new enterprise resource planning system could affect our operating results and
ability to manage our business effectively.

We recently began to implement an enterprise resource planning, or ERP, system to enhance operating efficiencies and provide
more effective management of our business operations. Implementing a new ERP system is costly and involves risks inherent in the
conversion to a new computer system, including disruption to our normal accounting procedures and internal control over financial
reporting and problems achieving accuracy in the conversion of electronic data. Failure to properly or adequately address these issues
could result in increased costs, the diversion of management’s and employees’ attention and resources and could materially adversely
affect our operating results, internal control over financial reporting and ability to manage our business effectively. While the ERP
system is intended to improve and enhance our information systems, large scale implementation of new information systems exposes
us to the risks of start up of the new system and integration of that system with our existing systems and processes, including possible
disruption of our financial reporting, which could lead to a failure to make required filings under the federal securities laws on a
timely basis. In addition, if we fail to implement the ERP system or fail to implement the ERP system successfully, we will continue
to rely on our current information systems.

We cannot be certain of the future effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting or the impact thereof on our
operations or the market price of our common stock.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002, we are required to include in our annual reports on Form 10−K our
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting. We cannot assure you that our system of internal
controls will be effective in the future as our operations and control environment change. If we cannot adequately maintain the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting, our financial reporting may be inaccurate. If reporting errors actually
occur, we could be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities, such as the SEC. These results could adversely
affect our financial results or the market price of our common stock. If our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to
provide us with an unqualified report as to the adequacy of our internal controls over financial reporting as required by Section 404 of
the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002, investors could lose confidence in the reliability of our financial statements, which could result in a
decrease in the value of our stock.

We are subject to additional risks associated with our international operations.

We market and sell our products and services outside the United States, and currently have employees located in more than ten
countries worldwide. Many of our customers and licensees are located outside the United States. As a key component of our business
strategy, we intend to expand our international sales. During fiscal 2006, approximately 71% of our revenues were derived
internationally. We face numerous risks in doing business outside the United States, including:

•  unusual or burdensome foreign laws or regulatory requirements or unexpected changes to those laws or requirements;

•  tariffs, trade protection measures, import or export licensing requirements, trade embargos, and other trade barriers;

•  difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations;

•  competition from foreign companies;
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•  dependence on foreign distributors and their sales channels;

•  longer accounts receivable collection cycles and difficulties in collecting accounts receivable;

•  less effective and less predictable protection of intellectual property;

•  changes in the political or economic condition of a specific country or region, particularly in emerging markets;

•  fluctuations in the value of foreign currency versus the U.S. dollar and the cost of currency exchange; and

•  potentially adverse tax consequences.

Such factors could cause our future international sales to decline.

Our business practices in international markets are also subject to the requirements of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. If any of
our employees is found to have violated these requirements, we could be subject to significant fines and other penalties.

Our international revenue is mostly denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar and
foreign currencies may make our technology, products, and services more expensive for international customers, which could cause
them to decrease their purchases from us. Expenses for our subsidiaries are denominated in their respective local currencies.
Significant fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies could have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements. The main foreign currencies we encounter in our operations are the Yen, Euro, RMB and GBP. We do not
currently engage in currency hedging activities to limit the risk of exchange rate fluctuations.

We face risks in expanding our business operations in China.

One of our key strategies is to expand our business operations in China. However, we may be unsuccessful in implementing this
strategy as planned or at all. Factors that could inhibit our successful expansion into China include its historically poor recognition of
intellectual property rights and poor performance in stopping counterfeiting and piracy activity. If we are unable to successfully stop
unauthorized use of our intellectual property and assure compliance by our Chinese licensees, we could experience increased
operational and enforcement costs both inside and outside China.

Even if we are successful in expanding into China, we may be greatly impacted by the political, economic, and military conditions
in China, Taiwan, North Korea, and South Korea. These countries have periodically conducted military exercises in or near the other’s
territorial waters and airspace. Such disputes may continue or escalate, resulting in economic embargos, disruptions in shipping, or
even military hostilities. This could severely harm our business by interrupting or delaying production or shipment of our products or
products that incorporate our technology.

A prolonged economic downturn could materially harm our business.

Negative trends in the general economy, including trends resulting from actual or threatened military action by the United States
and threats of terrorist attacks on the United States and abroad, could cause a decrease in consumer spending on entertainment in
general. Any reduction in consumer confidence or disposable income in general may affect the demand for consumer electronics
products that incorporate our digital audio technology and demand by film studios and movie theaters for our cinema products and
services.

32

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



We may not successfully address problems encountered in connection with any acquisitions.

We acquired DTS DI in January 2005, and we expect to consider additional opportunities to acquire or make investments in other
technologies, products, and businesses that could enhance our technical capabilities, complement our current products and services, or
expand the breadth of our markets, including without limitation the potential acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Avica. We
have a limited history of acquiring and integrating businesses. Acquisitions and strategic investments involve numerous risks,
including:

•  problems assimilating the purchased technologies, products, or business operations;

•  significant future charges relating to in−process research and development and the amortization of intangible assets;

•  significant amount of goodwill that is not amortizable and is subject to annual impairment review;

•  problems maintaining uniform standards, procedures, controls, and policies;

•  unanticipated costs associated with the acquisition, including accounting charges, capital expenditures, and transaction
expenses;

•  diversion of management’s attention from our core business;

•  adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

•  risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience;

•  unanticipated or unknown liabilities relating to the acquired businesses;

•  the need to integrate accounting, management information, manufacturing, human resources and other administrative systems
to permit effective management; and

•  potential loss of key employees of acquired organizations.

If we fail to properly evaluate and execute acquisitions and strategic investments, our management team may be distracted from
our day−to−day operations, our business may be disrupted, and our operating results may suffer. In addition, if we finance acquisitions
by issuing equity or convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders would be diluted. Foreign acquisitions involve unique risks
in addition to those mentioned above, including those related to integration of operations across different geographies, cultures and
languages, currency risks and risks associated with the particular economic, political and regulatory environment in specific countries.
Also, the anticipated benefit of our acquisitions may not materialize, whether because of failure to obtain stockholder approval or
otherwise. Future acquisitions could result in potentially dilutive issuances of our equity securities, the incurrence of debt, contingent
liabilities or amortization expenses, or write−offs of goodwill, any of which could harm our operating results or financial condition.
Future acquisitions may also require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on favorable terms or
at all.

We may have difficulty managing any growth that we might experience.

As a result of a combination of internal growth and growth through acquisitions, we expect to continue to experience growth in the
scope of our operations and the number of our employees. If this growth continues, it will place a significant strain on our
management team and on our operational and financial systems, procedures, and controls. Our future success will depend in part on
the ability of our management team to manage any growth effectively. This will require our management to:

•  hire and train additional personnel in the United States and internationally;
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•  implement and improve our operational and financial systems, procedures, and controls;

•  maintain our cost structure at an appropriate level based on the revenues we generate;

•  manage multiple concurrent development projects; and

•  manage operations in multiple time zones with different cultures and languages.

Any failure to successfully manage our growth could distract management’s attention, and result in our failure to execute our
business plan. For instance, our acquisition of DTS DI required significant time and attention from our management team. Any future
growth could cause similar management challenges or create distractions.

We may experience fluctuations in our operating results.

We have historically experienced moderate seasonality in our business due to our business mix and the nature of our products. In
our consumer business, consumer electronics manufacturing activities are generally lowest in the first calendar quarter of each year,
and increase progressively throughout the remainder of the year. Manufacturing output is generally strongest in the third and fourth
quarters as our technology licensees increase manufacturing to prepare for the holiday buying season. Since recognition of revenues in
our consumer business generally lags manufacturing activity by one quarter, our revenues and earnings from the consumer business
are generally lowest in the second quarter. Film licensing revenues are generally strongest in the second and fourth quarters due to the
abundance of movies typically released during the summer and year−end holiday seasons. The introduction of new products and
inclusion of our technologies in new and rapidly growing markets can distort and amplify the seasonality described above. For
example, the introduction of next generation optical disc players may result in an overall near−term slowdown in our business as sales
of standard definition players slow in anticipation of purchasing next generation products, but purchases of next generation products
are in an early−adopter only phase. Similar issues may affect our cinema hardware business during the expected transition to digital
cinema. Our revenues may continue to be subject to fluctuations, seasonal or otherwise, in the future. Unanticipated fluctuations,
whether due to seasonality, product cycles, or otherwise, could cause us to miss our earnings projections, or could lead to higher than
normal variation in short−term earnings, either of which could cause our stock price to decline.

In addition, we actively engage in intellectual property compliance and enforcement activities focused on identifying third parties
who have either incorporated our technology, trademarks, or know−how without a license or who have underreported to us the amount
of royalties owed under license agreements with us. As a result of these activities, from time to time, we may recognize royalty
revenues that relate to consumer electronics manufacturing activities from prior periods and we may incur expenditures related to
enforcement activity. These expenditures and royalty recoveries, as applicable, may cause revenues to be higher than expected, or net
profit to be lower than expected, during a particular reporting period and may not recur in future reporting periods. Such fluctuations
in our revenues and operating results may cause declines in our stock price.

Even if our technologies are adopted as an industry standard for a particular market, market participants may not widely adopt
our technologies.

Even if a standards−setting body mandates our technologies for a particular market, our technologies may not be the sole
technologies adopted for that market as an industry standard. Accordingly, our business may depend upon participants in that market
choosing to adopt our technologies instead of or in addition to competitive technologies that also may be acceptable under such
standard.
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Our licensing of industry standard technologies can be subject to limitations that could adversely affect our business and
prospects.

When a standards−setting body adopts our technologies as explicit industry standards, we generally must agree to license such
technologies on a fair, reasonable and non−discriminatory basis, which could limit our control over the use of these technologies. In
these situations, we may be required to limit the royalty rates we charge for these technologies, which could adversely affect our
business. Furthermore, we may be unable to limit to whom we license such technologies, and may be unable to restrict many terms of
the license. From time to time, we may be subject to claims that our licenses of our industry standard technologies may not conform to
the requirements of the standards−setting body. Claimants in such cases could seek to restrict or change our licensing practices or our
ability to license our technologies in ways that could injure our reputation and otherwise materially and adversely affect our business,
operating results and prospects.

Our ability to develop proprietary technology in markets in which “open standards” are adopted may be limited, which could
adversely affect our ability to generate revenue.

Standards−setting bodies, such as those for digital cinema technologies, may require the use of so−called “open standards,”
meaning that the technologies necessary to meet those standards are publicly available. The use of open standards may reduce our
opportunity to generate revenue, as open standards technologies are based upon non−proprietary technology platforms in which no
one company maintains ownership over the dominant technologies.

We are dependent on our management team and technical talent.

Our success depends, in part, upon the continued availability and contributions of our management team and engineering and
technical personnel because of the complexity of our products and services. Important factors that could cause the loss of key
personnel include:

•  our existing employment agreements with the members of our management team allow such persons to terminate their
employment with us at any time;

•  we do not have employment agreements with a majority of our key engineering and technical personnel;

•  significant portions of the equity awards held by the members of our management team are vested; and

•  equity awards held by some of our executive officers provide for accelerated vesting in the event of a sale or change of control
of our company.

The loss of key personnel or an inability to attract qualified personnel in a timely manner could slow our technology and product
development and harm our ability to execute our business plan.

A loss of one or more of our key customers or licensees in any of our markets could adversely affect our business.

From time to time, one or a small number of our customers or licensees may represent a significant percentage of our revenue.
Although we have agreements with many of these customers, these agreements typically do not require any material minimum
purchases or minimum royalty fees and do not prohibit customers from purchasing products and services from competitors. A decision
by any of our major customers or licensees not to use our technologies, or their failure or inability to pay amounts owed to us in a
timely manner, or at all, could have a significant adverse effect on our business.
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We may have additional tax liabilities.

We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
our worldwide provision for income taxes. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations where
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. We may come under audit by tax authorities. Although we believe our tax estimates are
reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation could be materially different from our historical income tax
provisions and accruals. Based on the results of an audit or litigation, a material effect on our income tax provision, net income or cash
flows in the period or periods for which that determination is made could result.

Current and future governmental and industry standards may significantly limit our business opportunities.

Technology standards are important in the audio and video industry as they help to assure compatibility across a system or series
of products. Generally, standards adoption occurs on either a mandatory basis, requiring a particular technology to be available in a
particular product or medium, or an optional basis, meaning that a particular technology may be, but is not required to be, utilized. For
example, both our digital multi−channel audio technology and Dolby’s have optional status in Standard and High Definition−DVD
and Blu−ray. In the standards for High Definition−DVD and Blu−ray, both DTS and Dolby technologies have been selected as
mandatory standards for two−channel output. However, if either or both of these standards are re−examined or a new standard is
developed, we may not be included as mandatory in any such new or revised standard which would cause revenue growth in our
consumer business to be significantly lower than expected and could have a material adverse affect on our business.

Various national governments have adopted or are in the process of adopting standards for all digital television broadcasts,
including cable, satellite, and terrestrial. In the United States, Dolby’s audio technology has been selected as the sole, mandatory audio
standard for terrestrial digital television broadcasts. As a result, the audio for all digital terrestrial television broadcasts in the United
States must include Dolby’s technology and must exclude any other format, including ours. We do not know whether this standard
will be reopened or amended. If it is not, our audio technology may never be included in that standard. Certain large and developing
markets, such as China, have not fully developed their digital television standards. Our technology may or may not ultimately be
included in these standards.

As new technologies and entertainment media emerge, new standards relating to these technologies or media may develop. New
standards may also emerge in existing markets that are currently characterized by competing formats, such as the market for personal
computers. We may not be successful in our efforts to include our technology in any such standards.

We have limited experience in image processing, enhancement and restoration.

Although we have established relationships with a number of motion picture studios, content owners, producers and distributors,
we do not have any contractual agreements that require them to provide us image content for processing. Further, the demand for
image processing, enhancement and restoration of cinema, home video or broadcast television content may not materialize or
accelerate as we anticipate, which would have a negative impact on our business.

Our revenues from film producers and distributors and from the products and services that we offer to movie theaters would
decline if the major U.S. film producers and distributors decrease or delay the number of films they release using DTS
technology or services.

Although the major U.S. film producers and distributors are customers of ours, we generally do not have contractual arrangements
that require them to use our DTS audio technology or our digital image services. Our cinema and digital images business depends on
our having good relations with these film
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studios and other content owners. A deterioration in our relationship with any of these customers could cause them to stop using our
DTS audio technology or our digital image enhancement services. Any significant decline or delay in the release of motion pictures
with DTS audio soundtracks would decrease the demand for and revenues from the playback products and services that we offer to
movie theaters. In addition, other motion picture studios, content owners, producers, and distributors throughout the world generally
adopt and use the processes and the technologies used by the major U.S. film studios. Therefore, if the major U.S. motion picture
studios, content owners, producers or distributors stop using our technology, we would not only lose the per−movie licensing fee we
receive from these customers, but may also lose per−movie licensing fees from other film studios throughout the world. Furthermore,
poor box−office performance caused by a weak film release calendar or declining consumer interest in the films being released could
have a negative impact on the demand for the products and services we sell to the motion picture industry.

The movie theater industry has suffered and may continue to suffer from an oversupply of screens, which has affected and may
continue to affect demand for the products and services we offer to movie theaters.

Our cinema business depends in part on the construction of new screens and the renovation of existing theaters that install our
DTS playback systems and cinema processors. Over the past decade, aggressive building of megaplexes by companies that operate
movie theaters has generated significant competition and resulted in an oversupply of screens in some domestic and international
markets. The resulting oversupply of screens led to significant declines in revenues per screen and, eventually, to an inability by many
major film exhibitors to satisfy their financial obligations. Several major movie theater operators have reorganized through bankruptcy
proceedings, and many movie theaters have closed. As a result, our playback systems and cinema processors that we previously sold
to movie theaters that have reorganized and closed have been relocated to other theaters or have been available for resale in the
secondary market to movie theaters that might otherwise have purchased these products directly from us. More recently, the industry
has experienced a decline in movie theater attendance. If this decline were to continue, exhibitors could see a decline in revenue per
screen and, potentially, an inability to satisfy their financial obligations resulting in the closure of screens. If movie theater operators
decide to close a significant number of screens in the future or cut their capital spending, demand for our playback systems and
cinema processors will decline. Additionally, the expected transition to digital cinema could harm our legacy cinema business because
operators may decide to delay procurement decisions as they wait to evaluate the widespread roll out of digital cinema, operators may
decide to purchase digital cinema systems that do not require our existing products and services, and as existing screens are
repurposed to digital cinema, the quantity of our existing products on the secondary market may increase significantly. These
developments may harm our business and operating results.

The demand for our current or “legacy” cinema products and production services could decline if the film industry broadly
adopts digital cinema.

If the film industry broadly adopts digital cinema, the demand for our current or “legacy” cinema products and production services
could decline. If, in such circumstances, we are unable to adapt our professional products and production services or replace such
business with new products for the market for digital cinema successfully, our business could be materially adversely affected.

We depend on several sole and limited source suppliers, manufacturers, and distributors for some of our products, and the loss
of any of these suppliers, manufacturers, or distributors could harm our business.

We purchase a small number of parts from sole−source suppliers. In addition, our professional audio encoding devices and movie
theater playback systems are manufactured according to our specifications by single third−party manufacturers. Because we have no
direct control over these third−party suppliers and
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manufacturers, interruptions or delays in the products and services provided by these third parties may be difficult to remedy in a
timely fashion. In addition, if such suppliers or manufacturers are incapable of or unwilling to deliver the necessary parts or products,
we may be unable to redesign our technology to work without such parts or find alternative suppliers or manufacturers. In such events,
we could experience interruptions, delays, increased costs, or quality control problems.

We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs upon us and may adversely
affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Some of our operations use substances regulated under various federal, state, local and international laws governing the
environment, including those governing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management, disposal and labeling of
hazardous substances and wastes and the cleanup of contaminated sites. We could incur costs, fines and civil or criminal sanctions,
third−party property damage or personal injury claims, or could be required to incur substantial investigation or remediation costs, if
we were to violate or become liable under environmental laws. Liability under environmental laws can be joint and several and
without regard to comparative fault. The ultimate costs under environmental laws and the timing of these costs are difficult to predict.

We also face increasing complexity in our product design as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the materials
composition of our products, including the restrictions on lead and other hazardous substances that apply to specified electronic
products put on the market in the European Union, or EU, as of July 1, 2006 (Restriction on the Use of Hazardous Substances
Directive 2002/95/EC, also known as the “RoHS Directive”) and similar legislation proposed for China.

For some products, substituting particular components containing regulated hazardous substances can be difficult or costly, and
redesign efforts could result in production delays. Selected products that we maintain in inventory may be rendered obsolete if not in
compliance with the RoHS Directive, which could negatively impact our ability to generate revenue from those products. We could
also face significant costs and liabilities in connection with product take−back legislation. The European Union Directive 2002/96/EC
as amended by 2003/108/EC (Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive also known as the “WEEE Directive”) requires
producers of particular electrical and electronic equipment, including broadcast equipment, to be financially responsible for specified
collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and future covered products. As of December 2006, not all member states within
the EU have enacted enabling legislation under the WEEE Directive, and in the absence of such legislation, it is difficult to determine
the costs to comply with the WEEE Directive.

Other countries, such as China and the United States, may enact similar product−content and take−back legislation, the cumulative
impact of which could significantly increase our operating costs and adversely affect our operating results. We also expect that our
operations, whether manufacturing or licensing, will be affected by other new environmental laws and regulations on an ongoing
basis. Although we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any such new laws and regulations, they will likely result in additional costs
or decreased revenue, and could require that we redesign or change how we manufacture our products, any of which could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

We expect that the price of our common stock will fluctuate substantially.

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and may fluctuate substantially due to many factors,
including:

•  actual or anticipated fluctuations in our results of operations;
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•  market perception of our progress toward announced objectives, including without limitation, the sale of our DTS Digital
Cinema business;

•  announcements of technological innovations by us or our competitors or technology standards;

•  announcements of significant contracts by us or our competitors;

•  changes in our pricing policies or the pricing policies of our competitors;

•  developments with respect to intellectual property rights;

•  the introduction of new products or product enhancements by us or our competitors;

•  the commencement of or our involvement in litigation;

•  our sale of common stock or other securities in the future;

•  conditions and trends in technology industries;

•  changes in market valuation or earnings of our competitors;

•  the trading volume of our common stock;

•  announcements of potential acquisitions;

•  the adoption rate of new products incorporating our or our competitors’ technologies, including next generation optical disc
players;

•  changes in the estimation of the future size and growth rate of our markets; and

•  general economic conditions.

In addition, the stock market in general, and the Nasdaq Global Select Market and the market for technology companies in
particular, has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of those companies. Further, the market prices of securities of technology companies have been particularly volatile.
These broad market and industry factors may materially harm the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating
performance. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s securities, securities class−action litigation
has often been instituted against that company. Such litigation, if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and a diversion
of management’s attention and resources.

Shares of our common stock are relatively illiquid.

As a result of our relatively small public float, our common stock may be less liquid than the common stock of companies with
broader public ownership. Among other things, trading of a relatively small volume of our common shares may have a greater impact
on the trading price for our shares than would be the case if our public float were larger.

Anti−takeover provisions under our charter documents and Delaware law could delay or prevent a change of control and could
also limit the market price of our stock.

Our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Restated Bylaws contain provisions that could delay or prevent a change of control
of our company or changes in our Board of Directors that our stockholders might consider favorable. Some of these provisions:

•  authorize the issuance of preferred stock which can be created and issued by the Board of Directors without prior stockholder
approval, with rights senior to those of the common stock;

•  provide for a classified Board of Directors, with each director serving a staggered three−year term;
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•  prohibit stockholders from filling Board vacancies, calling special stockholder meetings, or taking action by written consent;
and

•  require advance written notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations.

In addition, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporate Law, which may prohibit certain
business combinations with stockholders owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock. These and other provisions in our
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, Restated Bylaws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for stockholders or potential
acquirors to obtain control of our Board or initiate actions that are opposed by the then−current Board, including delay or impede a
merger, tender offer, or proxy contest involving our company. Any delay or prevention of a change of control transaction or changes
in our Board could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2.  Properties

Our corporate headquarters and principal offices are located in Agoura Hills, California, where we lease approximately 54,000
square feet. This space is leased under four different leases, one of which expires in October 2007 and the other three of which expire
in November 2008. We also lease smaller facilities in other locations including the United States, Canada, China, England, France,
Italy, Northern Ireland, Hong Kong and Japan. We believe that our existing space is adequate for our current operations. We believe
that suitable replacement and additional space will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms.

Item 3.  Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of our business, we actively pursue legal remedies to enforce our intellectual property rights and to stop
unauthorized use of our technology and trademarks.

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings. We may, however, become subject to lawsuits from time to time in the
course of our business.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

We did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2006.
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PART II

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “DTSI.” Prior to July 1, 2006 our common
stock was listed on the Nasdaq National Market since our initial public offering on July 9, 2003. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, the high and low sales prices for our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market for periods prior to
July 1, 2006, and Nasdaq Global Select Market from July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006:

High Low

2005:
First Quarter $ 22.00 $ 17.68
Second Quarter $ 19.04 $ 14.76
Third Quarter $ 20.50 $ 16.30
Fourth Quarter $ 17.20 $ 13.44
2006:
First Quarter $ 19.87 $ 14.59
Second Quarter $ 22.22 $ 17.04
Third Quarter $ 22.09 $ 15.57
Fourth Quarter $ 26.99 $ 19.36

As of February 20, 2007 there were approximately 3,400 stockholders of record of our common stock. We believe that the number
of beneficial owners is substantially greater than the number of record holders because a large portion of our common stock is held of
record through brokerage firms in “street name.”
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock to that of the NASDAQ Market Index
and the Russell 2000® Index from July 9, 2003 (the date our common stock began to trade publicly) through December 31, 2006, the
date of our fiscal year end. The graph assumes that a $100 investment was made at the close of trading on July 9, 2003 in our common
ctock and in each index, and that dividends, if any, were reinvested. The stock price performance shown on the graph below should
not be considered indicative of future price performance.

July 10,
2003

December 31,
2003

December 31,
2004

December 30,
2005

December 29,
2006

DTS, Inc. $ 100.00 $ 99.08 $ 80.78 $ 59.39 $ 97.07
Russell 2000 Index 100.00 124.21 145.94 150.79 176.53
NASDAQ Market Index 100.00 123.75 134.15 137.10 151.17
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds to
support our operations and to finance the growth and development of our business. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. Any future determination relating to dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors
and will depend on a number of factors, including our future earnings, capital requirements, financial condition, future prospects, and
other factors as the Board of Directors may deem relevant.

USE OF INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING PROCEEDS

On July 9, 2003, we completed our initial public offering for the sale of 4,091,410 shares of common stock at a price to the public
of $17.00 per share, which resulted in net proceeds of approximately $63.0 million after payment of the underwriters’ commissions
and deductions of offering expenses. All of the shares of common stock sold in the offering were registered under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, (the “Securities Act”) on a Registration Statement on Form S−1 (Reg. No. 333−104761) that was declared effective
by the SEC on July 9, 2003 and a Registration Statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act that was filed on
July 9, 2003 (Reg. No. 333−106920). Subsequent to the offering, we used approximately $22.5 million of our net proceeds to redeem
all outstanding shares of redeemable preferred stock and to pay all accrued but unpaid dividends on such shares through the date of
redemption. The remaining proceeds to us have conformed with our intended use outlined in the prospectus related to the offering.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On August 1, 2006, our Board of Directors authorized, subject to certain business and market conditions, the purchase of up to one
million shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Through March 16, 2007, there were no
shares purchased under this authorization. Any shares repurchased would be considered treasury stock.
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below, we provide you with historical selected consolidated financial data of DTS, Inc. We derived the following
historical data from our audited consolidated financial statements. It is important that you read the selected consolidated financial data
set forth below in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Form 10−K. Our historical results are not
necessarily indicative of the operating results that may be expected in the future. We have described various risks and uncertainties
that could affect future operating results under the heading “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in this Form 10−K.

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005(1) 2006(2)

(In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data
Revenues:

Technology and film licensing $ 31,906 $ 42,229 $ 49,920 $ 56,947 $ 59,053
Product sales and other revenues 9,150 9,473 11,511 18,305 19,261

Total revenues 41,056 51,702 61,431 75,252 78,314
Cost of goods sold:

Technology and film licensing 3,687 4,281 4,451 4,715 4,769
Product sales and other revenues 6,949 6,751 11,711 14,898 15,635

Total cost of goods sold 10,636 11,032 16,162 19,613 20,404
Gross profit 30,420 40,670 45,269 55,639 57,910
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 16,379 20,473 27,644 33,960 41,754
Research and development 3,754 4,987 6,131 9,867 12,334
In−process research and development — — — 2,300 —
Separation and restructuring costs — — — — 4,903(3)

Total operating expenses 20,133 25,460 33,775 46,127 58,991
Income (loss) from operations 10,287 15,210 11,494 9,512 (1,081)
Interest income (expense), net (94) 271 1,447 2,524 4,923
Other income (expense), net (255) (214) (31) 154 —
Income from legal settlement — — 2,601 — —
Income before income taxes 9,938 15,267 15,511 12,190 3,842
Provision for income taxes 3,688 5,368 5,535 4,282 818
Net income 6,250 9,899 9,976 7,908 3,024
Accretion and accrued dividends on preferred

stock (1,848) (1,234) — — —
Net income attributable to common stockholders$ 4,402 $ 8,665 $ 9,976 $ 7,908 $ 3,024

Net income attributable to common stockholders
per common share:
Basic $ 0.99 $ 0.95 $ 0.59 $ 0.46 $ 0.17

Diluted $ 0.47 $ 0.64 $ 0.55 $ 0.43 $ 0.16

Weighted average shares used to compute net
income attributable to common
stockholders per common share:
Basic 4,432 9,166 16,866 17,321 17,623

Diluted 9,329 13,601 18,143 18,310 18,401

(1) Includes the results of operations for DTS Digital Images, Inc. We acquired this business in January 2005. In connection with this acquisition, we incurred a
$2,300 charge for in−process research and development.

(2) Includes $134, $2,989 and $463 in cost of goods sold, selling, general and administrative and research and development, respectively, due to the adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Share−Based Payment” on January 1, 2006. For additional information regarding SFAS
123(R), refer to Footnote 16 of our consolidated financial statements, “Stock−Based Compensation.” Also includes the impact of consolidating Avica, as discussed
in Footnote 3 of our consolidated financial statements, “Consolidation of Avica as a Variable Interest Entity.”

(3) Includes $1,145, $3,000 and $758 for the separation of our business, the early termination of a business agreement and the write−down of DTSE inventory and
other assets, respectively.
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As of December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006(1)

(In thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Cash, cash equivalents, and short−term investments $ 4,051 $ 99,389 $ 114,311 $ 111,417 $ 111,465
Working capital 9,381 110,810 125,573 122,763 120,510
Total assets 25,779 127,495 144,689 158,254 168,200
Total long−term liabilities — — — 1,917 1,466
Mandatorily redeemable preferred stock 21,302 — — — —
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (6,315) 118,871 134,766 144,090 153,816

(1) Includes the impact of consolidating Avica, as discussed in Footnote 3 of our consolidated financial statements, “Consolidation of Avica as a Variable Interest
Entity.”

Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This Annual Report on Form 10−K and the documents incorporated herein by reference contain forward−looking statements based
on our current expectations, estimates and projections about our industry, beliefs, and certain assumptions made by us. Words such as
“believes,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projections,” “may,” “potential,” “plan,” “continue” and words of similar import,
constitute “forward−looking statements.” The forward−looking statements contained in this report involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied by these
statements. These factors include those listed under the “Risk Factors” section contained in Item 1A and elsewhere in this Form 10−K,
and the other documents we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, including our most recent reports on
Form 8−K and Form 10−Q. We cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. We do not undertake
any obligation to revise these forward−looking statements to reflect future events or circumstances.

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and the notes to those statements included elsewhere in this Form 10−K. This discussion may contain
forward−looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward−looking statements as a result of certain factors, such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this
Form 10−K.

Overview
We are a leading provider of entertainment technology, products and services to the audio and image entertainment markets

worldwide. Historically we have been focused on high quality digital multi−channel audio, commonly referred to as surround sound,
which provides more than two−channels of audio, allowing the listener to simultaneously hear discrete sounds from multiple speakers.
Our DTS digital multi−channel audio technology delivers compelling surround sound for the consumer electronics and motion picture
markets. We also provide high quality digital image processing, enhancement and restoration services for motion pictures, digital
cinema, and television content.

We manage our business through three reportable segments—our consumer business, our cinema business, and our digital images
business.

In our consumer business, we derive revenues from licensing our audio technology, trademarks, and know−how under agreements
with substantially all of the major consumer audio electronics manufacturers. Our business model provides for these manufacturers to
pay us a per−unit amount for DTS−enabled products that they manufacture. We also derive revenues from licensing our technology to
consumer semiconductor manufacturers. Through our DTS Entertainment label, we derive revenues from the sale of multi−channel
music titles in our digital multi−channel format.
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In our cinema business, we derive revenues from sales of our playback equipment and cinema processors to movie theaters and
special venues. In addition, we license technology and sell encoding and duplication services to film producers and distributors for the
creation of digital multi−channel motion picture soundtracks. We also derive revenues from the sale of systems and encoding services
for digital cinema, pre−show advertising, alternative content, subtitling, captioning, and descriptive narration.

In our digital images business, we derive revenues from the processing, enhancement and restoration of cinema, home video and
broadcast television content. We provide these services for motion picture and television studios and other content owners. We offer
our services on either a fixed fee or time and materials basis.

In January 2007, we combined our Cinema and Digital Images businesses into a single business known as DTS Digital Cinema. In
February 2007, our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema business to enable us to focus exclusively on
licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game console, personal computer, portable and broadcast
markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007. The DTS Digital Cinema business will focus on the
potentially large and emerging market for digital cinema products and services.

We present revenues in our consolidated financial statements and in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” as derived from (i) technology and film licensing and (ii) product sales and other revenues. Our
technology and film licensing revenues are derived from each of our consumer and cinema business segments. Revenues from
technology licensing in connection with our consumer business segment include revenues derived from licensing our audio
technology, trademarks, and know−how to consumer electronics, personal computer, video game and console, digital satellite and
cable broadcast, and professional audio companies as well as to semiconductor manufacturers. Revenues from technology and film
licensing in connection with our cinema business segment include revenues derived from film licensing and services that we provide
to film studios for the production of soundtracks in our digital multi−channel format. Our product sales and other revenues are derived
from our consumer, cinema and digital images business segments. Revenues from product sales and other revenues in connection with
our consumer business segment include revenues derived from sales of our professional audio products and services and sales of
music titles that we produce in our digital multi−channel format. Revenues from product sales and other revenues in connection with
our cinema business segment include revenues derived from sales of our digital playback systems, cinema processor equipment, and
systems for subtitling, captioning, and descriptive narration to movie theaters and special venues. Revenues from product sales and
other revenues in connection with our digital images business segment include fees for processing, enhancing and restoring cinema,
home video and broadcast television content.

We actively engage in intellectual property compliance and enforcement activities focused on identifying third parties who have
either incorporated our technology, trademarks, or know−how without a license or who have under−reported the amount of royalties
owed under license agreements with us. We continue to invest in our compliance and enforcement infrastructure to support the value
of our intellectual property to us and our licensees and to improve the long−term realization of revenue from our intellectual property.
As a result of these activities, from time to time, we recognize royalty revenues that relate to consumer electronics manufacturing
activities from prior periods. These royalty recoveries may cause revenues to be higher than expected during a particular reporting
period and may not occur in subsequent periods. While we consider such revenues to be a regular part our normal operations, we
cannot predict the amount or timing of such revenues.

Our cost of goods sold consists primarily of amounts paid for products and materials, salaries and related benefits for production
personnel, stock−based compensation, depreciation of production equipment, amortization of acquired intangibles and payments to
third parties for licensing technology and copyrighted material.
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Our selling, general, and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries, stock−based compensation, commissions, and
related benefits for personnel engaged in sales, corporate administration, finance, human resources, information systems, legal, and
operations, and costs associated with promotional and other selling activities. Selling, general, and administrative expenses also
include professional fees, facility−related expenses, and other general corporate expenses.

Our research and development costs consist primarily of salaries and related benefits for research and development personnel,
stock−based compensation, engineering consulting expenses associated with new product and technology development, and quality
assurance and testing costs. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

In our consumer business, we have a licensing team that markets our technology directly to large consumer electronics products
manufacturers and semiconductor manufacturers. This team includes employees located in the United States, China, England, Japan,
Hong Kong, Northern Ireland, and Taiwan. We sell music content released under our DTS Entertainment label through exclusive
distribution arrangements in the United States, Canada, Europe and Japan. We employ consultants to coordinate sales to independent
retailers and we sell this music directly to consumers through an online store and other web−based retailers.

In our cinema business, our post−production department, senior management, and liaison offices market our products and services
directly to individual film producers and distributors worldwide. We sell our digital multi−channel playback systems to movie theaters
through a direct sales force and a network of independent dealers. To date, most of our sales and marketing efforts have been focused
in the United States and Canada, Western Europe, and in targeted markets in Asia and Latin America. We have also begun to focus
our efforts on pursuing theater companies that have a large concentration of movie theaters in selected foreign countries such as India,
China, and Eastern Europe.

In our digital images business, our senior management team markets our services directly to directors, producers and content
owners. The sales process typically involves an evaluation of the cinema, home video or broadcast television content to be enhanced
or restored and a determination of the scope of services required to achieve the desired result. Our digital images services enable
current or archived film content to be enhanced or restored for high quality, high definition presentation in digital cinema, high
definition optical media or broadcast applications.

Management Discussion Regarding Trends, Opportunities, and Challenges
New Strategic Initiatives
In January 2007, Euro 1080, a European high definition media company, entered into an agreement with us to become the first

broadcaster to deploy the combined Coding Technologies and DTS solution.
On February 20, 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema business to

enable us to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game console, personal
computer, portable and broadcast markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007. The DTS Digital
Cinema business will focus on the emerging and potentially large market for digital cinema products and services. Beginning in the
first quarter of 2007, we expect to report financial results related to our DTS Digital Cinema business as “discontinued operations.”

The trend in the motion picture industry and movie exhibition market toward digital delivery of entertainment content continues to
gain momentum and we believe it presents a long−term opportunity for the expansion of our cinema business. As part of our strategy
to pursue opportunities in the digital cinema market, we signed an exclusive license agreement and an option agreement with Avica, a
provider of products and services for the digital cinema market. We believe Avica’s suite of digital cinema technologies, products and
services will complement our existing cinema product offerings and will accelerate our entry into the digital cinema market.
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Trends, Opportunities, and Challenges by Business Segment
Consumer Segment
Revenue from our consumer segment constitutes the majority of our total revenues, representing 68%, 64% and 64% of total

revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Our consumer revenue is primarily dependent upon the
home theater and DVD player markets, which have experienced rapid growth over the past several years. However, we have recently
experienced softness in our DVD player trademark licensing program, and expect declines from recent levels in this area. The success
of DVD−Video−based systems and products has fueled a demand for higher quality entertainment in the home, and this demand is
extending to the car audio and personal computer markets as well. In addition, we expect the recent acceleration of the market for high
definition televisions to drive demand for high definition optical disc players. Because we have been selected as a mandatory
technology for HD−DVD and Blu−ray players, our consumer revenue growth should more closely track the growth rate for sales of
these players over the next several years. We expect that the market for high definition players will yield new growth that provides an
offset to the expected decline in the overall growth in standard definition DVD player shipments. Further, we believe that expected
mandatory inclusion in HD−DVD and Blu−ray optical disc standards will help to improve the adoption rate of our technologies in
other consumer products such as next generation video game consoles, personal audio and video players, personal computers,
broadcast applications and in−car entertainment systems.

In July 2004, we acquired QDesign Corporation, or QDesign, a company focused on lower bit−rate audio delivery technology. The
market for higher quality entertainment is expanding into portable devices that require the use of low−bit rate audio coding systems
including portable audio players, PDAs and wireless handset applications. Concurrent with this trend, there is a growing need for a
good link between home and portable devices that preserves as much quality as possible and allows consumers a seamless technology
solution for the storage and playback of their content. In October 2004, leveraging our existing research and development efforts and
the intellectual property acquired in the QDesign acquisition, we launched our DTS−HD initiative. This technology is a scalable
coding system that will allow content to be played in home and portable devices. We believe that the broad and robust nature of this
offering improves the probability of inclusion of our technologies in next generation products.

Cinema Segment
Revenue from our cinema segment represented 32%, 29% and 26% of total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005

and 2006, respectively. Sales of cinema products and film licensing tend to fluctuate based on the underlying trends in the motion
picture industry. We believe that the cinema exhibition community has begun to defer purchases of digital multi−channel audio
equipment as they evaluate the pace of progress in the emerging digital cinema market as discussed below. Accordingly, we expect
our cinema hardware business to continue to decline as exhibitors evaluate their digital cinema alternatives. We also believe that the
cinema exhibition community has recognized that pre−show entertainment represents a significant revenue growth opportunity that
will lead to investment in pre−show solutions over the next several years. Because our XD10 Cinema Media Player can be configured
to perform audio playback along with pre−show and subtitling presentation, we believe that we are well−positioned to participate in
the anticipated growth in this market.

A trend that we believe will affect our cinema business segment is the long−term trend toward digital distribution of content. We
believe this trend will involve the near−term adoption of digital pre−show and/or electronic cinema solutions, and increasingly the
adoption of higher quality digital cinema. Digital distribution of content offers the motion picture industry a means to achieve
substantial cost savings, including with respect to the printing and distribution of movies, help in combating piracy, and will enable
movies to be played repeatedly without degradation. It also provides additional revenue opportunities for cinema operators, as digital
content such as advertisements, concerts and sporting events could be shown in or broadcast to digitally equipped theaters. In recent
months, there has been increasing momentum in

48

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



the digital cinema industry, as product and service vendors attempt to find a viable business model. We believe that these activities
represent an important and significant step in the transition. We believe this represents an opportunity for us as we seek to provide
products and services in support of the transition from film−based content towards digital cinema. However, our current digital
cinema offerings are limited and we may not be successful in developing or selling competitive product offerings. We believe that the
addition of our Cinema Media Network and variable bit rate JPEG 2000 encoding tools, along with the services provided by our
digital images business, and the pre−show and alternative content capabilities of our XD10 Cinema Media Player, combined with the
addition of the products, technologies and know−how obtained under our exclusive license agreement with Avica, will enhance our
ability to participate in the industry transition to high definition sound and images for digital cinema. Already in 2007, we have
installed a trial deployment of 25 digital cinema systems in Ireland, which allows the exhibition of digital cinema content. The content
was digitally enhanced, encoded, packaged and delivered by our digital images and content services group in a fully DCI compliant
form.

Digital Images Segment
Revenue from our digital images segment, which we acquired in January 2005, represented 7% and 10% of total revenues for the

years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. We believe that the growing market for high resolution and high definition
content in the cinema and the home will create a substantial demand for the type of services provided by DTS DI. A relatively new
application for our process is the correction of problems encountered with the use of digital cameras, enabling our involvement at the
earliest stages of digital content development. We believe that we provide leading digital lab capabilities, including digital
enhancement, restoration and other pre−compression services and that we have a technological advantage over many of our
competitors based on the sophistication of our processes and level of automation used to enhance the image quality of entertainment
content. During 2006, as a result of the enhancement of the technology platform, we were able to complete more than three times the
number of projects than in 2005, improve gross margins and gain access to newer and faster growing markets including
pre−compression processing and digital cinema content preparation. To date, this business has enhanced and/or restored over 100
feature films, including such major DVD releases as Star Wars, James Bond and Indiana Jones. Major motion picture and television
studios possess libraries containing thousands of titles, which we believe represent a sizable market opportunity for the services
performed by DTS DI.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are based upon our consolidated

financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
preparation of our financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on−going basis, estimates and
judgments are evaluated, including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventories, goodwill and
intangible assets, income taxes, impairment of long−lived assets, product warranty, and stock−based compensation. These estimates
and judgments are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, which form the basis for our judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from
other sources. By their nature, estimates are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

We believe the following critical accounting policies, among others, affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in
the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

•  Revenue Recognition.   We recognize revenues in accordance with the guidelines of the SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin, or
SAB, No. 101 as amended by SAB No. 104 “Revenue Recognition in
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Financial Statements.” Revenues from multiple−element arrangements involving license fees, up−front payments and milestone
payments, which are received and/or billable by us in connection with other rights and services that represent continuing
obligations of ours, are deferred until all of the elements have been delivered or until we have established objective and
verifiable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered elements.
Arrangements with multiple elements or deliverables must be segmented into individual units of accounting based on the
separate deliverables only if there is objective and verifiable evidence of fair value to allocate the consideration received to the
deliverables. Accordingly, revenues from multiple−element arrangements involving license fees, up−front payments and
milestone payments, which are received and/or billable in connection with other rights and services that represent continuing
obligations of ours, are deferred until all of the multiple elements have been delivered or until objective and verifiable evidence
of the fair value of the undelivered elements has been established. Upon establishing objective and verifiable evidence of the fair
value of the elements in multiple−element arrangements, the fair value is allocated to each element of the arrangement, such as
products or additional add−ons, based on the relative fair values of the elements. We determine the fair value of each element in
multiple−element arrangements based on objective and verifiable evidence of fair value, which is determined for each element
based on the price charged when the same element is sold separately to a third party. If objective and verifiable evidence of fair
value of all undelivered elements exists but objective and verifiable evidence of fair value does not exist for one or more
delivered elements, then revenue is recognized using the residual method. Under the residual method, the revenues from
delivered elements are not recognized until the fair value of the undelivered element(s) have been determined. Significant
contract interpretation is sometimes required to determine the appropriate accounting, including whether the deliverables
specified in a multiple element arrangement should be treated as separate units of accounting for revenue recognition purposes,
and if so, how the price should be allocated among the deliverable elements, when to recognize revenue for each element, and
the period over which revenue should be recognized. Changes in the allocation of the sales price between delivered to
undelivered elements might impact the timing of revenue recognition, but would not change the total revenue recognized on the
contract.
We are responsible for the licensing and enforcement of our patented technologies and pursue third parties that are utilizing our
intellectual property without a license or who have under−reported the amount of royalties owed under a license agreement with
us. As a result of these activities, from time to time, we may recognize royalty revenues that relate to infringements that occurred
in prior periods. These royalty recoveries may cause revenues to be higher than expected during a particular reporting period and
may not occur in subsequent periods. Differences between amounts initially recognized and amounts subsequently audited or
reported as an adjustment to those amounts due from licensees, will be recognized in the period such adjustment is determined or
contracted, as appropriate, as a change in accounting estimate.
We make estimates and judgments when determining whether the collectibility of license fees receivable from licensees is
reasonably assured. We assess the collectibility of accrued license fees based on a number of factors, including past transaction
history with licensees and the credit−worthiness of licensees. If it is determined that collection is not reasonably assured, the fee
is recognized when collectibility becomes reasonably assured, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria have been met,
which is generally upon receipt of cash. Management estimates regarding collectibility impact the actual revenues recognized
each period and the timing of the recognition of revenues. Our assumptions and judgments regarding future collectibility could
differ from actual events, thus materially impacting our financial position and results of operations.
Revenues from the sale of cinema hardware products are recorded upon shipment, assuming title and risk of loss has transferred
to the customer, we have no significant obligations remaining, prices
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are fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. The licensing, encoding and duplication
of motion picture soundtracks for use in our playback systems is undertaken under arrangements with major film studios.
Revenues arising from the licensing and duplication of soundtracks are recognized upon completion, assuming prices are fixed
or determinable, we have no significant obligations remaining, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured.

Revenues from licensing audio technology, trademarks, and know−how are generated from licensing agreements with consumer
electronics products manufacturers that generally pay a per−unit license fee for products manufactured under those license
agreements. Licensees generally report manufacturing information within 30 to 60 days after the end of the quarter in which
such activity takes place. Consequently, we recognize revenue from these licensing agreements on a three−month lag basis,
generally in the quarter following the quarter of manufacture, provided amounts are fixed or determinable and collection is
reasonably assured. Use of this lag method allows for the receipt of licensee royalty reports prior to the recognition of revenue,
since we cannot reliably estimate the amount of revenue earned prior to our receipt of such reports. Revenues from the sale of
digital multi−channel audio and video content are recorded upon shipment to retail accounts or end customers, assuming title
and risk of loss has transferred, prices are fixed or determinable, we have no significant obligations remaining, and collection of
the related receivable is reasonably assured. We provide for returns on product sales based on historical experience and adjust
such reserves as considered necessary. To date, there have been no significant sales returns.

Revenues from digital image enhancement, restoration and repair are recognized when elements of a customer order or contract
are delivered and accepted by the customer and no significant obligations remain. Prices are established in advance of the work
performed and are generally fixed in nature. Revenue related to time and materials contracts is recognized as services are
rendered at contract labor rates plus material and other direct costs incurred. If losses are anticipated on a contract, such losses
are recognized immediately.

We believe these to be critical accounting policies because if actual results vary from our estimates and assumptions, it could
have a material impact on our reported sales and results of operations.

•  Inventories.   Inventory levels are based on projections of future demand and market conditions. Any sudden decline in demand
and/or rapid product improvements and technological changes can result in excess and/or obsolete inventories. On an ongoing
basis, inventories are reviewed and written down for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventories equal to the difference
between the costs of inventories and the estimated net realizable value based upon forecasts for future demand and market
conditions. Estimates could be influenced by sudden declines in demand due to economic downturns, rapid product
improvements, and technological changes. We believe this to be a critical accounting policy because if actual market conditions
are less favorable than our forecasts, additional inventory reserves may be required which could have a material impact on our
results of operations.

•  Goodwill.   We currently evaluate goodwill, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. We
also evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis during the fourth quarter of each year. In assessing the recoverability
of goodwill, we must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors, including the discount rate
used, to calculate the fair value of the respective assets. Assumptions about estimated future cash flows require significant
judgments around future revenues, future expenses, working capital investments, capital expenditures based on industry norms,
and the current state of the economy. In calculating the estimated fair value of our reporting units, we have used a discounted
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cash flow model. We believe this to be a critical accounting policy because if those estimates or related assumptions change in
the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets which could have a material impact on our results
of operations. While we believe the likelihood of an impairment of our Cinema and Digital Images reporting units is remote,
there can be no assurance that our decision to sell these assets subsequent to year end will not result in an impairment.

•  Impairment of Long−Lived Assets and Intangibles.   We periodically assess potential impairments of our long−lived assets and
intangibles in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long−lived Assets.”
An impairment review is performed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. Factors considered by us include, but are not limited to, significant underperformance relative to expected historical
or projected future operating results; significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our
overall business; and significant negative industry or economic trends. We believe this to be a critical accounting policy because
if those estimates or related assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets
which could have a material impact on our results of operations. While we believe the likelihood of an impairment of our
Cinema and Digital Images reporting units is remote, there can be no assurance that our decision to sell these assets subsequent
to year end will not result in an impairment.

•  Stock−based Compensation.   Upon adoption of SFAS 123(R) in January of 2006, we began incurring significant charges to the
statement of operations for stock−based compensation. These charges are based upon the fair value of each employee option on
the date of grant using the Black−Scholes option pricing model. This model requires that we estimate a risk free interest rate,
expected lives, dividend yield, and the expected volatility of our stock. In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(“SAB”) No. 107 relating to SFAS 123(R). We have applied the provisions of SAB 107 in our adoption of SFAS 123(R). We
believe this to be a critical accounting policy because if any of the estimates above require significant changes, these changes
could result in expenses that could have a material impact on our results of operations.

•  Income taxes.   We must make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement
purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from
differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial statement purposes.

We must assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets. If recovery is not likely, we must increase
our provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be
recoverable. As of December 31, 2006, we believe that all of the deferred tax assets recorded on our balance sheet would
ultimately be recovered. We believe this to be a critical accounting policy because should there be a change in our ability to
recover our deferred tax assets, our tax provision would increase in the period in which we determine that the recovery is not
probable, which could have a material impact on our results of operations.

Income taxes receivable, net, at December 31, 2005 and 2006, includes estimated tax contingencies of $1.4 million and $0.7
million, respectively, for both domestic and foreign issues. Inherent uncertainties exist in estimating tax contingencies due to the
progress of income tax audits and changes in tax law, both legislated and concluded through the various jurisdictions’ tax court
systems.
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Segment and Geographic Information

During the first quarter of 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema
business, which is comprised of our Cinema business segment and Digital Images business segment. Therefore, we have included a
subtotal representing the DTS Digital Cinema business.

Our reportable segment and geographic information is as follows (in thousands):

Revenues by Segment
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 41,886 $ 48,180 $ 50,039
Cinema business 19,545 21,744 20,260
Digital Images business — 5,328 8,015

DTS Digital Cinema business 19,545 27,072 28,275
Total revenues $ 61,431 $ 75,252 $ 78,314

Gross Profit by Segment
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 39,821 $ 45,970 $ 48,345
Cinema business 5,448 10,618 9,793
Digital Images business — (949) (228)

DTS Digital Cinema business 5,448 9,669 9,565
Total gross profit $ 45,269 $ 55,639 $ 57,910

Income (Loss) From Operations
by Segment

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 19,969 $ 21,139 $ 15,130
Cinema business (8,475) (4,051) (10,025)
Digital Images business — (7,576) (6,186)

DTS Digital Cinema business (8,475) (11,627) (16,211)
Total income (loss) from

operations $ 11,494 $ 9,512 $ (1,081)

Revenues by Geographic Region
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

United States $ 17,830 $ 27,157 $ 23,168
Japan 17,516 18,870 18,316
Taiwan 279 3,251 10,309
South Korea 7,772 8,248 7,847
China 6,936 6,702 3,365
Other international 11,098 11,024 15,309

Total international 43,601 48,095 55,146
Total revenues $ 61,431 $ 75,252 $ 78,314
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, long−lived assets by geographic region:

Long−Lived Assets
As of December 31,

2004 2005 2006

United States $ 3,099 $ 5,859 $ 9,694
International 2,219 1,516 1,644

Total long−lived assets $ 5,318 $ 7,375 $ 11,338

Results of Operations

Revenues

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2006 vs. 2005 2005 vs. 2004
2006 2005 2004 Change Change

Revenues % Revenues % Revenues % $ % $ %
($ in thousands)

Technology and film licensing $ 59,053 75% $ 56,947 76% $ 49,920 81% $ 2,106 4% $ 7,027 14%
Product sales and other revenues 19,261 25% 18,305 24% 11,511 19% 956 5% 6,794 59%
Total $ 78,314 100% $ 75,252 100% $ 61,431 100% $ 3,062 4% $ 13,821 22%

Technology and Film Licensing

Technology and film licensing revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased compared to the year ended
December 31, 2005 primarily due to strong growth in the car audio systems and personal computer markets, which posted year over
year growth totals of 81% and 20%, respectively. However, we remain cautious in our revenue outlook due to uncertainties
surrounding the expected transition to high definition optical disc formats. Overall, we continue to expect technology licensing
revenues to grow modestly for 2007, based primarily on the expected continuation of growth in our decoder licensing program and our
mandatory inclusion in both the HD−DVD and Blu−ray disc formats. Our film licensing revenues increased slightly in 2006 compared
to the prior year due to additional releases in the DTS format and the timing of major feature film releases. Film licensing revenue is
expected to remain relatively flat in 2007.

Technology and film licensing revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004 primarily driven due to an increase in royalty recoveries of $7.3 million from intellectual property compliance and
enforcement activities in 2005 relative to the prior year. These activities, which included audits of shipments by certain of our
licensees and legal actions taken against licensees and parties who are not our licensees, resulted in recoveries of royalties due from
prior periods. We experienced good growth in our personal computer licensing and in car audio systems, which posted year over year
growth totals of 150% and 21%, respectively, in 2005. Our film licensing revenues increased slightly in 2005 compared to the prior
year due to additional releases in the DTS format and the timing of major feature film releases.

Product Sales and Other

Product sales and other revenues increased for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005
primarily due to a 50% increase in revenues generated by DTS DI as a result of the completion of certain significant projects, and
ongoing improvements in our digital enhancement and restoration processes. Partially offsetting the growth in DTS DI revenues is a
decrease in U.S. hardware sales for 2006 resulting from the exhibition community’s hesitation to purchase cinema hardware during the
early stages of the industry’s transition to digital cinema.
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Product sales and other revenues increased for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended December 31, 2004
primarily due to the revenues generated by DTS DI, which we acquired in January 2005, along with an increase in cinema hardware
sales of $2.1 million. Stronger demand for our XD10 Cinema Media Player and XD10P Cinema Audio Processor were primary
drivers of sales.

Segment Revenues

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2006 vs. 2005 2005 vs. 2004
2006 2005 2004 Change Change

Revenues % Revenues % Revenues % $ % $ %
($ in thousands)

Consumer business $ 50,039 64% $ 48,180 64% $ 41,886 68% $ 1,859 4% $ 6,294 15%
Cinema business 20,260 26% 21,744 29% 19,545 32% (1,484) (7%) 2,199 11%
Digital Images

business 8,015 10% 5,328 7% — 0% 2,687 50% 5,328 100%
DTS Digital Cinema

business 28,275 36% 27,072 36% 19,545 32% 1,203 4% 7,527 39%
Total $ 78,314 100% $ 75,252 100% $ 61,431 100% $ 3,062 4% $ 13,821 22%

The increase in revenues from our consumer business for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2005 was driven primarily by an increase in the car audio and personal computer markets as mentioned above. The
decrease in revenues from our cinema business for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005
was primarily driven by a slowdown in cinema hardware sales during 2006 as mentioned above. The increase in revenues from our
digital images business for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 was primarily driven
by the completion of certain significant projects, and ongoing improvements in our digital enhancement and restoration processes.

The increase in revenues from our consumer business for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2004 was driven primarily by an increase in royalty recoveries as mentioned above as well as overall growth in our
personal computer and car audio markets. The increase in revenues from our cinema business for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 was primarily driven by an increase in cinema hardware revenues. Revenues from our
digital images business were included in our operations for the first time during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Gross Profit

Percentage point change
2006 2005 2004 in gross profit margin

Gross Relative Gross Relative Gross Relative relative to prior year
Profit % Profit % Profit % 2006 vs. 20052005 vs. 2004

($ in thousands)
Technology and film

licensing $ 54,284 92% $ 52,232 92% $ 45,469 91% 0% 1%
Product sales and other

revenues 3,626 19% 3,407 19% (200) (2)% 0% 21%
Total $ 57,910 74% $ 55,639 74% $ 45,269 74%

Consolidated gross profit percentage for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 remained consistent. We expect
consolidated gross margins in the 70% to 75% range for 2007. However, because we expect to report our DTS Digital Cinema
business as a discontinued operations in 2007, we expect gross margins from our ongoing consumer business in the 97% to 98% range
for 2007.
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Technology and Film Licensing

Gross profit percentage associated with technology and film licensing revenues was consistent for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005. We expect this rate to increase slightly during 2007 due to a higher mix of technology licensing relative to film
licensing. However, because we expect to report our DTS Digital Cinema business as a discontinued operations in 2007, we expect
gross margin from technology licensing to exceed 98% in 2007.

Product Sales and Other

Gross profit percentage associated with product sales and other revenues was consistent for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005. The gross profit percentage increase for the year ended December 31, 2005 is due to the write−off of subtitling projector
inventories in 2004.

Segment Gross Profit

Percentage point change
2006 2005 2004 in gross profit margin

Gross Relative Gross Relative Gross Relative relative to prior year
Profit % Profit % Profit % 2006 vs. 2005 2005 vs. 2004

($ in thousands)
Consumer business $ 48,345 97% $ 45,970 95% $ 39,821 95% 2% 0%
Cinema business 9,793 48% 10,618 49% 5,448 28% (1)% 21%
Digital Images business (228) (3)% (949) (18)% — 0% 15% (18)%

DTS Digital Cinema
business 9,565 34% 9,669 36% 5,448 28% (2)% 8%

Total $ 57,910 74% $ 55,639 74% $ 45,269 74%

Gross profit percentage associated with our consumer business for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased compared to the
year ended December 31, 2005 due to the increase in licensing revenues, as mentioned above. Gross profit percentage associated with
our cinema business decreased slightly for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to
the decline in cinema hardware sales as mentioned above. The increase in gross profit percentage for the cinema business for the year
ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004 is primarily due to the projector inventory write−off in
2004.

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”)

SG&A Percent of

Change
relative to
prior year

Expenses Revenues $ %
($ in thousands)

2006 $ 41,754 53% $ 7,794 23%
2005 $ 33,960 45% $ 6,316 23%
2004 $ 27,644 45%

SG&A expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to the prior year period as salaries and related costs
increased $3.6 million due to increased headcount to support our growth. With the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) during 2006, SG&A
expenses also include additional stock−based compensation charges totaling $3.0 million. The consolidation of Avica into our
operations increased SG&A expenses by $0.2 million for 2006, compared to 2005.

SG&A expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to the prior year period primarily due to increased
salaries and related costs of $3.5 million as we increased headcount to support our growth. Other expenses related to growth of our
operations, such as depreciation, travel and
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entertainment, increased approximately $0.8 million. Also contributing to the increase was $1.6 million relating to the inclusion of
DTS DI in our results of operations.

Research and Development (“R&D”)

R&D Percent of

Change
relative to
prior year

Expenses Revenues $ %
($ in thousands)

2006 $ 12,334 16% $ 2,467 25%
2005 $ 9,867 13% $ 3,736 61%
2004 $ 6,131 10%

R&D expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to the prior year period primarily due to increased
salaries and related costs of $2.0 million as we increased headcount to support our growth and new product initiatives. With the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) during 2006, R&D expenses also include additional stock based compensation charges of $0.5 million.

R&D expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to the prior year period primarily due to increased
salaries and related costs as we increased headcount to support new product initiatives, the optimization of our Coherent Acoustics
technology and the development of tools associated with next generation optical disc standards. Also contributing to the increase was
$1.1 million relating to the inclusion of DTS DI R&D activities in our results of operations.

In−Process Research and Development

In−process research and development of $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, relates to development projects that
had not reached technological feasibility and were of no future alternative use and expensed upon consummation of the acquisition of
DTS DI. Developed technology and in−process research and development were identified and valued through extensive interviews,
analysis of data provided by DTS DI concerning development projects, their stage of development, the time and resources needed to
complete them, if applicable, and their expected income generating ability and associated risks. Where development projects had
reached technological feasibility, they were classified as developed technology and the value assigned to developed technology was
capitalized. The income approach, which includes an analysis of the cash flows and risks associated with achieving such cash flows,
was the primary technique utilized in valuing acquired in−process research and development. Key assumptions for in−process
research and development included a discount rate of 30% and estimates of revenue growth, cost of sales, operating expenses and
taxes.

Separation and Restructuring Costs

Separation and restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2006, were $4.9 million. These costs relate to three
components: (i) the separation of our business, (ii) to buy out a commission agreement for licensing intellectual property in the China
market and (iii) the write−down of DTSE inventory and other assets.

In August 2006, we announced that we were studying the potential separation of our business and in November 2006, we
announced our intent to proceed with the separation of our Cinema and Digital Images businesses from our Consumer licensing
business. These separation costs, which totaled $1.1 million, consist primarily of legal and accounting expenses relating to the
proposed separation of our business. In February 2007, our Board of Directors approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema
business, which we expect to conclude later in 2007. We expect to continue to incur costs relating to the
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sale of the DTS Digital Cinema business but cannot currently estimate the amount of any future costs relating to such sale.

When we started our Consumer operations in China in 2003, we engaged a company with a strong presence in China to assist us
with certain aspects of these operations. The agreement called for annual payments to the Chinese company based on the profitability
of our China subsidiary and certain other factors. Management decided to take complete control over our future in China. Therefore,
we negotiated an early termination of this agreement, which required us to make a one−time termination payment of $3.0 million,
which was paid in the fourth quarter of 2006.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we wrote−down $0.8 million of DTSE inventory and other assets as part of our restructuring
effort to redirect the focus of our DTS Entertainment group away from the production and sale of DVD−audio discs toward supporting
content providers in their adoption of DTS technologies.

Interest Income, Net

Interest income, net, for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased due to the increase in interest rates in 2006 relative to 2005
and higher average investment balances. Interest income, net, for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased significantly over the
prior year due to the generally improved interest rate environment.

Income From Legal Settlement

In May 2004, we reached a settlement with Mintek for $3.5 million for trademark infringement, false designation of origin,
trademark dilution, and unfair competition relating to Mintek’s distribution of DVD players bearing our registered trademarks without
obtaining a license from us. In the year ended December 31, 2004 we recognized $0.9 million in revenue under the settlement
agreement for royalties due on known units that could be identified as using our trademark and accounted for the remaining
$2.6 million as other income.

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense was $5.5 million, $4.3 million, and $0.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005, and 2006,
respectively. The abnormally low 2006 tax expense in relation to our income before tax is due to large amounts of favorable discrete
items recorded in the tax provision for 2006. These discrete items include, among other things, the favorable resolution with the
Internal Revenue Service relating to extraterritorial income exclusion, large amounts of tax exempt interest, and FAS 123(R)
deductions. These favorable items were partially offset by our non−deductible separation−related costs and our foreign tax rate
differential.

Our rates have historically differed from statutory rates due to the benefits of lower foreign tax rates, tax exempt interest, and
research and development credits. We expect the effective tax rate for 2007 to be more closely aligned with the statutory rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2006, we had cash, cash equivalents, and short−term investments of $111.5 million, compared to $111.4 million
at December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2006, we had no balance outstanding and $10.0 million of available borrowings under our bank line of credit
facility, which expires on June 30, 2007 and is renewable annually. The bank facility provides for working capital financing and is
unsecured. The bank agreement requires us to comply with certain covenants including a tangible effective net worth of $60.0 million
increasing by 50% of net
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income on an annual basis. The covenants also require us to keep $2.0 million in cash or securities at the issuing bank. Future
borrowings will bear interest based on either of the two options we select at the time of advances: 1) a rate equal to 2% above the
LIBOR, or 2) a rate equal to the Base Rate as quoted from the bank less one−half percent.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $17.6 million, $9.6 million and $5.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively. The primary source of operating cash flow for 2006 was net income of $3.0 million, adjusted for
non−cash items including depreciation and amortization expense and stock−based compensation charges.

We use cash in investing activities primarily to purchase office equipment, fixtures, computer hardware and software, engineering
and manufacturing test and certification equipment, for business and technology acquisitions, for securing patent and trademark
protection for our proprietary technology and brand name, and to purchase short−term investments such as bank certificates of deposit,
municipal bonds and auction rate securities. Cash used in investing activities totaled $36.8 million and $24.5 million in the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2006, respectively. Cash provided by investing activities totaled $1.4 million in the year ended
December 31, 2005. Cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily consists of net purchases of
investments of $16.2 million and capital expenditures of $7.1 million.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, cash provided by financing activities was $1.3 million, $1.1 million and
$2.9 million, respectively, and consists of the exercise of stock options and related tax benefits and sales of stock under our employee
stock purchase plan. Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), excess tax benefits from exercise of stock options were shown as an
operating cash inflow.

In 2005, we entered into an agreement for the purchase and implementation of a new enterprise resource planning system, or ERP,
for approximately $0.7 million. We expect that we will incur additional costs in the range of $1 to $2 million over the next several
years in connection with our ERP implementation. Through December 31, 2006, we incurred approximately $3.8 million, of which
$3.2 million has been capitalized to software.

On August 1, 2006, our Board of Directors authorized, subject to certain business and market conditions, the purchase of up to one
million shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Through March 16, 2007, there were no
shares purchased under this authorization. Any shares repurchased would be considered treasury stock.

In August 2006, we announced that we were studying the potential separation of our business and in November 2006, we
announced our intent to proceed with the separation of our Cinema and Digital Images businesses from our Consumer licensing
business. Through December 31, 2006, we incurred approximately $1.1 million in separation costs, consisting primarily of legal and
accounting expenses relating to the separation of our business. In February 2007, we announced that our Board of Directors had
approved a plan to sell our DTS Digital Cinema business, which was created through the combination and restructuring of our Cinema
and Digital Images businesses, to enable us to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and
evolving audio, game console, personal computer, portable and broadcast markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to
conclude later in 2007.

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents, short−term investments, funds available under our existing bank line of credit facility,
and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the
next twelve months. Beyond the next twelve months, additional financing may be required to fund working capital and capital
expenditures. Changes in our operating plans including lower than anticipated revenues, increased expenses, acquisition of companies,
products or technologies or other events, including those described in “Risk Factors” included elsewhere
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herein and in other filings may cause us to seek additional debt or equity financing on an accelerated basis. Financing may not be
available on acceptable terms, or at all, and our failure to raise capital when needed could negatively impact our growth plans and our
financial condition and results of operations. Additional equity financing may be dilutive to the holders of our common stock and debt
financing, if available, may involve significant cash payment obligations and financial or operational covenants that restrict our ability
to operate our business.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Future payments due under non−cancelable lease obligations and commitments at December 31, 2006 are described below (in
thousands):

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
2012 and
thereafter Total

Operating leases $ 1,092 $ 921 $ 367 $ 284 $ 240 $ 565 $ 3,469
Acquisition

consideration 150 — — — — — 150
Enterprise resource

planning system 373 — — — — — 373
Total $ 1,615 $ 921 $ 367 $ 284 $ 240 $ 565 $ 3,992

Purchase orders or contracts for the purchase of raw materials and other goods and services are not included in the table above. We
are not able to determine the aggregate amount of such purchase orders that represent contractual obligations, as purchase orders may
represent authorizations to purchase rather than binding agreements. Our purchase orders are typically based on our current needs and
are typically fulfilled by our vendors within short time horizons.

Under the terms of the acquisition of QDesign Corporation, we have contingently committed to pay a maximum of $150 during
2007 as compensation expense if certain criteria are met. For additional information regarding this commitment, see Footnote 12 of
our consolidated financial statements, “Business Combinations.”

In 2005, we entered into an agreement for the purchase and implementation of a new enterprise resource planning system, or ERP,
for approximately $747, which was due in two equal installments over two years. We have a commitment to pay the second
installment of $373 during 2007.

We also enter into contracts with manufacturers to provide certain manufacturing services. If we were to have terminated these
contracts at December 31, 2006, we would have been required to make payments of approximately $2.6 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 157 effective January 1, 2008. We
are in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on our financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109” (“FIN No. 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation requires that we
recognize in our financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit,
based on the technical merits of the position. The accounting provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. We plan to adopt FIN No. 48 effective January 1, 2007, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle, if any, recorded as an adjustment to opening
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retained earnings. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN No. 48 and its impact on our financial position, cash flows,
and results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF Issue No. 06−3, “How Sales Taxes Collected from
Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross Versus Net
Presentation),” which states that a company should disclose its accounting policy (i.e., gross or net presentation) regarding
presentation of taxes within the scope of this Issue. If taxes included in gross revenues are significant, a company should disclose the
amount of such taxes for each period for which an income statement is presented. The consensus would be effective for the first
annual or interim reporting period beginning after December 15, 2006. The disclosures are required for annual and interim financial
statements for each period for which an income statement is presented. We plan to adopt EITF Issue No. 06−3 effective January 1,
2007. Based on our current evaluation, we do not expect the adoption of EITF Issue No. 06−3 to have a significant impact on our
consolidated results of operations or financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 123(R), which requires companies to measure and recognize compensation
costs for all share−based payments (including stock options) at fair value, effective for interim or annual periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. On April 15, 2005, the SEC announced a deferral of the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) until the first interim or
annual reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) as discussed in Footnote 16 of our consolidated financial statements, “Stock−Based Compensation.”

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as
operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from the tax
benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be
classified as financing cash flows.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides guidance on how prior year misstatements should be
taken into consideration when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements for purposes of determining whether the
current year’s financial statements are materially misstated. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006.
The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and foreign exchange rates. At December 31,
2006, we did not have any balances outstanding under our bank line of credit arrangement; however, the amount of outstanding debt at
any time may fluctuate and we may from time to time be subject to refinancing risk.

Our interest income is sensitive to changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates, particularly since a significant portion of our
investments are and will be in short−term marketable securities, U.S. government securities and corporate bonds. Due to the nature
and maturity of our short−term investments, we have concluded that there is no material market risk exposure to our principal. The
average maturity of our investment portfolio is less than one month. As of December 31, 2006, a 1% change in interest rates
throughout a one−year period would have an annual effect of approximately $1.1 million on our income before income taxes.
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We derive in the range of 70% of our revenues from sales outside the United States, and maintain research, sales, marketing, or
business development offices in nine countries. Therefore, our results could be negatively affected by such factors as changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, trade protection measures, longer accounts receivable collection patterns, and changes in regional or
worldwide economic or political conditions. The risks of our international operations are mitigated in part by the extent to which our
revenues are denominated in U.S. dollars and, accordingly, we are not exposed to significant foreign currency risk on these items. We
do have limited foreign currency risk on certain revenues and operating expenses such as salaries and overhead costs of our foreign
operations and a small amount of cash maintained by these operations. Revenues denominated in foreign currencies accounted for
approximately 6% of total revenues during 2006. Operating expenses, including cost of sales, for our foreign subsidiaries were
approximately $15.7 million in 2006. Based upon the expenses for 2006, a 1% change in foreign currency rates throughout a one−year
period would have an annual effect of approximately $0.2 million on our operating income.

Our international business is subject to risks, including, but not limited to, differing economic conditions, changes in political
climate, differing tax structures, other regulations and restrictions, and foreign exchange rate volatility when compared to the United
States dollar. Accordingly, our future results could be materially impacted by changes in these or other factors.

We are also affected by exchange rate fluctuations as the financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries are translated into the
United States dollar in consolidation. As exchange rates vary, these results, when translated, may vary from expectations and could
adversely or positively impact overall profitability. During 2006, the positive impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations related to
translation of our foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements was $0.1 million on retained earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of DTS, Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of DTS, Inc.’s consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of DTS, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
stock−based compensation in 2006.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
appearing in Item 9A Controls and Procedures, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial
reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Los Angeles, California
March 16, 2007

65

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



DTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31,
2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands,
except per share

amounts)
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,254 $ 17,097
Short−term investments 78,163 94,368
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $370 and

$256 at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively 7,311 7,472
Inventories, net 3,261 3,156
Deferred income taxes 7,255 7,059
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,112 2,032
Income taxes receivable, net 2,654 2,244

Total current assets 135,010 133,428
Property and equipment, net 7,375 11,338
Intangible assets, net 11,612 18,424
Goodwill 3,585 3,585
Deferred income taxes 303 305
Other assets 369 1,120

Total assets $ 158,254 $ 168,200
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,634 $ 5,971
Accrued expenses 6,983 6,853
Deferred revenue 2,630 94

Total current liabilities 12,247 12,918
Deferred income taxes 1,917 —
Other long−term liabilities — 1,466
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock—$0.0001 par value, 5,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2005 and 2006; no shares issued and outstanding — —

Common stock—$0.0001 par value, 70,000 shares authorized at
December 31, 2005 and 2006; 17,473 and 18,024 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively 2 2

Additional paid−in capital 122,847 129,549
Retained earnings 21,241 24,265

Total stockholders’ equity 144,090 153,816
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 158,254 $ 168,200

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Revenues:
Technology and film licensing $ 49,920 $ 56,947 $ 59,053
Product sales and other revenues 11,511 18,305 19,261

Total revenues 61,431 75,252 78,314
Cost of goods sold:

Technology and film licensing 4,451 4,715 4,769
Product sales and other revenues 11,711 14,898 15,635

Total cost of goods sold 16,162 19,613 20,404
Gross profit 45,269 55,639 57,910
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 27,644 33,960 41,754
Research and development 6,131 9,867 12,334
In−process research and development — 2,300 —
Separation and restructuring costs — — 4,903

Total operating expenses 33,775 46,127 58,991
Income (loss) from operations 11,494 9,512 (1,081)
Interest income, net 1,447 2,524 4,923
Other income (expense), net (31) 154 —
Income from legal settlement (Note 22) 2,601 — —
Income before income taxes 15,511 12,190 3,842
Provision for income taxes 5,535 4,282 818
Net income $ 9,976 $ 7,908 $ 3,024
Net income per common share:

Basic $ 0.59 $ 0.46 $ 0.17
Diluted $ 0.55 $ 0.43 $ 0.16

Weighted average shares used to compute net income
per common share:
Basic 16,866 17,321 17,623
Diluted 18,143 18,310 18,401

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid−in Retained Stockholders’

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Equity
(Amounts in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2003 16,513 $ 2 $ 115,512 $ 3,357 $ 118,871
Exercise of warrants 49 — — — —
Exercise of options and related tax

benefit of $4,348 449 — 4,855 — 4,855
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan 57 — 821 — 821
Issuance costs for follow−up

public offering — — (30) — (30)
Stock−based compensation charge

for options issued to
non−employees — — 273 — 273

Net income — — — 9,976 9,976
Balance at December 31, 2004 17,068 2 121,431 13,333 134,766

Exercise of warrants 212 — — — —
Exercise of options and related tax

benefit of $283 130 — 516 — 516
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan 63 — 825 — 825
Stock−based compensation charge

for options issued to
non−employees — — 75 — 75

Net income — — — 7,908 7,908
Balance at December 31, 2005 17,473 2 122,847 21,241 144,090

Exercise of warrants 21 — — — —
Exercise of options and related tax

benefit of $458 357 — 2,065 — 2,065
Issuance of common stock under

employee stock purchase plan 70 — 900 — 900
Restricted stock award grants 103 — — — —
Stock−based compensation charge — — 3,737 — 3,737
Net income — — — 3,024 3,024

Balance at December 31, 2006 18,024 $ 2 $ 129,549 $ 24,265 $ 153,816

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DTS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 9,976 $ 7,908 $ 3,024
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,298 3,793 4,770
Stock−based compensation charges 273 75 3,737
Allowance for doubtful accounts 61 30 10
Loss on disposal of property and equipment — 5 114
Deferred income taxes (2,092) 1,003 (2,324)
In−process research and development — 2,300 —
Tax benefits from stock−based awards 4,348 283 458
Excess tax benefits from stock−based awards — — (411)
Write−down of inventory and other assets 3,871 — 902
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effect of

acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (748) (2,489) (159)
Inventories 12 409 (470)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,245) (228) 263
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 713 (2,139) (2,343)
Deferred revenue 519 1,184 (2,537)
Income taxes receivable 588 (2,582) 410

Net cash provided by operating activities 17,574 9,552 5,444
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of investments (114,429) (103,563) (163,822)
Maturities of investments 12,413 63,591 73,512
Sales of investments 69,462 57,506 74,105
Purchase of property and equipment (1,567) (4,976) (7,119)
Bridge loan for acquisition (1,250) — —
Cash paid for business and technology acquisitions, net of cash

acquired (1,383) (11,000) (950)
Payment for patents and trademarks in process (90) (185) (245)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (36,844) 1,373 (24,519)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from the sale of common stock in connection with the initial
and follow−on public offerings, net of issuance costs (30) — —

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock upon exercise of
employee stock options 507 233 1,607

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock under employee stock
purchase plan 821 825 900

Excess tax benefits from stock−based awards — — 411
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,298 1,058 2,918

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (17,972) 11,983 (16,157)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 39,243 21,271 33,254
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 21,271 $ 33,254 $ 17,097
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest $ — $ 19 $ —
Cash paid for income taxes $ 482 $ 3,178 $ 545

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1—The Company

DTS, Inc. (the “Company”) provides digital entertainment technologies, products and services to the motion picture, consumer
electronics, professional audio and related industries. The Company’s Consumer business licenses audio technology, trademarks and
know−how to consumer electronics, personal computer, broadcast and professional audio companies, and sells multi−channel audio
content and products to consumers. The Company’s Cinema business licenses technology and sells products and services to producers
and distributors of feature length films and digital content, and to movie theaters and special venues. The Company’s Digital Images
business provides image enhancement, restoration and repair services for moving pictures captured on film or in digital form,
television content, and other forms of image content.

The Company commenced operations in 1990 as Digital Theater Systems Corporation (“DTS Corp”). In 1993, DTS Corp became
the general partner of Digital Theater Systems, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“the Partnership”). In 1994, the Partnership
formed DTS Technology, LLC (“DTS Technology”) to develop audio technologies for the consumer electronics and other markets.
On October 24, 1997 the Company completed a reorganization and tax−free exchange with the predecessor entities and was
incorporated in Delaware. The reorganization and formation of the Company was accounted for as a transaction by entities under
common control and was effected by each of the former stockholders and owners of DTS Corp, the Partnership and DTS Technology
receiving an ownership interest in the Company, represented by shares of common stock and warrants to acquire shares of common
stock, substantially equivalent to their previous interests in DTS Corp, the Partnership and DTS Technology. On July 9, 2003, the
Company completed its initial public offering for the sale of 4,091 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $17.00 per share.
All of the shares of common stock sold in the offering were registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”) on a Registration Statement on Form S−1 (Reg. No. 333−104761) that was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) on July 9, 2003 and a Registration Statement filed pursuant to Rule 426(b) under the Securities Act that was
filed on July 9, 2003 (Reg. No. 333−106920). In May 2005, the Company changed its name from Digital Theater Systems, Inc. to
DTS, Inc.

In January 2007, the Company combined its Cinema and Digital Images businesses into a single business known as “DTS Digital
Cinema.” In February 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to sell its DTS Digital Cinema business to enable the
Company to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game console, personal
computer, portable, broadcast, and other markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007. For
additional information, refer to Footnote 24 of the consolidated financial statements, “Subsequent Events.”

Note 2—Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly−owned subsidiaries, and Avica Technology
Corporation (“Avica”), a variable interest entity (“VIE”). VIEs are defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in
FASB Interpretation No. (“FIN”) 46 (Revised 2003), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities—an Interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51” (“FIN 46(R)”). For additional information regarding Avica, refer to Footnote 3 of the
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consolidated financial statements, “Consolidation of Avica as a Variable Interest Entity.” All material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. On an on−going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates and assumptions, including those related to revenue
recognition, inventories, adequacy of allowances for doubtful accounts, valuation of long−lived assets and goodwill, income taxes,
and warranties. The Company bases its estimates on historical and anticipated results, trends and on various other assumptions that it
believes are reasonable under the circumstances, including assumptions as to future events. These estimates form the basis for making
assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. By their nature,
estimates are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short−term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, when acquired,
to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of funds held in general checking accounts, money market accounts, bank
certificates of deposit and municipal securities. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates
fair value.

Short−Term Investments

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities” and FASB Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) No. 03−1 “The Meaning of Other−Than−Temporary
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,” the Company considers, at the time that they are purchased, investments with
maturities greater than three months, but less than one year, to be short−term investments. Short−term investments consist primarily of
auction rate and variable rate obligation securities, which are classified as available−for−sale. Auction rate and variable rate obligation
securities have interest rate resets through a modified Dutch auction at predetermined short−term intervals, typically every 7, 28, or 35
days. Interest paid during a given period is based upon the interest rate determined during the prior auction. Although the securities are
issued and rated as long−term bonds, they are priced and traded as short−term instruments because of the liquidity provided through
the interest rate reset. We had no material gross realized or unrealized holding gains or losses from our investments in auction rate and
variable rate obligation securities for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006. Other short−term investments are classified
as held−to−maturity. All income generated from those investments was recorded as interest income.

Concentration of Business and Credit Risk

The Company markets its products and services to major motion picture producers and distributors, movie theaters, and consumer
electronics product manufacturers in the United States and internationally. Although the Company is generally subject to the financial
well being of the motion picture industry and
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the consumer electronics business, management does not believe that the Company is subject to significant credit risk with respect to
trade accounts receivable. Additionally, the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances
for potential credit losses which, when realized, have generally been within the range of management’s expectations.

There were no customers that accounted for more than 10% of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005. One
customer accounted for 13% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006. One customer accounted for 17% of accounts
receivable at December 31, 2005. One customer accounted for 19% and another for 12% of accounts receivable at December 31,
2006.

The Company purchases its professional audio encoding devices and movie theater playback systems from several third−party
manufacturers who manufacture these units according to the Company’s specifications. Although the Company believes it could find
alternative suppliers if necessary, a lack of key components could cause significant delays, increased costs, or quality control
problems, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations.

The Company deposits its cash and cash equivalents in accounts with major financial institutions. At times, such U.S. investments
may be in excess of federally insured limits. The Company invests its short−term investments in accounts with major financial
institutions, investment grade municipal securities and United States agency securities. The Company has not incurred any significant
losses on its investments.

Allowance For Doubtful Accounts

The Company continually monitors customer payments and maintains a reserve for estimated losses resulting from its customers’
inability to make required payments. In determining the reserve, the Company evaluates the collectibility of its accounts receivable
based upon a variety of factors. In cases where the Company becomes aware of circumstances that may impair a specific customer’s
ability to meet its financial obligations, the Company records a specific allowance against amounts due. For all other customers, the
Company recognizes allowances for doubtful accounts based on its historical write−off experience in conjunction with the length of
time the receivables are past due, customer creditworthiness, geographic risk and the current business environment. Actual future
losses from uncollectible accounts may differ from the Company’s estimates.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first−in, first−out method. The Company
evaluates its ending inventories for estimated excess quantities and obsolescence. The Company’s evaluation includes the analysis of
future sales demand by product, within specific time horizons. Inventories in excess of projected future demand are written down to
net realizable value. In addition, the Company assesses the impact of changing technology on inventory balances and writes−down
inventories that are considered obsolete. The Company recorded an inventory write−down of $3,871 related to its monochrome
projector inventory during the year ended December 31, 2004 due to declines in future demand and technological obsolescence. The
Company recorded inventory write−downs of $624 during the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily related to its DTS
Entertainment (“DTSE”) inventory. Because the Company redirected the focus of its DTSE business away from the sale and
marketing of discs and thus will no longer fully fund those activities, it was determined that DTSE
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inventories have a lower estimated fair market value than the original cost of those inventories and were therefore written down to
their estimated fair market value.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using the straight−line
method over the related assets’ estimated useful lives, which is generally two to five years for machinery and equipment and three to
seven years for office furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over their estimated useful lives, or the lease
term, whichever is shorter. Expenditures that materially increase asset life are capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are
expensed as incurred.

Capitalized Software Costs

The Company capitalizes the costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use in accordance with Statement of
Position 98−1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitalized computer
software costs consist of purchased software licenses, implementation costs, consulting costs and payroll−related costs for certain
projects that qualify for capitalization. The Company expenses costs related to preliminary project assessment, training and application
maintenance as incurred, and amortizes the capitalized computer software costs on a straight−line basis over the estimated useful life
of the software upon being placed in service.

Long−Lived Assets

The Company periodically assesses potential impairments to its long−lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long−Lived Assets.” SFAS No. 144 requires, among other things, that an
entity perform an impairment review whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully
recoverable. Factors considered by the Company include, but are not limited to: significant underperformance relative to expected
historical or projected future operating results; significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the
Company’s overall business; and significant negative industry or economic trends. When the Company determines that the carrying
value of a long−lived asset may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, the
Company estimates the future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the
sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows and eventual disposition is less than the carrying amount of the asset, the
Company recognizes an impairment loss. An impairment loss is reflected as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds the fair market value of the asset, based on the fair market value if available, or discounted cash flows. To date, there has been
no impairment of long−lived assets.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which, among
other things, establishes standards for goodwill acquired in a business combination, eliminates the amortization of goodwill and
requires the carrying value of goodwill and certain non−amortizing intangibles to be evaluated for impairment on an annual basis. As
required by SFAS No. 142, the Company performs an impairment test on recorded goodwill by comparing the
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estimated fair value of each of the Company’s three reporting units, which are the same as the Company’s three operating segments, to
the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of each unit, including goodwill. The Company determines fair value of the reporting
units principally based upon management’s determination of the value of the Company as a whole. This value is determined by
considering a number of factors, including the Company’s historical and projected financial results, valuation analysis, risks facing the
Company and the liquidity of its common stock. If the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of the reporting units, including
goodwill, were to exceed the Company’s estimation of the fair value of the reporting units, the Company would record an impairment
charge in an amount equal to the excess of the carrying value of goodwill over the implied fair value of the goodwill for each reporting
unit. The Company performs an evaluation of goodwill as of October 31 of each year, absent any indicators of earlier impairment, to
ensure that impairment charges, if applicable, are reflected in our financial results before December 31 of each year. To date, there has
been no impairment of goodwill.

The Company accounts for intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144. This standard requires that intangible assets with
definite lives be amortized over their estimated useful lives and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate an asset’s carrying value many not be recoverable. Recoverability of an asset is measured by comparison of its carrying
amount to the expected future undiscounted cash flows that the asset is expected to generate. If it is determined that an asset is not
recoverable, an impairment loss is recorded in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. The
Company’s intangible assets principally consist of acquired technology and developed patents and trademarks, which are being
amortized over their respective lives. To date, there has been no impairment of intangible assets.

Variable Interest Entities

VIEs as defined by FIN 46(R), are entities in which equity investors generally do not have the characteristics of a “controlling
financial interest,” or for which there is not sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional
subordinated financial support. FIN 46(R) requires that if an entity is the primary beneficiary of a VIE, the assets, liabilities, and
results of operations of the VIE should be included in the consolidated financial statements of the entity. For variable interest entities,
the Company assesses the terms of its interest in each entity to determine if it is the primary beneficiary as prescribed by FIN 46(R).
The primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity is the party that absorbs a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a
majority of its expected residual returns, or both, as a result of holding variable interests, which are the ownership, contractual, or
other pecuniary interests in an entity that change with changes in the fair value of the entity’s net assets excluding variable interests.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, delivery has occurred or services have
been rendered, the buyer’s price is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.

Revenues from multiple−element arrangements involving license fees, up−front payments and milestone payments, which are
received and/or billable by the Company in connection with other rights and services that represent continuing obligations of the
Company, are deferred until all of the elements have been delivered or until the Company has established objective and verifiable
evidence of the fair
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value of the undelivered elements. Deferred revenues arise from payments received in advance of the culmination of the earnings
process. Deferred revenues expected to be recognized within the next twelve months are classified within current liabilities. Deferred
revenues will be recognized as revenue in future periods when the applicable revenue recognition criteria, as described above, are met.

Revenue from the sale of cinema hardware products is recorded upon delivery, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are
met. The licensing, encoding and duplication of motion picture soundtracks for use in the audio playback systems manufactured by the
Company is undertaken under arrangements with major film producers and distributors. Revenue arising from the licensing and
duplication of soundtracks is recognized upon delivery, assuming all other revenue recognition criteria are met.

Direct costs associated with deferred revenue are deferred and included in other assets. Included in the balance sheet are $2,630
and $1,734 of deferred revenue and costs, respectively, at December 31, 2005. Included in the balance sheet are $94 and $44 of
deferred revenue and costs, respectively, at December 31, 2006.

Revenue from licensing audio technology, trademarks and know−how is generated from licensing agreements with consumer
electronics product manufacturers that pay a per−unit license fee for products manufactured under those license agreements. Licensees
generally report manufacturing information within 30 to 60 days after the end of the quarter in which such activity takes place.
Consequently, the Company recognizes revenue from these licensing agreements on a three−month lag basis, generally in the quarter
following the quarter of manufacture, provided amounts are fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured, since the
Company cannot reliably estimate the amount of revenue earned prior to the receipt of such reports. Use of this lag method allows for
the receipt of licensee royalty reports prior to the recognition of revenue.

Revenue from the sale of multi−channel audio content is recorded upon delivery to retail accounts or end customers, assuming title
and risk of loss has transferred to the customer, prices are fixed or determinable, no significant Company obligations remain and
collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. The Company’s shipping terms are customarily FOB shipping point with
title transfer and risk of loss transferring to the customer upon shipment.

Management provides for returns on product sales based on historical experience and adjusts such reserves as considered
necessary.

Service revenues of $0, $5,328 and $8,015 and cost of sales of $0, $6,277 and $8,243 for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006, respectively, from digital image enhancement, restoration and repair were recognized when completed titles or film
reels subject to a customer order or contract were delivered and accepted by the customer and no significant obligations remained
assuming all other revenue recognition criteria were met. Prices are established in advance of the work performed and are generally
fixed in nature. Revenue related to time and materials contracts is recognized as services are rendered at contract labor rates plus
material and other direct costs incurred. If losses are anticipated on a contract, such losses are recognized immediately.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Costs related to the delivery of products to customers are included in cost of goods sold, and payment for those costs are included
in revenue.
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Patents and Trademarks

Costs incurred in securing patents and trademarks protecting the Company’s proprietary technology and brand name are
capitalized. Patent and trademark costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives, typically ten years and five years, respectively.
The amortization period commences when the patent or trademark is issued.

Research and Development Costs (“R&D”)

The Company conducts its R&D internally and expenses are comprised of the following types of costs incurred in performing
research and development activities: salaries and benefits, allocated overhead, contract services, consultants and other outside costs. In
accordance with SFAS No. 2, “Accounting for Research and Development Costs,” all R&D costs are expensed as incurred.

Acquired In−process Research and Development (“IPR&D”)

The value assigned to acquired in−process research and development is determined by identifying specific acquired in−process
research and development projects that would be continued and for which the fair value is estimable with reasonable reliability. Upon
consummation of a business combination, acquired in−process research and development is expensed where (i) technological
feasibility has not been established at the acquisition date and (ii) there is no alternative future use.

Provision for Warranty Claims

The Company offers a limited warranty for product sales that generally provides customers with a one or three year warranty
period against defects. Provisions for warranty claims are recorded at the time products are sold and are reviewed and adjusted by
management periodically to reflect actual and anticipated experience.

An analysis of changes in the liability for product warranty claims is as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Balance at beginning of period $ 81 $ 162 $ 365
Current year provision 135 315 84
Expenditures (54) (112) (174)
Balance at end of period $ 162 $ 365 $ 275

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of the Company’s wholly−owned subsidiaries is the United States dollar and accordingly, gains and losses
resulting from the translation of accounts denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are reflected in the
determination of net income. To date, annual gains and losses have not been significant.
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Advertising Expenses

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $2,508, $2,373 and $2,109 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

The Company accounts for comprehensive income in accordance with SFAS No. 130, “Comprehensive Income,” which
established standards for reporting comprehensive income and its components in financial statements. Comprehensive income, as
defined, includes all changes in stockholders’ equity during a period from non−owner sources. To date, comprehensive income does
not differ from net income for the periods presented.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes utilizing SFAS No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes,” as amended. Under SFAS
No. 109, the deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured each year based on the difference between the financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities at the applicable enacted tax rates. Additionally, a valuation allowance is recorded for that portion of
deferred tax assets for which it is more likely than not that the assets will not be realized. The deferred tax provision is the result of
changes in the deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Segment Information

The Company uses the “management approach” in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information.” The management approach designates the internal organization used by the chief operating decision maker,
the Chief Executive Officer, for making operating decisions and assessing performance as the source for determining the Company’s
reportable segments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash, cash equivalents, short−term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities approximates fair value due to the short−term nature of these instruments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company plans to adopt SFAS No. 157 effective January 1,
2008. The Company is in the process of determining the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on its financial
statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109” (“FIN No. 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This Interpretation requires that the
Company recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on
audit, based on the
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technical merits of the position. The accounting provisions of FIN No. 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company plans to adopt FIN No. 48 effective January 1, 2007, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle, if any, recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
FIN No. 48 and its impact on the Company’s financial position, cash flows, and results of operations.

In June 2006, the FASB EITF issued EITF Issue No. 06−3, “How Sales Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to
Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That Is, Gross Versus Net Presentation),” which states that a
company should disclose its accounting policy (i.e., gross or net presentation) regarding presentation of taxes within the scope of this
issue. If taxes included in gross revenues are significant, a company should disclose the amount of such taxes for each period for
which an income statement is presented. The consensus would be effective for the first annual or interim reporting period beginning
after December 15, 2006. The disclosures are required for annual and interim financial statements for each period for which an income
statement is presented. The Company plans to adopt this issue effective January 1, 2007. Based on the Company’s current evaluation
of this issue, the Company does not expect the adoption of EITF Issue No. 06−3 to have a significant impact on its consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 123(R), “Share−Based Payment,” which requires companies to measure and
recognize compensation costs for all share−based payments (including stock options) at fair value, effective for interim or annual
periods beginning after June 15, 2005. On April 15, 2005, the SEC announced a deferral of the effective date of SFAS
No. 123(R) until the first interim or annual reporting period of the first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005. Effective
January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) as discussed in Footnote 16 of the consolidated financial
statements, “Stock−Based Compensation.” In March 2005, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107 relating
to SFAS 123(R). The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107 in its adoption of SFAS 123(R).

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued SAB No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides guidance on how prior year misstatements should be
taken into consideration when quantifying misstatements in current year financial statements for purposes of determining whether the
current year’s financial statements are materially misstated. SAB No. 108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006.
The adoption of SAB No. 108 had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 3—Consolidation of Avica as a Variable Interest Entity

In November 2006, the Company closed a worldwide exclusive license agreement with Avica, a provider of a suite of
technologies, products and services that handle content delivery and presentation for distribution networks. Under the worldwide
exclusive license agreement, the Company acquired for $5,000 a worldwide exclusive license for substantially all of Avica’s
intellectual property in all fields of use other than military applications. The Company may also be required to pay Avica up to $2,500
upon the Company meeting certain unit sales targets of licensed Avica product. Under an option agreement entered into between the
Company and Avica, the Company may elect, in its sole discretion, to purchase substantially all of the assets of Avica for a purchase
price not to exceed $1,500. If Avica meets certain
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obligations to the Company and the Company does not exercise its option before expiration of the term of the agreements or if the
Company voluntarily terminates the agreements, the Company may be required to pay up to $500. During the term of the agreements
Avica is restricted from entering into material contracts, initiating bankruptcy, commencing any legal actions and paying bonuses,
among other items, without first obtaining written consent from the Company.

The Company, Avica and a significant majority of Avica’s shareholders have also entered into a voting agreement, pursuant to
which each such Avica shareholder has covenanted (i) to vote in favor of, and not against, the above−noted transactions with the
Company and (ii) not to sell or transfer Avica shares without obtaining a written agreement from the transferee to abide by the terms
and conditions of the voting agreement.

Although the Company currently has no ownership interest in Avica, it is considered to be a VIE of the Company in accordance
with FIN 46(R), and the Company is considered to be the primary beneficiary of Avica. Therefore, the Company has included the
assets, liabilities, and results of operations of Avica in its consolidated financial statements from the date of the close of the license
agreement. The Company expects the consolidation of Avica will continue to have an impact on its financial results in future periods,
because it will continue to recognize the operating losses generated by Avica since the shareholders’ equity of Avica is in a net deficit
position.

While the Company has consolidated the liabilities of Avica in accordance with FIN 46(R), it has no obligation to pay any
amounts to any of Avica’s creditors. As such, creditors of Avica lack any recourse to the assets of the Company.

The total changes to the Company’s total assets and total liabilities related to the consolidation of  Avica included in the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 were $3,616 and $3,878, respectively.

The total revenues, gross loss, loss from operations and net loss of Avica from the close of the license agreement on November 11,
2006 through December 31, 2006, which is included in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of Operations were $0, $82, $266, and
$262, respectively. These amounts are also included in the Company’s Cinema operating segment.

Note 4—Separation and Restructuring Costs

Separation and restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $4.9 million. These costs relate to three
components: (i) the separation of the Company’s DTS Digital Cinema business, (ii) the buy−out of a commission agreement related to
licensing intellectual property in the China market, and (iii) the write−down of DTSE inventory and other assets.

In August 2006, the Company announced that it was studying the potential separation of its business and in November 2006, the
Company announced its intent to proceed with the separation of its Cinema and Digital Images businesses from its Consumer
licensing business. The separation costs, which totaled $1.1 million, consist primarily of legal and accounting expenses relating to the
proposed separation of its business. The Company expects to continue to incur costs relating to the sale of the DTS Digital Cinema
business but cannot currently estimate the amount of any future costs relating to the sale.
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When the Company started its Consumer operations in China in 2003, it engaged a company with a strong presence in China to
assist it with certain aspects of these operations. The agreement called for annual payments to the Chinese company based on the
profitability of the Company’s China subsidiary and certain other factors. The Company decided to take complete control over its
future in China. Therefore, the Company negotiated an early termination of this agreement, which required the Company to make a
one−time termination payment of $3.0 million, which was paid in the fourth quarter of 2006.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company wrote−down $0.8 million of DTSE inventory and other assets as part of its
restructuring effort to refocus DTSE’s efforts back to more of a licensing and content support role.

Note 5—Cash and Short−term Investments

Cash and short−term investments consist of the following:

As of December 31,
2005 2006

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 12,040 $ 10,038
Money market accounts 21,214 6,033
Municipal securities — 1,026

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 33,254 $ 17,097
Short−term investments:

Available−for−sale securities:
Certificates of deposit $ 8,121 $ —
Corporate bonds 3,570 —
Commercial paper 6,993 —
Municipal securities 59,479 64,652

78,163 64,652
Held−to−maturity securities:

Certificates of deposit — 522
Corporate bonds — 5,434
Commercial paper — 9,316
Municipal securities — 14,444

— 29,716
Total short−term investments $ 78,163 $ 94,368

As of December 31, 2005 and 2006, the Company did not have material unrealized gains or losses on its available−for−sale or
held−to−maturity securities.
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The contractual maturities of short−term investments at December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Available−for−sale securities:
Due within one year $ 11,109
Due after one year through five years 1,104
Due after five years through ten years 1,003
Due after ten years 51,436

64,652
Held−to−maturity securities:

Due within one year 29,716

Total short−term investments $ 94,368

Note 6—Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

As of 
December 31,

2005 2006

Raw materials, net $ 1,062 $ 1,170
Finished goods, net 2,199 1,986

Total inventories, net $ 3,261 $ 3,156

Note 7—Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

As of December 31,
2005 2006

Machinery and equipment $ 6,847 $ 8,533
Office furniture and fixtures 3,588 3,989
Leasehold improvements 3,697 3,915
Software 590 3,776

14,722 20,213
Less: Accumulated depreciation (7,347) (8,875)

Property and equipment, net $ 7,375 $ 11,338
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Depreciation expense was $1,135, $2,231 and $3,056 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Note 8—Acquired Technology

On April 17, 2006, the Company acquired for $1,000 the Digital Booking Systems technology (“DBS”) from FilmStew
International, Inc. DBS is an application that enables cinema exhibitors and distributors to manage entertainment content via the
internet. DBS allows exhibitors and distributors to conduct business online, thereby accelerating the process of booking playdates,
scheduling showtimes, programming trailers, tracking data and facilitating film rental payments. Intangible assets, net, includes $929
for the purchase of this asset, which represents the net present value of the total acquisition cost. As of December 31, 2006, the
Company has paid $500 of the total purchase price and the balance is due in two future installments through 2008.

Note 9—Goodwill and Intangibles

In the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company added $3,585 to goodwill in connection with the acquisition of Lowry Digital
Images, Inc., which is included in the Digital Images business segment. Subsequent to the acquisition, the business was renamed to
DTS Digital Images (“DTS DI”). The Company did not have goodwill prior to this acquisition.

Included in cost of sales is $0, $977 and $1,335 of amortization relating to existing technologies, backlog and customer
relationships for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Included in operating expenses is $89, $594 and
$379 of amortization relating to non−compete and tradename for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The
following table summarizes the weighted average lives and the carrying values of the Company’s acquired intangible and other
intangible assets by category:

Weighted As of December 31, 2006 As of December 31, 2005
Average

Life
(Years)

Gross
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Gross
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Acquired intangible
assets:
Existing technology 10 $ 19,905 $ (2,564) $ 17,341 $ 11,627 $ (1,195) $ 10,432
Customer

relationships 4 331 (115) 216 331 (21) 310
Non−compete 3 400 (267) 133 400 (133) 267
Backlog 2 100 (100) — 100 (50) 50
Tradename 1 200 (200) — 200 (200) —

20,936 (3,246) 17,690 12,658 (1,599) 11,059
Other intangible

assets:
Patents 10 1,188 (583) 605 965 (528) 437
Trademarks 5 240 (111) 129 215 (99) 116

1,428 (694) 734 1,180 (627) 553
Total intangible assets $ 22,364 $ (3,940) $ 18,424 $ 13,838 $ (2,226) $ 11,612
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As of December 31, 2006, the Company expects the amortization of intangible assets for future periods to be as follows:

Estimated
Amortization

Expense

2007 $ 2,459
2008 2,320
2009 2,233
2010 2,121
2011 1,976
Thereafter 7,315

Total $ 18,424

Note 10—Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

As of December 31,
2005 2006

Accrued payroll and related benefits $ 3,898 $ 3,328
Production advance 1,022 822
Other 2,063 2,703

Total accrued expenses $ 6,983 $ 6,853

Note 11—Bank Line of Credit

The Company has in place a $10,000 credit facility that expires on June 30, 2007 and is renewable annually. The bank agreement
provides for working capital financing and is unsecured. The bank agreement requires the Company to comply with certain covenants
including a tangible effective net worth of $60,000, increasing by 50% of net income on an annual basis. The covenants also require
the Company to keep $2,000 in cash or securities at the bank. At December 31, 2006, the Company was compliant with all covenants
under the bank agreement.

At December 31, 2006, there were no balances outstanding under this agreement and there was $10,000 of available borrowings
under this credit facility. Future borrowings will bear interest based on either of the two options the Company selects at the time of
advances (i) a rate equal to 2% above the LIBOR, or (ii) a rate equal to the Base Rate as quoted from the bank less one−half percent.
The annual commitment fee for this line of credit is not significant.

Note 12—Business Combinations

In January 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of DTS DI for $9,642 in cash. DTS DI provides image enhancement and
restoration services for film producers and distributors for home or professional playback of high quality, high definition presentations
in digital cinema, high definition optical media or broadcast applications. In late 2004, the Company loaned DTS DI a total of $1,250
to enable DTS DI to satisfy certain liabilities. Neither DTS DI nor its stockholders were required to repay this loan
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prior to, or in connection with, the acquisition. The cash portion of the acquisition was funded by working capital.

The total purchase price for the acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of DTS DI is as follows:

Cash $ 9,642
Bridge loan, including interest 1,261
Direct acquisition costs 1,346
Total purchase price $ 12,249

The DTS DI acquisition was accounted for as a purchase business combination. The results of operations of DTS DI are included
in our Consolidated Statement of Operations from January 3, 2005. Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase price
is allocated to DTS DI’s net tangible and intangible assets based on their estimated fair value as of the date of completion of the
acquisition. Based on the purchase price and the valuation, the purchase price allocation is as follows:

Accounts receivable $ 190
Tangible assets 1,094
Other assets 57
Deferred tax assets 1,356
Amortizable intangible assets:

Existing technology 10,200
Non−compete 400
Backlog 100
Tradename 200

IPR&D 2,300
Goodwill 3,585
Total assets acquired 19,482
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (942)
Accrued liabilities (819)
Notes payable (368)
Deferred revenues (928)
Total liabilities assumed (3,057)
Net deferred tax liability for acquired intangibles and purchase

accounting (4,176)
Total purchase price $ 12,249

The Company allocated $10,900 to amortizable intangible assets consisting of existing technology, non−compete, backlog, and
tradenames.

The Company allocated $3,585 to goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair market value of the
net tangible and amortizable intangible assets acquired.
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IPR&D, relating to development projects which had not reached technological feasibility and that were of no future alternative
use, was expensed upon consummation of the acquisition. Other identifiable intangible assets are being amortized over the following
estimated economic useful lives:

Estimated Useful
Life (Years)

Existing technology 11
Non−compete 3
Backlog 2
Tradename 1

Developed technology and IPR&D were identified and valued through extensive interviews, analysis of data provided by DTS DI
concerning development projects, their stage of development, the time and resources needed to complete them, if applicable, and their
expected income generating ability and associated risks. Where development projects had reached technological feasibility, they were
classified as developed technology and the value assigned to developed technology was capitalized. The income approach, which
includes an analysis of the cash flows and risks associated with achieving such cash flows, was the primary technique utilized in
valuing acquired IPR&D. Key assumptions for IPR&D included a discount rate of 30% and estimates of revenue growth, cost of sales,
operating expenses and taxes.

The former shareholders of DTS DI were entitled to receive shares of DTS common stock if certain gross profit targets in 2006
were met. In the event that the targets were met in full, an aggregate of up to approximately 653,000 shares of DTS common stock
would be issued. The gross profit targets were not met in 2006; therefore, no additional compensation is owed to the former
shareholders of DTS DI.

The results of operations of DTS DI are included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations from January 3, 2005,
the date of acquisition. For the purposes of presenting the unaudited pro forma financial information, the Company used the income
statements of DTS DI for the year ended December 31, 2004. If the Company had acquired DTS DI at the beginning of fiscal year
2004, the Company’s unaudited pro forma net revenues, net income and net income per share for the year ended December 31, 2004
would have been as follows:

Year
Ended

December 31,
2004

Revenue $ 66,456

Net income $ 8,039

Net income per share—Basic $ 0.48

Net income per share—Diluted $ 0.44

In July 2004, the Company completed the acquisition of QDesign Corporation for $1,500 in cash. Under the terms of the
acquisition, the Company also contingently agreed to pay an additional amount up to a maximum of $450 in cash, which is held by the
Company in a restricted account. The Company classifies the restricted cash in other current and non−current assets. The contingent
payment is being accounted for as compensation expense ratably over the three−year period ending July 2007, and will be
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paid out if certain criteria are met. Two payments of $150 each have been made related to the aforementioned contingent amount, one
in 2005 and the other in 2006.

The allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on the estimated fair values was as
follows:

Cash acquired $ 117
Property and equipment 15
Acquired technology 1,426
Other assets 8

Total assets acquired 1,566
Liabilities assumed 66

Total $ 1,500

Amortizable intangible assets consist of acquired technology with a useful life of eight years.

The results of operations of this acquisition have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations since the
completion of the acquisition in July 2004.

Note 13—Commitments and Contingencies

Warehouse, office facilities and certain office equipment are leased under operating leases expiring in various years through 2015.
Some leases contain renewal options and escalation clauses including increases in annual rents based upon increases in the consumer
price index. Minimum future rental payments under non−cancelable operating leases, net of sublease income, are as follows:

Years Ending December 31,

2007 $ 1,092
2008 921
2009 367
2010 284
2011 240
2012 and thereafter 565

$ 3,469

Rent expense, net of sublease income, amounted to $883, $1,379 and $1,718 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006, respectively.

Under the terms of the acquisition of QDesign Corporation, the Company has contingently committed to pay a maximum of $150
during 2007 as compensation expense if certain criteria are met. For additional information regarding this commitment, see Footnote
12 of the consolidated financial statements, “Business Combinations.”

In 2005, the Company entered into an agreement for the purchase and implementation of a new enterprise resource planning
system, or ERP, for approximately $747, which was due in two equal
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installments over two years. The Company has a commitment to pay the second installment of $373 during 2007.

The Company also enters into contracts with manufacturers to provide certain manufacturing services. If the Company were to
have terminated these contracts at December 31, 2006, it would have to make payments of approximately $2,576.

During its normal course of business, the Company has made certain indemnities, commitments and guarantees under which it
may be required to make payments in relation to certain transactions. Those indemnities include intellectual property indemnities to
the Company’s customers in connection with the sale of its products and the licensing of its technology, indemnities for liabilities
associated with the infringement of other parties’ technology based upon the Company’s products and technology, and indemnities to
directors and officers of the Company to the maximum extent permitted under the laws of the State of Delaware. The duration of these
indemnities, commitments and guarantees varies, and in certain cases, is indefinite. The majority of these indemnities, commitments
and guarantees do not provide for any limitation of the maximum potential future payments that the Company could be obligated to
make. To date, the Company has not been required to make any payments and has not recorded any liability for these indemnities,
commitments and guarantees in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company does, however, accrue for losses for any known
contingent liability, including those that may arise from indemnification provisions, when future payment is probable.

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to certain claims and litigation, including unasserted claims. The
Company is of the opinion that, based on information presently available, any such legal matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

Note 14—Related Party Transactions

One of the Company’s 5% or greater stockholders was both a customer of and a supplier to the Company. Sales to this stockholder
totaled $648 for the year ended December 31, 2004. Purchases from the stockholder totaled $39 for the year ended December 31,
2004. This entity was not considered a related party in 2005 or 2006.

The Company had sales of $219 for the year ended December 31, 2004, to a customer which was an 18.8% owned affiliate up
until the end of the third quarter of 2005. The Company had sales of $41 to this customer for the nine months ended September 30,
2005. This entity was not considered a related party as of the fourth quarter of 2005 or for the full year of 2006.
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Note 15—Income Taxes

United States and foreign income (loss) before taxes and details of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

United States $ 12,237 $ 13,746 $ 9,343
Foreign 3,274 (1,556) (5,501)
Income before income taxes $ 15,511 $ 12,190 $ 3,842
Current:

Federal $ 5,307 $ 2,375 $ (1,287)
State 1,358 253 456
Foreign 960 184 4,271

Total current 7,625 2,812 3,440
Deferred:

Federal (1,774) 1,010 (2,326)
State (316) 460 (296)

Total deferred (2,090) 1,470 (2,622)
Provision for income taxes $ 5,535 $ 4,282 $ 818

The components of temporary differences that gave rise to deferred income tax are as follows:

As of  December 31,
2005 2006

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued revenues $ 4,667 $ 5,146
Loss carryforwards 561 338
Inventory 1,145 1,282
Credit carryforwards — 2,685
Accounting method change 1,063 835
Deferred Revenue 395 36
Depreciation and amortization 436 —
Compensation expense under SFAS No. 123(R) — 922
Accrued expenses 895 570
Other assets 152 —

Total deferred tax assets 9,314 11,814
Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and amortization — 654
Acquired intangibles 3,673 3,796

Total deferred tax liabilities 3,673 4,450
Deferred tax assets, net 5,641 7,364
Current deferred tax assets 7,255 7,059
Non−current deferred tax assets (liabilities), net $ (1,614) $ 305
Deferred tax assets, net 5,641 7,364
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There is no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of $7,364 at December 31, 2006, based on management’s assessment of the
Company’s ability to utilize these deferred tax assets. Realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent on the Company
generating sufficient taxable income in the future. Although realization is not assured, the Company believes it is more likely than not
that the deferred tax assets will be realized. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in
the future if estimates of future taxable income are reduced.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had approximately $11,019 in tax loss carryforwards.  These tax loss carryforwards consist
of federal and state net operating losses of $5,229 and $5,790, respectively, and begin to expire in 2024 and 2014, respectively.
Included in these tax loss carryforwards are stock−based compensation deductions that, when fully utilized, reduce cash income taxes
and will result in a financial statement income tax benefit of $1,688. The future income tax benefit, if realized, will be recorded to
additional paid−in capital.

The income tax provision excludes the current year income tax deductions related to the issuance of common stock from the
exercise of stock options for which no compensation expense was recorded for accounting purposes or for which the income tax
deduction exceeded the expense recorded for accounting purposes.

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount obtained by applying the federal statutory income tax rate to income
before provision for income taxes as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Statutory federal rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net 4.5 5.9 5.1
In−process research and development — 6.6 —
Effect of varying foreign rates (6.9) 4.9 62.2
Extraterritorial income exclusion — (9.3) (69.6)
Tax exempt interest — (4.1) (35.8)
Separation and restructuring costs — — 10.4
Equity based compensation expense 8.6
Impact of Avica consolidation — — 2.4
Research and development credits — — 5.4
Domestic Production Activities Deduction (3.8)
Other 3.1 (3.9) 1.4
Effective tax rate 35.7% 35.1% 21.3%

The Company had not provided for United States income taxes or foreign withholding taxes in its effective tax rate on
approximately $1,857 of undistributed earnings from its foreign subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006. The Company intends to
reinvest these earnings indefinitely in operations outside of the United States.

The significant rate increase due to the effect on varying foreign income tax rates was largely due to unbenefited losses in certain
foreign jurisdictions resulting from cost sharing and service agreement
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termination payments. However, this was offset by additional benefit from the extraterritorial income exclusion that resulted from a
favorable resolution of the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) audit mentioned below.

During the years ended December 31, 2004, the Company received a tax holiday from the Chinese taxing authorities. For the tax
year ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, the Company was awarded a reduced tax rate of 18% on income in China based on
achieving “high−tech” status, which the Company expects to renew on an annual basis. The tax holiday and reduced rate resulted in
reductions to income taxes of $323 and $215 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, with earnings per diluted
common share benefits for these same periods of $0.02 and $0.01, respectively.

Income tax receivable, net at December 31, 2005 and 2006, includes estimated tax contingencies of $1,410 and $726, respectively,
for both domestic and foreign issues. The net decrease of $684 was due mainly to the conclusion of the IRS regular audit of the
Company’s 2003 tax returns in June 2006. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years,
based on the assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law applied to the facts of each matter.
Inherent uncertainties exist in estimating tax contingencies due to the progress of income tax audits and changes in tax law, both
legislated and concluded through the various jurisdictions’ tax court systems.

Note 16—Stock−Based Compensation

Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), which requires compensation cost relating to
share−based payment awards made to employees and directors be recognized in the financial statements. The Company elected to use
the modified−prospective−transition method. Under the transition method, compensation expense recognized beginning January 1,
2006 includes: (i) compensation cost for all share−based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on
the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, and (ii) compensation cost for all
share−based payments granted on or after January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). The Company did not restate its results for prior periods.

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for its employee stock option and stock purchase plans in accordance with the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and the related FIN
No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation,” and complied with the disclosure provisions of SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock−Based Compensation.” Under the provisions of these pronouncements, all options granted under
those plans had an exercise price equal to or greater than the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant, which
resulted in no recognition of stock−based compensation expense. For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the company
recognized no stock−based employee compensation cost from stock options.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company’s income before taxes and net income for the year
ended December 31, 2006, were approximately $3,586 and $2,125 lower, respectively, than if it had continued to account for
share−based compensation under APB No. 25. Basic
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and diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 would have been $0.29 and $0.28, respectively, if it had not
adopted SFAS No. 123(R), compared to reported basic and diluted earnings per share of $0.17 and $0.16, respectively. The total
stock−based compensation cost that has been recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations was $273, $75 and $3,737 for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, was recorded to cost of goods sold, and selling, general and
administrative expenses, and research and development expenses. Stock−based compensation cost recorded to cost of goods sold for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $0, $0 and $134, respectively. Stock−based compensation cost recorded to
selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $273, $75 and $3,140,
respectively. Stock−based compensation cost recorded to research and development expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 was $0, $0 and $463, respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized was $97, $26 and $1,523 for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock
options as operating cash flows in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting
from the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax
benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. The $411 excess tax benefit classified as a financing cash inflow would have been
classified as an operating cash inflow if the Company had not adopted SFAS No. 123(R). During the year ended December 31, 2006,
the Company received $1,607 in cash from stock option exercises.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 123(R)−3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for Tax
Effects of Share−Based Payment Awards,” (“FSP 123(R)−3”). The Company has elected to adopt the alternative transition method
provided in FSP 123(R)−3 for calculating the tax effects of stock−based compensation pursuant to SFAS No. 123(R). The alternative
transition method includes a simplified method to establish the beginning balance of the additional paid−in capital (“APIC pool”)
related to the tax effects of employee and director stock−based compensation, and to determine the subsequent impact on the APIC
pool and the consolidated statements of cash flows of the tax effects of employee and director stock−based awards that are outstanding
upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).
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If the Company had elected for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 to recognize compensation cost for stock options
based on their fair value at the grant dates, consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123, net income and net income per
share would have been as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005

Net income:
As reported $ 9,976 $ 7,908
Additional stock−based compensation expense determined under the

fair value method, net of tax (1,786) (5,392)
Pro forma $ 8,190 $ 2,516

Net income per common share—basic:
As reported $ 0.59 $ 0.46
Per share effect of additional stock−based compensation expense

determined under the fair value method, net of tax (0.11) (0.31)
Pro forma $ 0.48 $ 0.15

Net income per common share—diluted:
As reported $ 0.55 $ 0.43
Per share effect of additional stock−based compensation expense

determined under the fair value method, net of tax (0.10) (0.29)
Pro forma $ 0.45 $ 0.14

The Company has historically recognized compensation cost over the nominal vesting period, whereby if an employee retired
before the end of the vesting period, the Company would recognize any remaining unrecognized compensation cost at the date of
retirement. The FASB clarified in SFAS No. 123(R) that the fair value of such stock options should be expensed based on recognition
under a non−substantive vesting period approach, requiring compensation expense recognition when an employee is eligible to retire.
Company employees are eligible to retire after age 60. For those employees that retire and are eligible, their options may continue to
vest upon the original vesting schedules. The SEC recently clarified that companies should continue the vesting method they have
been using until adoption of SFAS 123(R), then apply the accelerated non−substantive vesting approach to all subsequent grants to
those employees whose options continue to vest after the date of retirement eligibility. For the year ended December 31, 2005, had the
Company been accounting for such stock options using the non−substantive vesting approach for retirement−eligible employees, the
Company would have not recognized additional stock−based compensation expense.

Various Stock Plans

In 1997, the Company adopted a stock option plan (the “1997 Plan”) for eligible employees, directors and consultants. In 2002, the
Company adopted a stock option plan (the “2002 Plan”) for management and certain key employees. Options granted under the plans
may be incentive stock options intended to satisfy the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
and the regulations thereunder, or non−qualified options. Options generally become exercisable over a four−year period and
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expire in ten years. The total number of shares of common stock that may be issued under both plans amounted to a maximum of
2,071. Options granted prior to 2002 were granted at exercise prices equal to the preferred stock financing prices, which were in
excess of the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock.

In March 2002, the Company offered a stock option replacement program for employees, directors and non−employee consultants
participating in the existing plan. Under the stock option replacement program, participants were able to elect to cancel their current
options and have those options replaced after six months and one day with options having an exercise price equal to the stock’s
then−current fair value. Options to purchase a total of 930 shares were cancelled under the stock option replacement program. On
September 30, 2002, six months and 15 days after the cancellation of options exchanged under the option replacement program, the
Company granted options to purchase a total of 929 shares of common stock as replacement awards at an exercise price of $1.02,
which represented the fair value of the Company’s common stock on that date.

In April 2003, the Company’s Board adopted the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan”) under which an additional 929
shares were authorized for future issuances of common stock. Additionally, the shares available for issuances of common stock
options under the 1997 and 2002 Plans were transferred to the 2003 Plan for future issuances of common stock options. The 2003 Plan
contains a provision (the “Evergreen Provision”) for an automatic increase in the number of shares available for grant starting
January 1, 2004 and each January thereafter until and including January 1, 2013, subject to certain limitations, by a number of shares
equal to the lesser of: (i) four percent of the number of shares issued and outstanding on the immediately preceding December 31,
(ii) 1,500 shares, or (iii) a number of shares set by the Board of Directors.

The fair value of each employee option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black−Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted average key assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Risk free interest rate 3.4% 3.8% 4.4%
Expected lives (years) 4 4 5.8
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 50% 50% 58%

The dividend yield was not calculated because the Company does not currently expect to pay a dividend. The expected life of the
options granted was derived from the historical activity of the Company’s options and represented the period of time that options
granted were expected to be outstanding. Expected volatility was based on a blend of the historical volatility of the Company’s
common stock and publicly traded peer companies. The risk−free interest rate was the average interest rates of U.S. government bonds
of comparable term to the options on the dates of the option grants.

There were 571, 685 and 374 options granted during the year ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The
weighted average fair value of options granted during the year ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $9.40, $7.62 and
$10.56, respectively. Stock−based compensation expense for stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006, was calculated
based on their fair value at the grant dates, consistent with the method prescribed by SFAS No. 123(R) adjusted by estimated
forfeitures as prescribed
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by SFAS 123(R). Compensation expense for stock options, under SFAS 123(R), was $2,631 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The following table summarizes information about stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2006:

Options
Outstanding

Weighted−
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted−
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value

Options outstanding at December 31,
2005 2,322 $ 12.73
Granted 374 19.04
Exercised (357) 4.50
Expired or cancelled (51) 19.48

Options outstanding at December 31,
2006 2,288 $ 14.90 7.40 $ 21,252

Options exercisable at December 31, 2006 1,486 $ 13.19 6.71 $ 16,347

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

Number
Outstanding at
December 31,

2006

Weighted−
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (Years)

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

Number
Exercisable at 
December 31, 

2006

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

$  1.02 − $  3.07 573 5.66 $ 1.02 573 $ 1.02
    3.08 −     6.16 8 2.31 4.15 7 4.10
    6.17 −     9.23 10 6.20 8.02 7 8.02
    9.24 −   12.31 3 6.29 10.59 3 10.57
  12.32 −   15.40 59 7.70 14.16 24 13.87
  15.41 −   18.47 735 8.46 17.11 221 16.52
  18.48 −   21.55 308 8.61 19.75 81 19.74
  21.56 −   24.63 557 7.23 23.18 535 23.12
  24.64 −   27.71 28 6.92 25.94 28 25.94
  27.72 −   30.79 7 6.77 30.79 7 30.79
$  1.02 − $30.79 2,288 7.40 $ 14.90 1,486 $ 13.19

On November 17, 2005, the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Board of Directors of the Company approved the
acceleration of the unvested portion of certain stock options held by employees, officers and directors of the Company. The options
that were accelerated have exercise prices greater than $21.00 per share, which is higher than the $14.76 closing price of the
Company’s common stock as quoted on the Nasdaq National Market on November 17, 2005. These options would have vested and
become exercisable from time to time over the next 32 months. As a result of the acceleration, all of these options became fully vested
and immediately exercisable. All other terms and conditions applicable to outstanding stock option grants remain in effect. Shares
received upon the exercise of accelerated options held by members of the Company’s Board of Directors and by the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer and its Executive Vice Presidents may not be sold or otherwise transferred prior to the earlier of
the original vesting date of such options or their termination of employment or service. The
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Committee’s decision to accelerate the vesting of the affected stock options was based upon the required adoption of SFAS
No. 123(R).

The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 was $10,338, $2,173
and $6,121, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, total remaining unearned compensation related to unvested stock options was
approximately $5,253, which will be amortized over the weighted−average remaining service period of two years.

In accordance with the Evergreen Provision in the 2003 Plan and as approved by the Board of Directors, effective January 1, 2006,
the number of shares reserved under the 2003 Plan was increased by 698,901 shares.

On April 17, 2003, the Company’s Board adopted the 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the 2003 Foreign Subsidiary
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), under which, subject to certain limitations, the initial aggregate number of shares of stock
that may be issued is 500, with a provision (the “Evergreen Provision”) that provides for an automatic increase in the number of shares
available for issuance on January 1, 2004 and each January 1 thereafter until and including January 1, 2013 by the lesser of: (i) 500
shares, (ii) one percent of the number of shares of all classes of common stock of the Company outstanding on that date, or (iii) a
lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors. Under the ESPP, shares are only issued during the second and fourth quarter of
each year. The values were estimated at the date of grant using the Black−Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted
average key assumptions:

2004 2005 2006

Risk free interest rate 1.4% 2.6% 4.5%
Expected lives (years) 1.3 1.3 0.8
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 50% 50% 63%

The dividend yield was not calculated because the Company does not currently expect to pay a dividend. The expected life
represented the service period. Expected volatility was based on a blend of the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock
and publicly traded peer companies. The risk−free interest rate was the average interest rates of U.S. government bonds of comparable
term to the service period.

In accordance with the Evergreen Provision in the ESPP, and as approved by the Board of Directors, effective January 1, 2006, the
number of shares reserved under the ESPP was increased by 100 shares. Compensation expense under the ESPP was $405 for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

During 2006, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved a grant of 93 shares of restricted stock to executive
officers and employees pursuant to the 2003 Plan. The shares of restricted stock granted to executive officers and employees generally
vest in equal annual installments on each of the four year anniversaries following the date of grant. Also during 2006, in accordance
with the 2003 Plan, 12 shares of restricted stock were automatically issued to the outside directors. The shares of restricted stock
granted to outside directors generally vest on the one year anniversary following the date of grant. Compensation expense on these
shares was $550 for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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The following table summarizes information about restricted stock activity during the year ended December 31, 2006:

Number of
Shares

Weighted−
Average

Grant−Date
Fair Value

Granted 105 $ 18.92
Vested (5) 18.32
Forfeited — —
Unvested stock at December 31, 2006 100 $ 18.95

As of December 31, 2006, total remaining unearned compensation related to restricted stock was $1,297, which will be amortized
over the weighted−average remaining service period of two years.

Non−Employee Equity Awards
The Company grants options to purchase shares of common stock to non−employee consultants. Additionally the terms of the plan

allow employees who are terminated, but have continuing service obligations to the Company to continue vesting in their options. As
such the Company recorded stock−based compensation expense in selling, general and administrative expense of $273, $75 and $151
for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Note 17—Defined Contribution Plan
The Company has savings and investment plans, including a savings plan that qualifies as a defined contribution plan under

Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, that allow eligible employees to allocate up to 15% of salary through payroll deductions.
Substantially all full−time employees on the payroll of the Company are eligible to participate in the plans. Prior to 2004, the
Company matched up to 50% of the employee’s contributions up to 6% of salary. Effective beginning in 2004, the Company matches
50% of the first 4% of salary contributed to the plan and up to 6% of salary if certain financial targets are met. For the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, the costs of these matching payments were $194, $223 and $199, respectively.

Note 18—Common Stock Warrants
In connection with the reorganization as described in Footnote 1 of the consolidated financial statements, “The Company”, each of

the former stockholders and the Partnership members of the predecessor entities were also granted warrants to acquire a pro−rata
number of 2,127 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $12.14 per share at any time through December 31,
2007. As the reorganization was accounted for as a common control transaction, no additional value was ascribed to these warrants.

As of December 31, 2006, there were warrants outstanding to acquire 7 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $12.14
per share.

Note 19—Stock Repurchase Plan
In August 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized, subject to certain business and market conditions, the purchase of

up to one million shares of the Company’s common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. At December 31,
2006, there were no shares purchased under this authorization. Any shares repurchased would be considered treasury stock.
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Note 20—Operating Segment and Geographic Information
The Company operates its business in three reportable segments: the Consumer business segment, the Cinema business segment

and the Digital Images business segment. The Company’s Consumer business segment licenses audio technology, trademarks and
know−how to consumer electronics, personal computer, broadcast and professional audio companies, and sells multi−channel audio
content and products to consumers. The Cinema business segment licenses technology and sells products and services to producers
and distributors of feature length films and digital content, and to movie theaters and special venues. The Company’s Digital Images
business segment provides enhancement, restoration and repair services for moving pictures captured on film or in digital form,
television content, and other forms of image content.

During the first quarter of 2007, the Company announced that its Board of Directors approved a plan to sell its DTS Digital
Cinema business, which is comprised of its Cinema business segment and Digital Images business segment. Therefore, the Company
has included a subtotal representing the DTS Digital Cinema business.

The Company does not separately identify and manage capital expenditures or long−lived assets related to these three business
segments.

The Company’s reportable segments and geographical information are as follows:

Revenues by Segment
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 41,886 $ 48,180 $ 50,039
Cinema business 19,545 21,744 20,260
Digital Images business — 5,328 8,015

DTS Digital Cinema business 19,545 27,072 28,275
Total revenues $ 61,431 $ 75,252 $ 78,314

No customers accounted for more than 10% of revenues for any business segment in 2004 or 2005. One Consumer customer
accounted for 13% of total revenues in 2006.

Gross Profit by Segment
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 39,821 $ 45,970 $ 48,345
Cinema business 5,448 10,618 9,793
Digital Images business — (949) (228)

DTS Digital Cinema business 5,448 9,669 9,565
Total gross profit $ 45,269 $ 55,639 $ 57,910
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Income (Loss) From Operations
by Segment

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2004 2005 2006

Consumer business $ 19,969 $ 21,139 $ 15,130
Cinema business (8,475) (4,051) (10,025)
Digital Images business — (7,576) (6,186)

DTS Digital Cinema business (8,475) (11,627) (16,211)
Total income (loss) from

operations $ 11,494 $ 9,512 $ (1,081)

Included in the Consumer business segment’s loss for the year ended December 31, 2006 is the $3.8 million of restructuring costs
relating to the early termination of a business agreement related to the Company’s licensing of intellectual property in China and the
write−down of DTSE inventory and other related assets. Included in the Cinema business segment’s loss for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is the $1.1 million of separation costs relating to the separation of the Company’s DTS Digital Cinema business.
Included in gross profit and loss from operations for the Cinema business for the year ended December 31, 2004 is a $3,871
write−down of the monochrome projector inventory.

The Consumer business income from operations includes depreciation and amortization expense of $753, $1,170 and $1,380 for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Cinema business loss from operations includes depreciation
and amortization expense of $545, $588 and $1,063 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Digital
Images business loss from operations includes depreciation and amortization expense of $2,035 and $2,327 for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. The Digital Images business loss from operations also includes a charge of $2,300 for
in−process research and development for 2005.

Revenues by Geographic Region
For the Years Ended

December 31,
2004 2005 2006

United States $ 17,830 $ 27,157 $ 23,168
Japan 17,516 18,870 18,316
Taiwan 279 3,251 10,309
South Korea 7,772 8,248 7,847
China 6,936 6,702 3,365
Other international 11,098 11,024 15,309

Total international 43,601 48,095 55,146
Total revenues $ 61,431 $ 75,252 $ 78,314

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, long−lived assets by geographic region:

Long−Lived Assets
As of December 31,

2004 2005 2006

United States $ 3,099 $ 5,859 $ 9,694
International 2,219 1,516 1,644

Total long−lived assets $ 5,318 $ 7,375 $ 11,338
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Note 21—Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of unvested restricted stock, outstanding stock options,
common stock warrants, and the ESPP using the “treasury stock” method.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

(Amounts in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Basic net income per share:
Numerator:

Net income $ 9,976 $ 7,908 $ 3,024
Denominator:

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 16,866 17,321 17,623
Basic net income per common share $ 0.59 $ 0.46 $ 0.17

Diluted net income per share:
Numerator:

Net income $ 9,976 $ 7,908 $ 3,024
Denominator:

Weighted average shares outstanding 16,866 17,321 17,623
Effect of dilutive securities:

Common stock options 1,003 930 745
Common stock warrants 274 59 14
Restricted stock — — 13
ESPP — — 6

Diluted shares outstanding 18,143 18,310 18,401
Diluted net income per common share $ 0.55 $ 0.43 $ 0.16

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, 598, 795 and 1,176 shares, respectively, of the Company’s stock options
and restricted stock were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have been
anti−dilutive.

Note 22—Income From Legal Settlement

The Company is involved in various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, which may involve commercial
transactions, product liability, and health and safety matters. These claims have not had, and are not expected to have, a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2004, the Company reached a settlement with Mintek Digital, Inc. (“Mintek”) for $3,500 for Trademark Infringement,
False Designation of Origin, Trademark Dilution, and Unfair Competition relating to Mintek’s distribution of DVD players bearing
the Company’s registered trademarks without obtaining a license from the Company. The Company recognized $899 in revenue under
the settlement for royalties due on units that were identified as using the Company’s trademark and accounted for the remaining
$2,601 as other income. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004 included approximately
$300 in legal fees related to the Mintek case.
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Note 23—Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

For the Quarter Ended
Mar. 31, June 30, Sep. 30, Dec. 31,

2006
Revenues $ 28,701 $ 16,897 $ 15,253 $ 17,463
Gross profit $ 22,559 $ 11,863 $ 10,931 $ 12,557
Net income (loss) $ 7,007 $ 1,883 $ (898)(1) $ (4,968)(2)
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 0.40 $ 0.11 $ (0.05) $ (0.28)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 0.38 $ 0.10 $ (0.05) $ (0.28)
2005
Revenues $ 22,057 $ 17,728 $ 17,553 $ 17,914
Gross profit $ 17,594 $ 12,698 $ 12,909 $ 12,438
Net income $ 3,556 $ 1,816 $ 1,194 $ 1,342
Basic earnings per share $ 0.21 $ 0.10 $ 0.07 $ 0.08
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.19 $ 0.10 $ 0.07 $ 0.07

(1)  Includes $396 of expense for the separation of our business. For additional information, refer to Footnote 4 of the consolidated
financial statements, “Separation and Restructuring Costs.”

(2)  Includes $749, $3,000 and $449 of expenses for the separation of our business, the early termination of a business agreement and
write−down of DTSE inventory and other assets, respectively. For additional information, refer to Footnote 4 of the consolidated
financial statements, “Separation and Restructuring Costs.” Also includes $262 for the impact of consolidating Avica, as discussed
in Footnote 3 of the consolidated financial statements, “Consolidation of Avica as a Variable Interest Entity.”

Note 24—Subsequent Events

In February 2007, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a plan to sell its DTS Digital Cinema business
to enable the Company to focus exclusively on licensing branded entertainment technology to the large and evolving audio, game
console, personal computer, portable and broadcast markets. The sales process has begun and is expected to conclude later in 2007.

The following table presents total current assets, total assets, total current liabilities and total liabilities for DTS Digital Cinema
included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2006.

As of December 31,
2005 2006

Total current assets $ 13,723 $ 11,572
Total assets $ 32,248 $ 37,952
Total current liabilities $ 7,228 $ 7,167
Total liabilities $ 7,228 $ 8,633

Additionally, the following table presents total revenues, gross profit and loss from operations for DTS Digital Cinema included in
the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006

Total revenues $ 19,545 $ 27,072 $ 28,275
Gross profit $ 5,448 $ 9,669 $ 9,565
Loss from operations $ 8,475 $ 11,627 $ 16,211
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For the Years Ended December 31,

Balance at
Beginning

of Year

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

Deductions
From

Reserves
Balance at

End of Year

Allowance for doubtful accounts: (1)
2004 $ 429 $ 61 $ 88 $ 402
2005 402 30 62 370
2006 370 10 124 256

Allowance for obsolescence: (2)
2004 393 4,312 99 4,606
2005 4,606 — 1,715 2,891
2006 2,891 624 214 3,301

(1)  The additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts represent the estimates of our bad debt expense based upon the factors for
which we evaluate the collectability of our accounts receivable. Deductions are the actual write−offs of the receivables.

(2)  The additions to the allowance for obsolescence represent the estimated amounts of inventoried product, which we estimate will
not be consumed or sold in a timely manner, and also includes amounts estimated for lower of cost or market adjustments.
Deductions represent the write−off or sale of that inventory.

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a−15(e) and
15d−15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of
December 31, 2006, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in recording, processing, summarizing and
reporting, on a timely basis, information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act and are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or
submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management including the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(f) or 15d−15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
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financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets of the Company; provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorization of
management and directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Company’s financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria established by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control−Integrated Framework.

Based on this assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
which appears herein in Item 8.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a−15(f) and 15d−15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

The Company has entered into an employment agreement, effective as of June 28, 2006, with Sharon Faltemier. The Company has
filed this agreement as exhibit 10.72 included with this Report.

PART III

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information concerning our executive officers to be included under the caption “Executive Officers and Significant
Employees” in our proxy statement relating to our 2007 annual meeting of stockholders to be filed by us with the Securities and
Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (the “Proxy Statement”) is
incorporated herein by reference.

The information concerning our directors to be included in our Proxy Statement under the caption “Item 1—Election of Directors”
is incorporated herein by reference.
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The information to be included in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” is incorporated herein by reference.

The information concerning our code of ethics and code of conduct to be included in the Proxy Statement under the caption
“Governance of the Company” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11.  Executive Compensation

The information to be included in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Discussion
and Analysis,”  “Compensation of Directors” and “Report of Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation” is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information to be included in the Proxy Statement under the captions “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions will be included in the Proxy Statement under the captions
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information concerning principal accounting fees and services will be included in the Proxy Statement under the caption
“Item 2—Ratification of Independent Auditors” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) and (2) Financial Statements and Schedules

The information required by this Item is included in Item 8 of Part II of this report.

(a)(3) Exhibits

See Item 15 (b) below.

(b) Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and among the Registrant,
LIVE Acquisition Corp., Lowry Digital Images, Inc., John Lowry, as Stockholder
Representative, and the Stockholders listed therein(10)

3.3 [reserved]
3.5 Restated Bylaws(3)
3.6 Audit Committee Charter(18)
3.7 Compensation Committee Charter
3.8 Nominating/Corporate Governance Committee Charter(18)
3.9 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended by Amendment dated May 20, 2005(9)
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate(2)
10.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 24, 1997(1)
10.2 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 27, 2000(1)
10.3 [reserved]
10.4 [reserved]
10.5 [reserved]
10.6 [reserved]
10.7 1997 Stock Option Plan(1)*
10.8 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for grants under the 1997 Stock Option Plan(1)*
10.9 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for grants under the 1997 Stock Option

Plan(1)*
10.10 2002 Stock Option Plan(1)*
10.11 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for grants under the 2002 Stock Option Plan(1)*
10.12 Form of Non−qualified Stock Option Agreement for grants under the 2002 Stock Option

Plan(1)*
10.13 2003 Equity Incentive Plan(2)*
10.14 Form of Grant of Stock Option under 2003 Equity Incentive Plan(2)*
10.15 Form of Option Exercise and Stock Purchase Agreement under 2003 Equity Incentive

Plan(2)*
10.16 Form of Restricted Stock Grant Notice under 2003 Equity Incentive Plan(2)*
10.16.1 Form of Restricted Stock Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement under 2003 Equity

Incentive Plan (for annual non−employee director grants)(20)*
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10.16.2 Form of Restricted Stock Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Agreement under 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan (for employee and consultant grants)(20)*

10.17 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan(2)*
10.18 2003 Foreign Subsidiary Employee Stock Purchase Plan(2)*
10.19 Replacement Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and Comerica

Incorporated, dated February 27, 2004(4)
10.20 Replacement Warrant to purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and J.P. Morgan

Securities Inc., dated January 9, 2004(4)
10.21 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and each of the entities

listed on the Schedule of Warrant Holders attached thereto, dated October 24, 1997(1)
10.22 Amendment to Warrants issued October 24, 1997(1)
10.23 Form of Existing Shareholder Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and

each of the entities listed on the Schedule of Warrant Holders attached thereto, dated October 24,
1997(1)

10.24 Replacement Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and W. Paul Smith,
dated January 20, 2004(4)

10.25 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and each of the entities
listed on the Schedule of Warrant Holders attached thereto, dated January 27, 2000(1)

10.26 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock between the Registrant and each of the entities
listed on the Schedule of Warrant Holders attached thereto, dated September 30, 2000(1)

10.27 Amendment to Warrants issued January 27, 2000 and September 30, 2000(1)
10.28 Lease Agreement between the Registrant and the Butler Family Trust, dated September 8, 1997(1)
10.29 Amendment to Lease Agreement between the Registrant and the Butler Family Trust, dated

November 18, 2002(1)
10.30 Lease Agreement between the Registrant and Gewerbegrund Bauträger GMBH & Co.

Immobillien KG, dated April 21, 2002(1)
10.31 [reserved]
10.32 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Jon Kirchner, dated

September 30, 2002(1)*
10.33 [reserved]
10.34 [reserved]
10.35 [reserved]
10.36 [reserved]
10.37 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and William Paul Smith, dated

November 1, 2002(1)*
10.38 Purchase−Sales Agreement dated as of March 13, 2002, between the Registrant and InFocus

Corporation(1)†
10.39 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and its directors(1)
10.40 Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and its officers(1)
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10.41 Letter Agreement dated March 9, 2004, by and between the Registrant and InFocus Corporation
amending the Purchase−Sales Agreement between such parties dated as of March 13, 2002(5)†

10.42 Revolving Credit Agreement between the Registrant and Comerica Bank—California, effective
June 30, 2004(6)

10.42.1 Loan Extension Agreement and Modification to Loan Documents between the Registrant and
Comerica Bank, effective July 7, 2005(18)

10.42.2 Loan Extension Agreement and Modification to Loan Documents between the Registrant and
Comerica Bank, effective June 12, 2006

10.43 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Daniel E. Slusser, dated June 9,
2004(7)*

10.44 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Don Bird, executed October 1,
2004(8)*

10.45 Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement dated December 17, 2004 and Secured
Convertible Promissory Note dated December 17, 2004 by and between Lowry Digital
Images, Inc. and DTS, Inc.(8)

10.46 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Melvin Flanigan, effective as of
May 20, 2005(9)*

10.47 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Blake Welcher, effective as of
May 20, 2005(9)*

10.48 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Andrea Nee, effective as of May 20,
2005(9)*

10.49 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Jan Wissmuller, effective as of
May 20, 2005(9)*

10.50 Second Amendment to Service Agreement between the Registrant and Mr. William Paul Smith,
dated June 3, 2005(9)*

10.51 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Don Bird, effective as of May 20,
2005(9)*

10.52 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Brian Towne, effective as of May 20,
2005(9)*

10.53 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Patrick Watson, effective as of
May 20, 2005(9)*

10.54 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and William Neighbors, effective as of
May 18, 2005(9)*

10.55 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and among the Registrant and
John Lowry, as Stockholder Representative(10)

10.56 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and between DTS Digital Images, Inc.,
the Registrant and John Lowry(10)*

10.57 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and between DTS Digital Images, Inc.,
the Registrant and Michael Inchalik(10)*

10.58 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and between DTS Canada ULC, the
Registrant and Ian Cavén(10)*
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10.59 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 3, 2005 by and between DTS Digital Images, Inc.,
the Registrant and Ian Godin(10)*

10.60 Employment Agreement, effective as of January 3, 2005, between the Registrant and Daniel E.
Slusser(11)*

10.61 Summary of 2004 bonus payments for the Chief Executive Officer and other Named Executive
Officers(12)*

10.62 Summary of Director compensation arrangement and related amendments to 2003 Equity
Incentive Plan(13)*

10.63 Summary of option grants to and 2005 salaries for the Chief Executive Officer and other Named
Executive Officers(14)*

10.64 2005 Performance Incentive Plan(14)*
10.65 Summary of performance objectives and bonus targets with respect to incentive bonuses for 2005

for the Chief Executive Officer and other Named Executive Officers(15)*
10.66 Description of acceleration of vesting of certain unvested stock options(16)*
10.67 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Daniel E. Slusser, effective as of

January 2, 2006(19)*
10.68 Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2006, between the Registrant and

Daniel E. Slusser(20)*
10.69 Exclusive License Agreement between the Company and Avica Technology Corporation, dated as

of August 8, 2006(21) †
10.70 Option Agreement between the Company and Avica Technology Corporation, dated as of

August 8, 2006(21) †
10.71 Summary of 2005 bonus payments for the Chief Executive Officer and other Named Executive

Officers(17)*
10.72 Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Sharon Faltemier, dated as of

June 28, 2006
21.1 List of all subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent registered public accounting firm
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a−14(a)/15d−14(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a−14(a)/15d−14(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a−14(b) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. section 1350
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a−14(b) of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934, as amended, and 18 U.S.C. section 1350

*  Indicates management contract, arrangement or compensatory plan.
 (1) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Form S−1 Registration Statement (File

No. 333−104761) on April 25, 2003.
 (2) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to Form S−1

Registration Statement (File No. 333−104761) on June 5, 2003.
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 (3) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Form S−1 Registration Statement (File
No. 333−110120) on October 31, 2003.

 (4) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10−K for the
year ended December 31, 2003.

 (5) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004.

 (6) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2004.

 (7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2004.

 (8) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10−K for the
year ended December 31, 2004.

 (9) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10−Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2005.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
January 6, 2005.

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2005.

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 25, 2005.

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 11, 2005.

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 24, 2005.

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
July 29, 2005.

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 23, 2005.

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 1, 2006.

(18) Incorporated by reference to the identically numbered exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10−K for the
year ended December 31, 2005.

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 10−Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
May 10, 2006.

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 10−Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
August 9, 2006.

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 8−K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
October 5, 2006.

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Report on Form 10−Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
November 9, 2006.

†  Certain confidential portions of this Exhibit were omitted by means of redacting a portion of the text (the “Mark”). This
Exhibit has been filed separately with the Secretary of the Commission without the Mark pursuant to the Registrant’s Application
Requesting Confidential Treatment under Rule 406 under the Securities Act.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 16th day of March, 2007.

DTS, INC.
By: /s/  JON E. KIRCHNER

Jon E. Kirchner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title(s) Date

/s/  JON E. KIRCHNER President, Chief Executive March 16, 2007
Jon E. Kirchner Officer, and Director (principal

executive officer)
/s/  MELVIN L. FLANIGAN Executive Vice President, March 16, 2007

Melvin L. Flanigan Finance and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial and
accounting officer)

/s/  DANIEL E. SLUSSER Chairman of the Board March 16, 2007
Daniel E. Slusser

/s/  JOERG D. AGIN Director March 16, 2007
Joerg D. Agin

/s/  C. ANN BUSBY Director March 16, 2007
C. Ann Busby

/s/  JOSEPH A. FISCHER Director March 16, 2007
Joseph A. Fischer

/s/  JAMES B. MCELWEE Director March 16, 2007
James B. McElwee

/s/  RONALD N. STONE Director March 16, 2007
Ronald N. Stone
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Exhibit 3.7
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE CHARTER

Adopted by the Board of Directors of
DTS, Inc.

February 22, 2007

I.  Purpose
The purpose of the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of DTS, Inc. (the “Company”) is to assist the Board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) in the discharge of its responsibilities relating to executive and director compensation, to oversee
incentive, equity−based and other compensatory plans in which executive officers and key employees of the Company participate and
to produce an annual report on executive compensation for inclusion as required in the Company’s proxy statement.

II.  Composition
The Committee shall be composed of not less than three directors, as determined by the Board, each of whom shall (i) satisfy the
independence requirements of the Nasdaq National Stock Market, (ii) qualify as a “Non−employee Director” for purposes of Rule
16b−3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (iii) qualify as an “outside director” for purposes of Section
162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Members shall be appointed to, and removed from, the Committee by the
Board.

III.  Responsibilities
The authority delegated to the Committee is set forth below.  This description of authority is intended as a guide and the Committee
may act and establish policies and procedures that are consistent with these guidelines or are necessary or advisable, in its discretion,
to carry out the intent of the Board in delegating such authority and to fulfill the responsibilities of the Committee hereunder.

1.  Develop and periodically review compensation policies and practices applicable to executive officers, including the
criteria upon which executive compensation is based, the specific relationship of corporate performance to executive
compensation and the composition in terms of base salary, deferred compensation and incentive or equity−based
compensation and other benefits.

2.  Review and approve, at least annually, corporate goals and objectives relevant to Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)
compensation, evaluate the CEO’s performance in light of these goals and objectives, and set the CEO’s compensation
level based on this evaluation.

3.  Determine bases for and set compensation levels for other executive officers.
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4.  Supervise, administer and evaluate incentive, equity−based and other compensatory plans of the Company,
including approving guidelines and size of grants and awards, making grants and awards, interpreting and promulgating
rules relating to the plans, modifying or canceling grants or awards, designating employees eligible to participate and
imposing limitations and conditions on grants or awards.

5.  Review and approve, subject to stockholder approval as required, the creation or amendment of any incentive,
equity−based and other compensatory plans of the Company, other than amendments to tax−qualified employee benefit
plans and trusts, and any supplemental plans thereunder, that do not substantially alter the costs of such plans to the
Company or are to conform such plans to applicable laws or regulations, and reserve shares of the Company’s common
stock for issuance under any such plan.

6.  Review and approve any employment agreements, severance arrangements, change−in−control arrangements or
special or supplemental employee benefits, and any material amendments to any of the foregoing, applicable to executive
officers.

7.  Review periodically the compensation and benefits offered to nonemployee directors and recommend changes to
the Board as appropriate.

8.  Prepare an annual report to the Company’s stockholders on executive compensation and review the Company’s
Compensation Discussion and Analysis, each of which will be included in the Company’s annual report or the Company’s
proxy statement for its annual stockholders’ meeting in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

9.  Make available minutes of Committee meetings to the Board, and report to the Board on any significant matters
arising from the Committee’s work.

10.  At least annually, evaluate the performance of the Committee, review and reassess this Charter and, if
appropriate, recommend changes to the Board.

11.  Perform such other duties and responsibilities as are required by law, applicable NASDAQ (or stock exchange)
rules or as may be assigned to the Committee by the Board or as designated in plan documents.

IV.  Authority and Power to Act

In the event that one or more members of the Committee are absent from a meeting of the Committee or being present at a meeting
recuse themselves from an action taken, the remaining members of the Committee (provided there are at least two such members),
acting unanimously, shall have the power to take any necessary action.  No action of the Committee shall be valid unless taken
pursuant to a resolution adopted and approved by at least two members of the Committee.  No member of the Committee shall
participate in any discussions or deliberations relating to such person’s own compensation or other matters in which such person has a
material interest.
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Except with respect to matters relating to compensation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, with respect to which the Board
delegates to the Committee exclusive authority during such period of time that the Committee is empanelled with at least two
qualifying members as described above, the Board simultaneously reserves to itself all authority delegated hereunder to the
Committee.  This reservation of authority does not in any way limit the Committee’s authority to act definitively on matters delegated
to it hereunder.  Notwithstanding the above, the Board reserves the right at any time to revoke or change the authority delegated
hereunder.

By adopting this Charter, the Board delegates to the Committee the authority to:

1.  Perform each of the responsibilities of the Compensation Committee described above; provided, however, that the
Board retains the authority to authorize one or more officers of the Company to designate officers and employees to be
recipients of rights or options created by the Company or to determine the number of such rights or options to be received
by such officers or employees.

2.  Delegate such of its authority and responsibilities as the Committee deems proper to members of the Committee.

3.  Appoint a chair of the Committee, unless a chair is designated by the Board.

4.  Retain and terminate compensation consultants, independent counsel and such other advisors as the Committee
determines necessary to carry out its responsibilities, and approve the fees and other terms of retention of any such
advisors.  Compensation paid to such parties and related expenses will be borne by the Company and the Company will
make appropriate funding available to the Committee for such purposes.

5.  Obtain advice and assistance from internal legal or other advisors.
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Exhibit 10.42.2

BORROWER
DTS, Inc.

LOAN
REVISION/EXTENSION

Comerica Bank AGREEMENT
3171 Clareton Drive
Agoura Hills, California 91301

(Herein called “Bank”)
(Herein called “Borrower”)

ORIGINAL NOTE
INFORMATION INTEREST RATE AMOUNT NOTE DATE MATURITY DATE OBLIGOR # NOTE*

8−0.500%$ 10,000,000.00 05/31/04 06/30/05 2259153021 18/26

This Agreement is effective as of: June 12, 2006

ORIGINAL OBLIGATION:

This Loan Revision Agreement refers to the loan evidenced by the above Note dated May 31, 2004 in favor of Bank executed by
DTS, Inc. in the amounts of $ 10,000,000.00 payable in full on June 30, 2005. o Said Note is secured by Deed of Trust dated N/A
(hereinafter referred to as the “Encumbrance”), recorded on N/A as Instrument No. N/A in the Office of County Recorder of N/A
County California.

CURRENT OBLIGATION:

This unpaid principal balance of said Note as of June 12, 2006 is $ 0.00 on which interest is paid to May 31, 2004, with a maturity
of June 30, 2006. o As modified by previous Loan Revision/Extension Agreement dated July 07, 2005.

REVISION

The undersigned Borrower hereby requests Bank to revise the terms of said Note, and said Bank to accept payment thereof at the
time, or times, in the following manner:

The maturity date is hereby amended from June 30, 2006 to June 30, 2007.

The interest rate of the Note remains unchanged at Bank’s Base rate from time to time in effect minus one half of one percent
(0.500%) per annum.
*or LIBOR + 2.00%

In consideration of Bank’s acceptance of the revision of said Note, including the time for payment thereof, all as set forth above,
the Borrower does hereby acknowledge and admit to such indebtedness, and further does unconditionally agree to pay such
indebtedness together with interest thereon within the time and by the manner as revised in accordance with the foregoing, together
with any and all attorney’s fees, cost of collection, and any other sums secured by the Encumbrance.

Any and all security for said Note including but not limited to the Encumbrance, if any, may be enforced by Bank concurrently or
independently of each other and in such order as Bank may determine; and with reference to any such security in addition to the
Encumbrance Bank may, without consent of or notice to Borrower, exchange, substitute or release such security without affecting the
liability of the Borrower, and Bank may release any one of more parties hereto or to the above obligation or permit the liability of said
party or parties to terminate without affecting the liability of any other party or parties liable thereon.

This Agreement is a revision only, and not a novation; and except as herein provided, all of the terms and conditions of said Note,
said Encumbrance and all related documents shall remain unchanged and in full force and affect.

When one or more Borrowers signs this Agreement, all agree:

a. That where in this Agreement the word “Borrower” appear, if shall read “each Borrower”;
b. That breach of any covenant by any Borrower may at the Bank’s option be treated as breach by all Borrowers;
c. That the liability and obligations of each Borrower are joint and several.
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DTS, Inc.
Dated this 12th day of June, 2006.

/s/ Melvin L. Flanigan
CFO

The foregoing agreement is accepted this

12th day of June, 2006.
/s/ Jon E. Kirchner
President & CEO

By: /s/ Bryan Lacour
Bryan Lacour
Vice President−Western Market

Each of the undersigned agree and consent to the foregoing revisions to this Agreement and the Encumbrance, if any.
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FIRST MODIFICATION TO BUSINESS LOAN AGREEMENT

This First Modification to Business Loan Agreement (this “Modification”) is entered into by and between DTS, INC.
(“Borrower”) and COMERICA BANK (“Bank”) as of June 12, 2006, at San Jose, California 95113.

RECITALS

This Modification is entered into upon the basis of the following facts and understandings of the parties, which facts and
understandings are acknowledged by the parties to be true and accurate:

Bank and Borrower previously entered into a Business Loan Agreement dated June 30, 2004. The Business Loan Agreement as
so modified, and as such may be otherwise modified, amended, restated, supplemented, revised or replaced from time to time prior to
the date hereof shall collectively be referred to herein as the “Agreement.”

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the
parties agree as set forth below.

AGREEMENT

1.             Incorporation by Reference. The Recitals and the documents referred to therein are incorporated herein by this
reference. Except as otherwise noted, the terms not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Agreement.

2.             Modifications to the Loan Documents. Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions precedent as set forth in Section 3
hereof, the Agreement is hereby modified as set forth below.

A.            Section “6a” of the Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“6a          Make available to Bank within sixty (60) days after the end of each quarter, an unaudited balance sheet
and statement of income covering Borrower’s operations. Within one hundred twenty (120) days of the end of each of
the Borrower’s fiscal year’s, furnish to Bank statements of the financial condition of Borrower for each such fiscal year,
including but not limited to, a balance sheet, profit and loss statement, and statement of cash flow. Said annual
statements shall be audited by an independent certified public accountant selected by the Borrower and reasonably
acceptable to Bank;”

3.             Legal Effect.

a.             Except as specifically set forth in this Modification, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement
remain in full force and effect. Except as expressly set forth herein, the execution, delivery, and performance of this
Modification shall not operate as a waiver of, or as an amendment of, any right, power, or remedy of Bank under the
Agreement, as in effect prior to the date hereof. Borrower ratifies and reaffirms the continuing effectiveness of all
promissory notes, guaranties, security agreements, mortgages, deeds of trust, environmental agreements, and all other
instruments, documents and agreements entered into in connection with the Agreement.

b.             Borrower represents and warrants that each of the representations and warranties contained in the
Agreement are true and correct as of the date of this Modification, and that no Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing.

c.             The effectiveness of this Modification and each of the documents, instruments and agreements entered
into in connection with this Modification is conditioned upon receipt by Bank of this Modification and any other
documents which Bank may require to carry out the terms hereof.

4.             Miscellaneous Provisions.

a.             This is an integrated Modification and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements regarding the
subject matter hereof. All amendments hereto must be in writing and signed by the parties.

b.             This Modification may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have agreed of the date first set forth above.

DTS, Inc. COMERICA BANK

By: /s/ Melvin L. Flanigan By: /s/ Bryan Lacour
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Bryan Lacour
Title: CFO Title: Vice President−Western Market

By: /s/ Jon E. Kirchner
Title: CEO
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Exhibit 10.72

January 3, 2007

Ms. Sharon Faltemier
1563 Larkfield Avenue
Westlake Village, CA  91362

Re:          Employment Agreement

Dear Sharon:

DTS, Inc. (“DTS” or the “Company”) is pleased to extend to you the following employment Agreement.  Unless otherwise set forth in
this Agreement, you acknowledge that your employment with DTS is “at−will”.

Title: Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Duties: You agree to serve the Company as its Senior Vice President, Human Resources. Your duties are as defined in
Company’s job description for the position or as otherwise specified by the President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. During the Term of this Agreement, you will devote full time to, and use your best efforts to
advance, the business and welfare of the Company.

Status: Salary Exempt.

Effective Date: June 28, 2006.

Base Salary: $200,000 per year payable biweekly and subject to payroll deductions as may be necessary or customary in respect
of the Company’s salaried employees in general.

Bonus: Participation in the bonus plan will be on a level commensurate with other executives, and subject to completion
of individual and company milestone achievements per mutual agreement on targets.

Stock Options: All Stock options, restricted stock, or other Company equity granted to you are conditioned on Board of Directors
approval and shall vest over four consecutive 12−month periods as per your respective equity agreement with the
Company and administered under the respective Company’s Equity Incentive Plan.

Vacation: You shall be provided with One Hundred Sixty (160) hours of vacation, which shall be automatically replenished
upon use. However, vacation hours will not be replenished during any period where you are not actively working
for the Company, until you have resumed actively working for at least one full workweek.

Holidays: Per Company’s annual published schedule (commonly 12 days per year); plan is subject to change. The salary
includes holiday pay and you are not entitled to any additional salary or compensation for work on a holiday.

Severance: Upon the termination of this Agreement by the Company for other than good cause: (A) the Company shall for a
period of six (6) months, if the Employee is employed with the Company for less than ten (10) years, and for a
period of twelve (12) months, if the Employee is employed with the Company for more than ten (10) years; (I) pay
to Employee in monthly installments, as severance pay, Employee’s full Salary with a duty to mitigate as set forth
in this Agreement, and (II) provide Employee the same level of benefits Employee was receiving as of the time of
termination of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by law, (B) all options, restricted stock, or other
Company issued equity incentives granted to you (incentive and nonstatutory) shall (I) immediately vest and (II)
where applicable, be exercisable for three (3) years from such termination (but not in excess of the specified
maximum term of such equity incentive).

Benefits: The following are the Company supplied Benefits as of the date of this Agreement. Benefit coverage is subject to change
at company election that may result in elimination of benefits or increased co−pay. Unless otherwise set forth below, eligibility begins the
first day of the month after hire date. Please see the applicable plan documents for additional information. In the event of any conflict
between this description and the plan document, the plan document will prevail.

Insurance: Disability
Health Blue Cross Long Term: Coverage through UNUM.
Dental: Aetna Short Term: Coverage through UNUM.
Vision: Coverage through VSP Section 125: Available for dependent and health care.
Life: $50,000 coverage −Blue Cross 401k Plan: Enrollment dates 1/1 4/1, 7/1 & 10/1.

ESPP: Enrollment – May and November
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Death or Disability of Employee.  If you die or become disabled prior to the termination of this Agreement, your employment under
this Agreement will automatically terminate upon your death or the determination that you are disabled.  “Disability” means any
physical or mental illness that renders you unable to perform your agreed−upon services under this Agreement for ninety (90)
consecutive days or an aggregate of one−hundred twenty (120) days, whether or not consecutive, during any consecutive twelve
(12)−month period.  Disability shall be determined by a licensed physician selected by the Company that is not affiliated with you or
the Company.  In the event of your death or disability, the amounts due you pursuant to this Agreement through the date of your death
or disability will be paid to you or your beneficiaries.

Termination for Cause.  Your employment under this Agreement may be terminated immediately by the Company for
“good cause”.  Upon such termination you will be provided notice specifying the reasons for the termination.  You shall
have ten (10) business days from the date such termination to cure such cause, if curable.  Absent such cure within the
cure period, your employment shall be deemed terminated for good cause on the date of your termination.  The term
“good cause” is defined as any one or more of the following occurrences:

(I)  Negligence or a material violation by you of any duty or any other material or repetitive misconduct or failure on your part;
(II)  Your conviction by, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere in, a court of competent and final jurisdiction for any

crime punishable by imprisonment in the jurisdiction involved; or
(III)  Your commission of an act of fraud, prior to or subsequent to the date of this Agreement, upon the Company.
(IV)  Failure to execute and deliver to the Company any document(s) required by all employees of the Company, or employees of

a similar position, at the location you are employed.

Nothing in this section or the availability of termination for good cause is intended to alter the at−will status of employment with the
Company.  Either you or the company may terminate the employment relationship at any time, with or without cause.

Employee’s Consideration for Severance.  As consideration for receiving severance pay and benefits provided hereunder, during the
period that Employee is receiving severance pay or benefits hereunder, Employee shall:

(I)  Mitigation.  (1) In good faith seek new employment at a level commensurate with Employee’s duties and Salary hereunder,
(2) report to the Company on or before the first day of each month the status of obtaining such subsequent employment and (3)
report on a monthly basis, the amount of compensation and benefits paid to Employee received from any such subsequent
employment/consultation with others.  The Company may deduct from severance payments due Employee hereunder, the
amount of salary and benefits actually received by Employee as a result of such subsequent employment or consultation with
others.

(II)  Consulting.  Be available, in person and/or by telephone, as a consultant to the Company on projects or task as defined by the
Company’s CEO or designated representative.  It is agreed that eight (8) hours per week of consultation, in person and/or by
phone, shall be reasonable.

(III)  Non−Compete.  You agree that for the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending upon the date of the last
severance payment hereunder, Employee shall not, directly or indirectly, as employee, agent, consultant, stockholder, director,
partner or in any other individual or representative capacity, own, operate, manage, control, engage in, invest in or participate in
any manner in, act as a consultant or advisor to, render services for (alone or in association with any person, firm, corporation
or entity), or otherwise assist, for compensation or otherwise, any person or entity that engages in or owns, invests in, operates,
manages or controls any venture or enterprise that is a direct competitor of DTS; provided, however, that nothing contained in
this Agreement shall be construed to prevent you from investing in the stock of any competing corporation listed on a national
securities exchange or traded in the over−the−counter market, but only if: (1) you are not involved in the business of said
corporation, and (2) if you and your affiliates collectively do not own more than an aggregate of 5% of the stock of such
corporation, and (3) such investment does not violate the Company’s Insider Trading Policy.

(IV)  Non−Solicitation.  You agree that you will not interfere with or disrupt or attempt to disrupt the Company’s business
relationship with its customers or suppliers or solicit any of the employees of the Company to leave the employment of the
Company.

(V)  Severance Agreement.  You shall enter into a severance agreement and general release with the company in the form
designated by the Company.

Arbitration.  You and the Company agree that any dispute arising under or in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute
involving your employment or the termination of that employment (whether based on contract, tort or statutory duty or prohibition,
including any prohibition against discrimination or harassment), shall be submitted to binding arbitration in accordance with
California Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1280 – 1294.2 before a single neutral arbitrator.  You and the Company understand that each is
waiving its rights to a jury trial.

The party demanding arbitration shall submit a written claim to the other party setting out the basis of the claim.  Demands shall be
presented in the same manner as notices under this Agreement.  You and the Company will attempt to reach agreement on an
arbitrator within ten (10) business days of delivery of the arbitration demand.  After this ten (10) business day period, either you or the
Company may request a list of seven professional arbitrators from the American Arbitration Association or another mutually agreed
service.  You and the Company will alternately strike names until only one person remains and that person shall be designated as the
arbitrator. The party demanding arbitration shall make the first strike.

The arbitration shall take place in or within five miles of Agoura Hills, California, at a time and place determined by the arbitrator. 
Each party shall be entitled to discovery of essential documents and witnesses and to deposition discovery, as determined by the
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arbitrator, taking into account the mutual desire to have a fast, cost−effective, dispute−resolution mechanism.  You and company will
attempt to cooperate in the discovery process before seeking the determination of the arbitrator.  Except as otherwise determined by
the arbitrator, you and the Company will each be limited to no more than three (3) depositions.  The arbitrator shall have the
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powers provided in California Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1282.2 – 1284.2 and may provide all appropriate remedies at law or equity.

The arbitrator will have the authority to entertain a motion to dismiss and/or a motion for summary judgment by either you or the
Company and shall apply the standards governing such motions under California law, unless the standards of another judicial forum
supercede California law.  The Arbitrator shall render, within sixty (60) days of the completion of the arbitration, an award and a
written, reasoned opinion in support of that award.  Judgment on the award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

The Company will pay the arbitrator’s expenses and fees, all meeting room charges and any other expenses that would not have been
incurred if the case were litigated in the judicial forum having jurisdiction over it.  Unless otherwise ordered by the arbitrator pursuant
to law or this Agreement, each party shall pay its own attorney fees, witness fees and other expenses incurred by the party for his or
her own benefit.  Employee’s share of any filing, administration or similar fee shall be no more than the then current filing or other
applicable fee in California Superior Court or, if applicable, other appropriate tribunal with jurisdiction.

Modification and Waiver of Breach.  No waiver or modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing
signed by you and the Company.  No waiver of a breach of this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of a
future breach, whether of a similar or dissimilar nature.

Notices.  All notices and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing, served
personally on, or mailed by nationally recognized express mail courier.  Notices and other communications served by
express mail courier shall be deemed given 72 hours after deposit with such express mail courier duly addressed to whom
such notice or communication is to be given.  In the case of (a) the Company, 5171 Clareton Drive, Agoura Hills,
California 91301, Attention: General Counsel, or (b) to you, at the address of record provided by you to the Company’s
Human Resources department.  Either party may change their address for purposes of this Section by giving written
notice, in the manner stated herein.  You agree to promptly update the Company’s Human Resources department with
any changes to your contact information.

Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures.  This instrument may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement.  The parties agree that a
signature delivered by facsimile transmission will be treated in all respects as having the same effect as an original
signature.

Construction of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by, the internal laws of
the State of California and both parties irrevocably agree to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the state and local
courts of the County of Los Angeles, California.

Legal Fees.  If any legal action, arbitration or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or
because of any alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with this Agreement, the successful or
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs it incurred in that action or
proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.

Severability Clause.  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof is held invalid, the invalidity shall not
affect other provisions or applications of the Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provisions or
applications and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable.

Complete Agreement.  This instrument constitutes and contains the entire agreement and understanding concerning your
employment and the other subject matters addressed in this Agreement between you and the Company, and supersedes
and replaces all prior negotiations and all agreements proposed or otherwise, whether written or oral, concerning the
subject matters hereof.  This is an integrated document.
Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement does not create, and shall not be construed as creating, any rights enforceable by any
person not a party to this Agreement, except as expressly contemplated herein.

Non−transferability of Interest.  None of the rights of Employee to receive any form of compensation payable pursuant to this
Agreement shall be assignable or transferable except through a testamentary disposition or by the laws of descent and distribution
upon the death of Employee.  Any attempted assignment, transfer, conveyance, or other disposition (other than as set forth herein) of
any interest in the rights of Employee to receive any form of compensation to be made by the Company pursuant to this Agreement
shall be void.

Other Agreements.  A condition of employment with DTS is a signed Confidentiality and Non−Disclosure Agreement, Employee
Invention Agreement, the DTS Worldwide Business Conduct Policy, and receiving satisfactory confirmation of an employee
background check.  Your failure to agree to these conditions and complete these documents in a timely manner may result in your
termination for good cause.  You also understand and agree that, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, you are subject to all
of the Company’s general business and human resources polices and procedures as they presently exist or as they may exist in the
future and failure to abide by such provisions may result in your termination for good cause.  Provided, however, that the at−will
status of employment may only be changed as provided below.
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At−Will.  By signing this letter, you understand and agree that your employment with DTS is “at−will.”  Your employment with DTS
is voluntarily entered into and we recognize you are free to resign at any time.  Similarly, it is recognized that DTS is free to conclude
an employment relationship at any time we feel is appropriate.  While other terms of your employment may change with or without
notice, this at−will relationship can be changed only in a written agreement signed by you and the President & Chief Executive
Officer of DTS.

Sincerely,

/s/ Jon Kirchner
Jon Kirchner
President and Chief Executive Officer

Acceptance:

/s/ Sharon Faltemier           1/19/07
Sharon Faltemier Date
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AGREEMENT OF AT WILL EMPLOYMENT

I understand and agree that my employment with DTS is on an at−will basis.  This means that either DTS or I or may terminate the
employment relationship at any time at their sole discretion without cause.

I further understand that while other personnel policies, procedures, and benefits of DTS may change from time to time in DTS’s
discretion, this at−will employment relationship can only be changed by an express written employment agreement signed by me and
an officer of DTS.

Sharon Faltemier
Employee Name (PRINT)

/s/ Sharon Faltemier              1/19/07
Employee Signature Date
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF DTS, INC.
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

JURISDICTION OF
INCORPORATION OR

ORGANIZATION
SUBSIDIARIES OF DTS, INC.:

Digital Theater Systems (UK) Limited United Kingdom

DTS (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands

DTS Canada Holdings, Inc. Delaware

dts Japan KK Japan

International Cinema Services, Inc. Delaware

DTS AZ Research, LLC Delaware

DTS Digital Images, Inc. California

SUBSIDIARIES OF DTS (BVI) LIMITED:

DTS (ASIA) Limited Hong Kong

DTS China Holding Limited British Virgin Islands

DTS (BVI) AZ Research Limited British Virgin Islands

DTS Licensing Limited Republic of Ireland

SUBSIDIARY OF DTS CHINA HOLDING LIMITED:

DTS China Licensing (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

SUBSIDIARY OF DTS CHINA LICENSING (HONG KONG) LIMITED:

Guangzhou DTS Digital Theater System, Co. Ltd. People’s Republic of China

SUBSIDIARY OF DTS CANADA HOLDINGS, INC.:

DTS Canada ULC Canada

SUBSIDIARY OF INTERNATIONAL SERVICES, Inc.:

DTS Italia Sr.l. Italy

DTS France S.A.R.L. France

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S−8 (Nos. 333−107046, 333−129606 and
333−136519) of DTS, Inc. of our report dated March 16, 2007 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule,
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10−K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 16, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CEO PURSUANT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a−14(a) AND 15(d)−14(a)

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jon E. Kirchner, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10−K of DTS, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(e) and 15d−15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(f) and 15d−15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)           Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b)           Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 16, 2007 By /s/ JON E. KIRCHNER
Jon E. Kirchner

President and Chief Executive
Officer

Source: DTS, INC., 10−K, March 16, 2007



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CFO PURSUANT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13(a)−14(a) AND 15(d)−14(a)

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Melvin L. Flanigan, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10−K of DTS, Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(e) and 15d−15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a−15(f) and 15d−15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: March 16, 2007 By /s/ MELVIN L. FLANIGAN
Melvin L. Flanigan

Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CEO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10−K of DTS, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jon E. Kirchner, President and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002, to the
best of my knowledge, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: March 16, 2007 By /s/ JON E. KIRCHNER
Jon E. Kirchner

President and Chief Executive
Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to DTS, Inc.
and will be retained by DTS, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CFO PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES−OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10−K of DTS, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended December 31, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Melvin L. Flanigan, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002, to the best
of my knowledge, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: March 16, 2007 By /s/ MELVIN L. FLANIGAN
Melvin L. Flanigan

Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes−Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to DTS, Inc.
and will be retained by DTS, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

_______________________________________________
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